(

)

100

4.5611

24 1

2024 6 21

2023 1 1 2023 12 31

(Agricultural Bank of China Limited)

(LIU Qing, Secretary to the Board of Directors)
100005 69

(No. 69, Jianguomen Nei Avenue
Dongcheng District, Beijing 100005, PRC)

11
(03)6775-1000
11
(03)6775-1936
1 20.05 2024 5 31

1 21.92
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ABC-CA Fund Management Co., Ltd.

ABC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

ABC ABC
International Holdings Limited

ABC Financial Asset Investment Co.,

Ltd.
ABC Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
ABC Wealth Management Co., Ltd.
2024 3 7
[2024]94
GAAP 2006 2 15

China Securities Regulatory Commission
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21.

22.

23.

MOF

NFRA

PBOC

SSF
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Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
Ministry of Finance
National Financial Regulatory

Administration
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission

People®s Bank of China

National Council for
Social Security Fund
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
24,877,491 27,205,047 29,069,155 33,927,533 33,925,488 39,872,989
(545,314,603)  (596,334,630)  (637,195,878)  (743,601,523)  (743,646,697)  (874,015,919)
13,360,342 15,170,442 17,175,073 19,765,745 19,763,827 22,614,621
(292,858,697)  (332,536,089)  (376,477,600)  (433,265,130)  (433,223,088)  (495,712,492)
7,095,770 8,134,487 9,168,032 10,741,230 10,741,230 12,791,116
(155,539,278)  (178,307,955)  (200,963,261)  (235,447,762)  (235,447,762)  (280,381,263)
421,390 389,475 424,329 1,007,548 1,007,548 1,310,747
(9,236,869) (8,537,292) (9,301,292)  (22,085,452)  (22,085,452)  (28,731,574)
5,391,677 6,198,743 7,117,212 7,545,282 7,545,282 8,059,915
(118,185,560)  (135,876,447)  (156,009,287)  (165,392,581)  (165,392,581)  (176,673,337)
419,913 413,416 426,179 428,661 426,847 402,491
(9,204,493) (9,062,079) (9,341,844) (9,396,249) (9,356,486) (8,822,603)
540,578 618,009 720,570 782,859 782,854 882,855
(11,849,470)  (13,546,757)  (15,794,894)  (17,160,260)  (17,160,160)  (19,352,182)
12,819,764 14,552,433 16,454,503 18,982,886 18,980,973 21,731,766
(281,009,227)  (318,989,331)  (360,682,706)  (416,104,861)  (416,062,928)  (476,360,311)
7,422,930 7,822,659 8,230,043 9,530,163 9,530,163 11,213,713
(162,710,626)  (171,472,685)  (180,402,543)  (208,901,173)  (208,901,173)  (245,804,589)
2,699,895 2,437,275 2,321,406 2,549,130 2,549,130 2,922,047

(59,181,698)  (53,425,068)  (50,885,220)  (55,876,930)  (55,876,930)  (64,051,270)

758,925 981,133 665,444 1,131,215 1,131,215 1,596,257
(16,635,636)  (21,506,435)  (14,586,532)  (24,796,233)  (24,796,233)  (34,989,953)

708,551 816,206 837,637 1,172,187 1,172,187 1,809,559
(15,531,438)  (17,891,236)  (18,361,003)  (25.694,339)  (25,694,339)  (39,665,533)
22,923,630 24,994,301 26,647,796 31,253,082 31,251,728 36,976,122
(502,485,970)  (547,875,078)  (584,119,688)  (685,067,557)  (685,037,878)  (810,516,594)
18,849,155 20,372,901 21,907,127 25,121,040 25,121,040 28,898,468
(413,173,478)  (446,573,990)  (480,204,224)  (550,653,197)  (550,653,197)  (633,454,419)

7,196,002 7,618,591 8,001,650 9,032,456 9,032,456 10,477,286
(157,736,364)  (166,999,515)  (175,396,168)  (197,991,436)  (197,991,436)  (229,662,109)
10,904,731 11,926,040 12,970,450 14,977,766 14,977,766 17,109,711
(239,031,704)  (261,418,797)  (284,312,264)  (328,312,631)  (328,312,631)  (375,044,865)

517,440 562,741 623,353 727,212 727,212 852,298

(11,342,285)  (12,335,283)  (13,663,898)  (15,940,487)  (15,940,487)  (18,682,372)

1,829,272 1,785,176 1,913,471 2,792,933 2,792,933 4,035,787
(40,097,642)  (39,131,058)  (41,943,284)  (61,221,091)  (61,221,091)  (88,464,451)

53,197 109,195 36,033 43,779 43,779 100,521
(1,166,078) (2,393,554) (789,843) (959,636) (959,636) (2,203,420)
1,108,212 1,371,845 1,507,657 1,869,398 1,869,398 2,295,921

(24,292,007)  (30,070,842)  (33,047,841)  (40,977,204)  (40,977,204)  (50,326,588)

1,948,355 2,204,789 2,414,605 2,668,412 2,668,063 2,889,248
(42,707,942)  (48,328,975)  (52,928,142)  (58,491,591)  (58,483,941)  (63,332,316)
@D 2,498,311 2,817,924 3,057,867 3,416,001 3,416,349 3,828,171
(54,762,977)  (61,768,894)  (67,028,445)  (74,878,742)  (74,886,370)  (83,913,508)

Tierl CET1
o 1,740,584 1,875,372 2,042,352 2,215,395 2,215,612 2,394,940

(38,153,601)  (41,108,154)  (44,768,356)  (48,561,458)  (48,566,215)  (52,497,085)
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Tierl @ 199,894 319,884 360,009 439,878 440,009 480,009
(4,381,676) (7,011,857) (7,891,397) (9,642,126) (9,644,997)  (10,521,797)
Tier2 @ 557,833 622,668 655,506 760,728 760,728 953,222
(12,227,699)  (13,648,883)  (14,368,692)  (16,675,158)  (16,675,158)  (20,894,626)
(€] 15,485,352 16,989,668 17,849,566 19,862,505 19,862,505 22,338,078

(339,438,916)  (372,413,523)  (391,262,487)  (435,386,110)  (435,386,110)  (489,650,670)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
629,350 659,332 721,746 725,499 695,283 695,468
(13,795,352)  (14,452,557)  (15,820,672)  (15,902,938)  (15,240,603)  (15,244,659)
500,870 545,079 577,987 589,966 589,883 571,750
(10,979,070)  (11,948,132)  (12,669,475)  (12,932,055)  (12,930,235)  (12,532,760)
72,927 74,545 80,329 81,282 81,282 80,093
(1,598,560) (1,634,026) (1,760,812) (1,781,701) (1,781,701) (1,755,639)
224,096 229,897 260,275 274,023 243,571 252,305
(4,912,184) (5,039,342) (5,705,228) (6,006,584) (5,339,076) (5,530,526)
138,605 164,699 165,886 145,267 145,266 135,707
(3,038,222) (3.610,202) (3.636,221) (3.,184,253) (3.184,231) (2,974,697)
266,576 265,050 295,880 306,216 306,453 307,419
(5,843,346) (5,809,896) (6,485,690) (6,712, 255) (6,717,450) (6,738,624)
212,924 216,400 241,936 258,688 258,866 269,820

(4,667,294) (4,743,488) (5,303,237) (5,670,441) (5.,674,343) (5,914,454)
212,098 215,925 241,183 259,140 259,232 269,356

(4,649,188) (4,733,076) (5,286,731) (5,680,349) (5,682,365) (5,904, 284)

358,396 (60,936) 239,615 1,322,003 1,322,003 1,825,282
(7.856,040)  ((1,335,717)) (5.252,361)  (28,978,306)  (28,978,306)  (40,010,181)
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
( ) )
@ 0.90 0.83 0.86 0.82 0.82 0.73
@ 12.43 11.35 11.57 11.28 11.29 10.91
(O] 2.23 2.20 2.12 1.90 1.90 1.60
® 2.09 2.04 1.96 1.73 1.73 1.45
@ ® 1.38 1.27 1.36 1.30 1.30 1.21
11.59 11.31 11.13 11.20 11.69 11.52
) 30.49 29.23 30.46 31.63 32.81 33.86
1
1 ® 0.59 0.59 0.65 0.69 0.69 0.72
(12.93) (12.93) (14.25) (15.12) (15.12) (15.78)
1 ® 0.59 0.59 0.65 0.69 0.69 0.72
(12.93) (12.93) (14.25) (15.12) (15.12) (15.78)
1 1.02 .17 0.68 3.78 3.78 5.22
(22.36) ((3.73)) (14.91) (82.86) (82.86) (114.42)
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) )
® 1.40 1.57 1.43 1.37 1.37 1.33
© 295.45 266.20 299.73 302.60 302.60 303.87
(19 4.15 4.17 4.30 4.16 4.16 4.05
Tierl CET1
©) 11.24 11.04 11.44 11.15 11.15 10.72
Tierl & 12.53 12.92 13.46 13.37 13.37 12.87
@ 16.13 16.59 17.13 17.20 17.20 17.14
) 62.25 62.45 61.40 58.54 58.55 56.02
7.85 8.13 8.33 7.88 7.88 7.27
1
1 an 5.00 5.39 5.87 6.37 6.37 6.88
(109.6) (118.15) (128.67)  (139.63)  (139.63) (150.81)
(€D
(@)
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
2010 33 1
)
®)
(O] NFRA
(7) CAS CAS
®)
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©)
(10)
(11)
12) 2017 17
2023 1 1 2022
2021 2022 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 62.01 64.21 75.42
25 138.94 235.12 182.67
@ 10 2.44 2.59 1.99
10
® 11.67 13.54 12.02
@ 1.10 1.30 1.39
20.23 25.77 23.85
57.43 46.35 35.45
13.66 6.03 17.29
(1) NFRA
@
®) 10
(4) NFRA
2023 1 2 3 4
189,365 176,429 167,854 161,820
(4,150,881) (3,867,324) (3,679,360) (3,547,094)
71,554 61,680 74,122 62,000
(1,568,464) (1,352,026) (1,624,754) (1,359,040)
905,857 447,642 24,797 446,986
(19,856,385) (9,812,313) (543,550) (9,797,933)
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1951 1979 2
2009 1
2010 7
1
2
3
IT
2023 39,872,989
22,614,621 28,898,468
17.14 2023 269,820
2023 4 4
37 409 3,316 19,025
46 22,843 13
4 11 5 16
2014 10
2023 Tierl 3
A A-1
Al P-1
A Fl+
39

2023 12 31 MOF 40.14 35.29
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2023 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,450 100.00
9,500,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,002 100.00
1,750,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
o 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
40,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
150,000,000 51.00
@ 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
7,556,038,271 100.00
20,000,000,000 100.00
12,000,000,000 100.00
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(2 2012 12 31
2012 12 31
2016 12 31
2,844
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
2022 12 31 2023 12 31

3,761
51

19
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/
53,342,800,000
@ 50.00
@ 313,000,000 31.95
@ 6,343,200,000 15.61
@ 3,885,500,000 25.25
@ 6,000,000,000 15.67
® 88,500,000,000 9.04
® 11,150,000,000 8.97
® 1,000,000,000 49.00
(1) 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour 1°Afrique BSCA.
BSCA.
BSCA.
@
?) 2021 9.04
*
®)

20
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2023 451,003 787
7,928
2023 12 31
14,486 3.2
63,912 14.2
50,264 11.1
64,291 14.2
90,890 20.1
40,911 9.1
117,534 26.1
787 0.2
7,928 1.8
451,003 100.0
2023 12 31
593 0.1
42,214 9.4
280,137 62.1
107,543 23.9
20,516 4.5
451,003 100.0
2023 12 31
119,624 26.5
14,908 3.3
17,338 3.8
15,493 3.4
156,799 34.8
504 0.1
13,150 2.9
80,062 17.8
19,814 4.4
13,311 3.0
451,003 100.0
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2023 12 31
30 116,037 25.7
31 40 111,977 24.8
41 50 87,276 19.4
51 135,713 30.1
451,003 100.0

2023 12 31
244,143 54.1
206,860 45.9
451,003 100.0
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2023 14 5
2
5
3 2023
12.33 8.78 14.2

19.8

PBOC 3 3

2023 4.05
1.35 50.1
ESG 10 MSCI  ESG
AA
E
ABC E
2023 ABC E 4
MAU 213
56.4

2023 1.33 0.04
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9.5
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2024
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GDP 5.2
3.0
0.2
CPI 0.2
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2023

ESG

20
MSCI

100
ESG

ESG
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ESG

2023
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2023

10

3 1 2023

2021 2025

2023
@ 4,048.7 50.1
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€Y 2020
144 .34 @
26
7,155
2023 ESG 26
ESG
EPC
68.77
67.9
41.42
2023

(1) NFRA

2023 1,266

45.38

2023

ESG

50

2.5
ESG

682
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176.0

ESG

2023

36,883

2023
24.7

2023
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2023 330.0
10
4
2023 11 0.3
ABC
2021 ICMA GBP 2023 LMA
GLP
S0S2

28 COP28
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127

2023

800

2023
11.4
123
EMT
70
2023 17.9
ABC E-
30,000
3,700
588.1
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14 5

3,900

32

3,700

119
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2023

2023
2,722 6,271
5,710 561

2023
360

87.87
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2 5 12
12
2
5
5

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
(@) (D)
8,299,082 42.1 8,619,075 38.2
2,268,833 11.5 2,440,589 10.8
2,290,351 11.6 2,916,064 12.9
6,862,641 34.8 8,588,541 38.1
19,720,907 100.0 22,564,269 100.0

42,920 50,352
19,763,827 22,614,621

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
(@) (@)
90 103,332 0.52 111,027 0.49
91 360 54,504 0.28 70,775 0.31
361 3 42,584 0.22 51,052 0.23
3 12,419 0.06 11,676 0.05
212,839 1.08 244,530 1.08
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10 )

A 76,052 0.34
B 58,057 0.26
C 55,068 0.24
D 48,500 0.21
E 48,174 0.21
F 43,019 0.19
G 37,621 0.17
H 33,443 0.15
1 32,594 0.15
J 27,580 0.12

460,108 2.04

2023 12 31 1.99

10 12.02
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©
5
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
(@) (@)
19,162,046 97.17 21,943,392 97.25
287,799 1.46 320,117 1.42
271,062 1.37 300,760 1.33
122,688 0.62 140,194 0.61
131,072 0.66 132,041 0.59
17,302 0.09 28,525 0.13
19,720,907 100.00 22,564,269 100.00
42,920 50,352
19,763,827 22,614,621
2023 12 31 29,698 300,760
0.04 1.33
32,318 320,117 1.42
0.04
2023
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2022 12 31 2023 12 31
215,078 79.4 2.00 234,186 77.8 1.83
80,187 29.6 2.61 72,109 24.0 2.18
134,891 49.8 1.76 162,077 53.8 1.71

1

49,048 18.0 0.65 59,176 19.7 0.73
27,258 10.0 0.51 28,530 9.4 0.55
7,948 2.9 1.23 9,808 3.3 1.40
2,428 0.9 1.25 3,544 1.2 1.04
3,769 1.4 0.65 5,699 1.9 0.76
6,013 2.2 0.80 10,462 3.5 0.96
1,632 0.6 4.97 1,133 0.4 6.68
6,936 2.6 1.62 7,397 2.5 1.84
271,062 100.0 1.37 300,760 100.0 1.33

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
46,618 21.7 2.59 45,287 19.3 2.03
8,190 3.8 0.72 7,182 3.1 0.51
46,039 21.4 5.48 46,615 19.9 5.42
18,299 8.5 0.79 14,636 6.2 0.55
18,709 8.7 3.05 19,457 8.3 2.48
9,332 4.3 1.07 22,719 9.7 1.99
8,387 3.9 2.43 9,746 4.2 2.04
13,568 6.3 6.78 10,501 4.5 3.98
31,588 14.7 1.80 41,333 17.7 1.96
299 0.1 0.08 295 0.1 0.13
IT 3,785 1.8 5.22 2,296 1.0 2.27
10,264 4.8 2.43 14,119 6.0 2.81
215,078 100.0 2.00 234,186 100.0 1.83
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2022 12 31 2023 12 31
1,200 0.4 0.20 1,386 0.5 0.25
30,913 11.4 0.65 38,494 12.8 0.70
34,503 12.7 1.07 45,466 15.1 1.23
56,958 21.0 2.07 58,016 19.3 1.85
47,178 17.4 1.53 45,550 15.1 1.26
14,214 5.2 2.24 14,412 4.8 2.05
79,160 29.3 1.86 90,039 29.9 1.83
6,936 2.6 1.62 7,397 2.5 1.84
271,062 100.0 1.37 300,760 100.0 1.33
)
2023
1 2 3
12
2023 1 1 575,164 80,844 164,220 820,228
@
1 2 (18,028) 18,028
2 3 (37,631) 37,631
2 1 21,954 (21,954)
3 2 12,744 (12,744)
230,578 230,578
(40,568) 62,523 78,190 100,145
(135,770) (19,831) (155,601)
(34,065) (34,065)
(47,367) (47,367)
2023 12 31 633,330 94,723 185,865 913,918
@ 3 17
@
@
2023
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VaR
VaR 1 250
99
VaR
( )
2022 2023
63 43 70 29 37 63 102 8
) 110 93 203 11 252 236 327 120
23 34 62 22 14 32 42 14
VaR 138 112 216 55 249 246 347 142
[®) VaR
(W . B ARRT)
2023F(SH 1T HH 5 EEOVaRM IE{E
— VaR$tk
— AP ARS
— & RE

s 8 8 E 8 8& &8¢ 8

0
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VaR
VaR
VaR
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2023
2023 12 31 1 200,557
413,749
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2022 12 31 (7,916,861) 1,130,785 6,171,770 (614,306) (1,855,309) 4,896,869 99,569
2023 12 31 (7,497,517) 1,359,936 6,551,330 413,749 (3,552,360) 5,838,437 83,878
) 44.3
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
100 (43,303) (59,146) (35,951) (69,135)
100 43,303 59,146 35,951 69,135
12
2023 12 31 100
35,951 69,135
2023
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2023
1,181 1.667 2023
2,467
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
58,843 8,449 30,636 4,325
4,306 618 (13,159) (1,858)
) 44.3
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
+5 77 (118)
-5 a7 118
+5 1,469 1,421
5 (1,469) (1,421)
5

®©)

118
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oooooog
2023
75.42 182.67 2023 4
2.97 123.93 2023
27,373.9 21,210.6 129.1
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5

2022 12 31 28,091 (14,851,039) 1,055,697  (851,028) 158,761 1,119,113 13,429,147 2,438,081 2,526,823

2023 12 31 34,600 (15,959,023) 1,586,071  (925,666) (20,560) 332,098 15,096,354 2,639,830 2,783,704

) 44.2
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NFRA
NFRA 100
2017
2023 4 2.97
123.93 92
1 2

2023 4

1 HQLA 7,547,485
2 17,535,424 1,687,675
3 1,317,262 65,859
4 16,218,162 1,621,816
5 12,338,871 5,015,852
6 3,629,393 892,157
7 8,653,376 4,067,593
8 56,102 56,102
9 22,687
10 2,813,638 1,193,471
1 1,057,427 1,057,427
12 38 38
13 1,756,173 136,006
14 191,796 191,796
15 3,573,807 19,410
16 8,130,891
17 1,222,133 1,222,133
18 1,668,016 933,850
19 1,229,116 1,229,116
20 4,119,265 3,385,099
21 HQLA 5,881,576
22 4,745,792
23 123.93
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NFRA

NFRA

2023

2023

3

4

26,374.5

27,373.9
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100
0.9 127.9
20,620.2
1.2 129.1

21,210.6
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2023 3 2023 4
2023 3
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,788,524 _ _ 449,937 | 3,238,461
2 2,788,524 _ _ 419,937 | 3,208,461
3 _ _ _ 30,000 30,000
4 7,621,247 | 10,375,011 129 89 | 16,292,663
5 1,916,511 _ _ _ | 1,820,685
6 5,704,736 | 10,375,011 129 89 | 14,471,978
7 6,392,127 | 7,966,644 | 1,328,195 46,564 | 6,503,573
8 3,628,469 _ _ _ | 1,814,234
9 2,763,658 | 7,966,644 | 1,328,195 46,564 | 4,689,339
10 _ _ _ _ _
11 233 | 1,939,625 186,851 212,767 339,776
12 [ NSFR -33,583 _
13
233 | 1,939,625 186,851 246,350 339,776
14 [AsF 26,374,473
RSF
15 |NSFR
HOLA 1,124,141
16
3,885 512,513 310,802 _ 413,600
17 3,013 | 6,416,662 | 3,310,920 | 14,287,307 | 16,204,258
1 HQLA
18
—_ 9,218 —_ 127,671 129,054
1 HQLA
19
1,363 | 2,292,587 211,965 67,510 517,585
20
PSE 22 | 3,878,204 | 2,878,304 | 8,801,731 | 10,830,218
21
35 9 74,403 40,117 153,201 151,354
22 _ 117,051 118,125 | 4,989,235 | 4,358,426
23
35 _ 3 3 62 44
” HQLA
1,628 119,512 102,436 301,160 368,975
25 _ _ _ _ _
26 204,764 728,406 804,965 | 1,082,122 | 2,768,201
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Ooooooo
27 . _
28 cCcP
1,548 1,316

29 NSFR 44,346 77,929
30 NSFR

-5,228 -5,228
31 204,764 728,406 804,965 1,036,228 2,694,184
32 5,246,960 109,979
33 |RSF 20,620,179
34 127.9
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2023 4
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,865,338 _ _ 509,938 | 3,375,276
2 2,865,338 _ _ 479,938 | 3,345,276
3 — _ _ 30,000 30,000
4 7,712,763 | 10,499,590 123 100 | 16,488,840
5 1,950,212 _ _ — | 1,852,702
6 5,762,551 | 10,499,590 123 100 | 14,636,138
7 6,829,241 | 8,318,539 | 1,270,118 487,166 | 7,201,914
8 4,164,487 _ — — | 2,082,244
9 2,664,754 | 8,318,539 | 1,270,118 487,166 | 5,119,670
10 _ _ _ _ _
11 278 | 1,613,756 140,434 252,838 307,882
12 NSFR 15,173 _
13
278 | 1,613,756 140,434 237,665 307,882
14 |ASF 27,373,912
RSF
15 |NSFR
HOLA 1,269,331
16 3,424 391,790 669,656 520 532,955
17 2,346 | 6,608,945 | 3,160,176 | 14,492,603 | 16,437,460
1 HQLA
18
—_ 1,112 —_ 125,921 126,088
1 HQLA
19
909 | 2,204,847 280,505 73,899 545,016
20
PSE 82 | 4,131,119 | 2,689,957 | 9,028,004 | 11,057,977
21
35 8 49,880 46,163 148,774 140,257
22 _ 116,471 117,939 | 4,927,896 | 4,305,905
23
35 _ 3 3 60 43
" HQLA
1,355 155,396 71,775 336,883 402,474
25 _ _ _ _ _
26 245,178 779,856 846,157 | 1,108,372 | 2,869,513

27
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28 CCP

1,549 1,317
29 NSFR 26,588 11,415
30 NSFR

5,937 5,937
31 245,178 779,856 846,157 1,080,235 2,850,844
32 5,732,344 101,372
33 |[RSF 21,210,631
34 129.1
®

2023
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OooooOodd
44
@
@
2023 269,820 10,954 4.2

2022 2023
589,883 571,750 (18,133) 3.1
81,282 80,093 (1,189) -1.5
24,118 43,625 19,507 80.9
695,283 695,468 185 0.03
243,571 252,305 8,734 3.6
145,266 135,707 (9,559) -6.6
59 226 167 283.1
306,387 307,230 843 0.3
o 169 ocs s
47,587 807,41937,599 (9,988) -21.0
258,866 269,820 10,954 4.2
259,232 269,356 10,124 3.9

(366) 464 830
2023 82.2 2023
571,750 18,133
63,668 81,801
1.60 1.45
30 28 1

LPR
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2022 2023
18,614,670 761,744 4.09 21,347,523 808,672 3.79
® 8,264,804 277,557 3.36 9,404,611 308,166 3.28
7,880,577 266,999 3.39 9,020,391 298,549 3.31
® 384,227 10,558 2.75 384,220 9,617 2.50
2,273,182 34,494 1.52 2,467,356 39,341 1.59
® 1,857,129 34,669 1.87 2,621,418 67,519 2.58
31,009,785 1,108,464 3.57 35,840,908 1,223,698 3.41
(778,141) (763,292)
1,494,370 1,567,837
31,726,014 36,645,453
22,874,532 388,546 1.70 26,715,196 475,534 1.78
@ 2,775,872 59,951 2.16 3,441,426 90,407 2.63
® 2,536,605 70,084 2.76 3,035,657 86,007 2.83
28,187,009 518,581 1.84 33,192,279 651,948 1.96
1,091,947 1,132,937
29,278,956 34,325,216
589,883 571,750
1.73 1.45
1.90 1.60
@
) MOF
©)
O
®)
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103,524 (56,596) 46,928
37,349 (6,740) 30,609
3,096 1,751 4,847
19,686 13,164 32,850
163,655 (48,421) 115,234
68,364 18,624 86,988
17,484 12,972 30,456
14,139 1,784 15,923
99,987 33,380 133,367
63,668 (81,801) (18,133)
2023 1,223,698 115,234
4,831,123
46,928 6.2 808,672
2022 2023
10,137,788 397,225 3.92 12,161,866 442,522 3.64
3,007,512 104,531 3.48 3,367,549 115,999 3.44
7,130,276 292,694 4.10 8,794,317 326,523 3.71
636,982 9,657 1.52 927,290 12,301 1.33
7,400,635 343,274 4.64 7,822,929 333,819 4.27
439,265 11,588 2.64 435,438 20,030 4.60
18,614,670 761,744 4.09 21,347,523 808,672 3.79
2 2023
30,609 308,166
4,847 39,341
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32,850
67,519
133,367 651,948
5,005,270
86,988 475,534
2022 2023
3,570,097 91,235 2.56 4,976,802 138,011 2.77
5,440,570 58,498 1.08 5,672,335 67,710 1.19
9,010,667 149,733 1.66 10,649,137 205,721 1.93
7,906,059 221,256 2.80 9,781,228 254,905 2.61
5,957,806 17,557 0.29 6,284,831 14,908 0.24
13,863,865 238,813 1.72 16,066,059 269,813 1.68
22,874,532 388,546 1.70 26,715,196 475,534 1.78
30,456
90,407
15,923 86,007
2023 1,189 1.5
80,093 11.3
14.7%
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2022 2023
10,296 10,796 500 4.9
11,979 13,337 1,358 11.3
23,965 20,438 (3.527) -14.7
15,760 16,307 547 3.5
26,772 27,459 687 2.6
1,979 1,793 (186) -9.4
4,308 4,078 (230) -5.3
459 502 43 9.4
95,518 94,710 (808) -0.8
14,236 14,617 381 2.7
81,282 80,093 (1.189) -1.5
2023 43,625 19,507
17 605
10,855
2022 2023

5,519 23,124

5,909 16,764

160 1,038

12,530 2,699

24,118 43,625

2023 8,734 252,305
1.05 33.86
2022 2023

145,641 151,628 5,987 4.1

61,554 62,047 493 0.8

5,758 6,128 370 6.4

20,745 21,621 876 4.2

6,525 7,260 735 11.3

3,348 3,621 273 8.2

243,571 252,305 8,734 3.6
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OooooOodd
2023 135,707
2,084 138,883
2023 9,988 21.0 37,599
12.23

2022 2023
277,544 39.9 271,524 39.0
355,348 51.1 364,837 52.5
44,436 6.4 39,214 5.6
17,955 2.6 19,893 2.9
695,283 100.0 695,468 100.0

2022 2023
(12,124) ) (15,570) (2.3)
160,848 23.1 161,895 23.3
113,162 16.3 111,756 16.1
106,753 15.4 105,403 15.2
121,558 17.5 123,769 17.8
156,305 22.5 158,403 22.8
25,998 3.7 25,239 3.6
22,783 3.2 24,573 3.5
695,283 100.0 695,468 100.0

39

2022 2023
317,780 45.7 331,611 47.7
377,503 54.3 363,857 52.3
695,283 100.0 695,468 100.0
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®
2023 12 31 5,947,501 17.5 39,872,989
2,750,793 14.5
1,683,550 17.7 372,917 14.6
465,042 41.1
637,372 54.4
2022 12 31 2023 12 3l
19,763,827 - 22,614,621 -
782,854 - 882,855 -
18,980,973 55.9 21,731,766 54.5
9,530,163 28.1 11,213,713 28.1
2,549,130 7.5 2,922,047 7.3
1,131,215 3.3 1,596,257 4.0
1,172,187 3.5 1,809,559 4.5
561,820 1.7 599,647 1.6
33,925,488 100.0 39,872,989 100.0
2023 12 31 22,614,621 2,850,794
14.4
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
19,294,060 97.8 22,161,778 98.2
10,741,230 54.4 12,791,116 56.7
1,007,548 5.1 1,310,747 5.8
7,545,282 38.3 8,059,915 35.7
426,847 2.2 402,491 1.8
19,720,907 100.0 22,564,269 100.0
42,920 - 50,352 -
19,763,827 - 22,614,621 -
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
3,075,421 28.6 3,310,005 25.9
7,665,809 71.4 9,481,111 74.1
10,741,230 100.0 12,791,116 100.0
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oOoOooodn
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
1,800,124 16.7 2,234,938 17.6
1,136,482 10.6 1,412,944 11.0
O 839,621 7.8 860,705 6.7
2,326,448 21.7 2,674,184 20.9
613,076 5.7 784,495 6.1
872,432 8.1 1,144,252 8.9
345,311 3.2 478,260 3.7
200,035 1.9 263,786 2.1
1,750,511 16.3 2,105,404 16.5
363,008 3.4 227,750 1.8
IT
72,560 0.7 101,143 0.8
@ 421,622 3.9 503,255 3.9
10,741,230 100.0 12,791,116 100.0
@
@
2023 12 31 5 1 2
3 4 5
5
74.9 1.5
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
5,346,603 70.9 5,170,822 64.1
193,746 2.6 340,865 4.2
576,696 7.6 745,993 9.3
647,651 8.6 700,031 8.7
E T47,747 9.9 1,085,255 13.5
32,839 0.4 16,949 0.2
7,545,282 100.0 8,059,915 100.0
2023 12 31 514,633 6.8
75.9
29.4 E
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2022 12 31 2023 12 31
607,244 3.1 559,735 2.5
4,730,796 24.0 5,538,283 24.5
3,234,190 16.4 3,682,226 16.3
2,746,965 13.9 3,142,457 13.9
3,092,798 15.7 3,620,517 16.1
634,482 3.2 704,525 3.1
4,247,585 21.5 4,914,035 21.8
426,847 2.2 402,491 1.8
19,720,907 100.0 22,564,269 100.0
42,920 - 50,352 -
19,763,827 - 22,614,621 -

2023 12 31 11,213,713 1,683,550
17.7 1,652,511

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
8,780,056 93.6 10,432,567 94.4
384,223 4.1 384,217 3.5
122,393 1.3 130,277 1.2
92,009 1.0 98,804 0.9
9,378,681 100.0 11,045,865 100.0
151,482 - 167,848 -
9,530,163 - 11,213,713 -

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
5,622,143 64.0 6,847,278 65.7
1,868,323 21.3 2,069,693 19.8
793,174 9.0 1,088,501 10.4
241,508 2.8 226,657 2.2
254,908 2.9 200,438 1.9
8,780,056 100.0 10,432,567 100.0
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2022 12 31 2023 12 31
17 - 17 -
3 326,850 3.7 607,664 5.8
3 990,908 11.3 1,203,315 11.5
1 2,920,434 33.3 3,070,284 29.4
5 4,541,847 51.7 5,551,287 53.3
8,780,056 100.0 10,432,567 100.0

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
8,340,248 94.9 9,959,034 95.5
347,389 4.0 378,964 3.6
92,419 1.1 94,569 0.9
8,780,056 100.0 10,432,567 100.0

2022 12 31 2023 12 31
522,057 5.6 547,407 5.0
7,170,257 76.4 8,312,467 75.2
1,686,367 18.0 2,185,991 19.8
9,378,681 100.0 11,045,865 100.0
151,482 - 167,848 -
9,530,163 - 11,213,713 -

2023 12 31 3,158,194
2,069,693

1,088,501
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ooOoooOoo
2023 12 31 10
()
2022 71,475 3.18 2032 3 11 -
2021 50,951 3.38 2031 7 16 -
2020 49,979 3.74 2030 11 16 -
2020 48,423 3.79 2030 10 26 -
2022 46,771 3.06 2032 6 6 -
2021 46,706 3.30 2031 11 5 -
2022 42,470 2.90 2032 8 19 -
2021 41,688 3.52 2031 5 24 -
2023 41,620 2.83 2033 6 16 -
2021 40,862 3.22 2026 5 14 -
(€D
2023 12 31 36,976,122 5,724,394 18.3
3,777,428 15.0
1,242,854 445
56,742 129.6
426,523 22.8
Tier2
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
25,121,040 80.4 28,898,468 78.2
2,792,933 8.9 4,035,787 10.9
43,779 0.1 100,521 0.3
1,869,398 6.0 2,295,921 6.2
1,424,578 4.6 1,645,425 4.4
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24,602,463 99.5 28,299,687 99.5
9,032,456 36.5 10,477,286 36.8
3,572,373 14.4 4,950,362 17.4
5,460,083 22.1 5,526,924 19.4
14,977,766 60.6 17,109,711 60.2
8,470,655 34.2 10,444,611 36.7
6,507,111 26.4 6,665,100 23.5
(€Y) 592,241 2.4 712,690 2.5
134,971 0.5 139,608 0.5
24,737,434 100.0 28,439,295 100.0
383,606 - 459,173 -
25,121,040 - 28,898,468 -
@
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
63,008 0.3 63,045 0.2
6,042,492 24.4 6,984,641 24.6
3,554,960 14.4 4,275,204 15.0
4,316,180 17.4 4,957,855 17.4
4,144,186 16.8 4,768,008 16.8
1,231,680 5.0 1,416,178 5.0
5,249,957 21.2 5,834,756 20.5
134,971 0.5 139,608 0.5
24,737,434 100.0 28,439,295 100.0
383,606 - 459,173 -
25,121,040 - 28,898,468 -
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
13,385,031 54.1 14,135,872 49.7
3 2,161,199 8.7 2,618,990 9.2
3 12 3,804,033 15.4 4,445,284 15.6
1 5 5,378,056 21.7 7,231,506 25.4
5 9,115 0.1 7,643 0.1
24,737,434 100.0 28,439,295 100.0
383,606 - 459,173 -
25,121,040 - 28,898,468 -
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35,887 1.4 41,506 1.4
5,697 0.2 7,619 0.3
2,673,760 100.0 2,896,867 100.0
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415,641 17.2 365,847 12.8
702,237 29.1 1,024,150 35.8
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167,876 7.0 218,824 7.7
797,219 33.0 873,029 30.6
2,412,393 100.0 2,855,765 100.0
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(324,962) - (372,043) -
7,003,374 58.3 8,403,910 61.3
) 3,916,097 32.6 4,140,341 30.2
1,084,438 9.1 1,158,521 8.5
12,003,909 100.0 13,702,772 100.0
10,797,714 97.3 12,331,675 96.8
295,986 2.7 403,384 3.2
11,093,700 100.0 12,735,059 100.0
(€]
2022 2023
291,067 316,890 25,823 8.9
165,864 196,647 30,783 18.6
) 158,544 174,218 15,674 9.9
283,747 294,461 10,714 3.8
31,793 32,675 882 2.8
2,240 4,475 2,235 99.8
317,780 331,611 13,831 4.4
115,112 117,196 2,084 1.8
71,334 61,821 (9,513) -13.3
17 45 28 164.7
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6.86
2023 3 31 2023 6 30 2023 9 30 2023 12 31
Tierl 2,718,721 2,700,755 2,804,623 2,874,949
38,568,788 39,738,910 40,374,763 41,914,122
7.05 6.80 6.95 6.86

1 39,872,989
2 (148,851)
3 -
4 26,372
5 7,222
6 2,171,193
7 (14,803)
8 41,914,122
1

37,890,204
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3

37,875,401
4 14,712
5 36,533
6 -
7 -
8
9 -
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13 -
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15 -
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22 6.86

103/524



O)

2023
689,328 39.0 2,458,322
3,538
3.67
3,515,641
ABC E 3.0
500

296

104/524

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

24.6
1,009
23

10,060



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
ABC
ABC
0.25
2023 52
512 1.64
6.91
2023
46 490
1.42 12.09
2023
54.9 53.7 3.2
2023
325 68.22
99.85
12378
99.81 99.29
FAQ
Wechat QR
ABC 2023 10

ABC

105/524



63
15

10

106/524

2023

3,751

104

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

10,200



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

PBOC NFRA

107/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

108/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Q)

NFRA
G-SIB

2023

41,661,983
2,719,798
4,209,525
4,008,909

722,722,396

15,012,802
3,119,707
8,326,961

- 230,530
10.0TC 2,764,071
11.

© 00 N O Ol b WN

483,709
12. 3 126,872
13. 650,139
14. 812,764

2023 9 PBOC NFRA PBOC
NFRA

2022
(€5}

35,326,637
3,156,992
4,209,854
1,939,985

556,515,686

13,919,028

9,105,333

936
86,237
22,738
2,141,057
407,750
415,814

O© 00 N O O W N

R e S
2 WNRFE O

157,434

=
[8)]

1,775,721
1,422,030

=
[e}

) G-SIBs

109/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
@ 2010 7 15
@
(©) (O]
(O]
(D)
2017 49 SSF 3 2023 12

31 SSF

110/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2023

CSRC
CSRC

111/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1 PBOC NFRA

CSRC

112/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

21

113/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2023 12 31
349,983,033,873
800,000,000
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1.00 319,244,210,777
1.00 30,738,823,096
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100 800,000,000
800,000,000
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2009 1 15 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000
2010 4 21 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000
2010 7 15 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000 | 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000
2010 7 16 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000 | 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000
2010 8 5 3,811,764,000 321,458,823,000 | 3,811,764,000 | 321,458,823,000
2010 8 13 3,335,294,000 324,794,117,000 | 3,335,294,000 | 324,794,117,000
2018 7 2 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873 | 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873
2023 12 31 349,983,033,873 349,983,033,873
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2014 11 13 400,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 40,000,000,000
2015 3 6 400,000,000 800,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 80,000,000,000
2015 3 18 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
2023 12 31 800,000,000 80,000,000,000
Tierl
411,529 20,541 432,070 2024 2
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MOF 123,515,185, 240 35.29
- 30,532,387, 343 8.72
SSF 11 23,520,968, 297 6.72
2
- 2,733,906,000 0.78
- 2,518,891, 687 0.72
1,842,751,177 0.53
- 1,259, 445,843 0.36
- 1,255,434,700 0.36
- 755,667,506 0.22
2023 12 31
100
100
141,744 244,351 40.50
4,534,005,036
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Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF  SSF

13,723,909,471

Guo Fa[2017] 49
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1.
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8,476,120 368 1,309 8,477,797
(13,253) - (1,289) (14,542)
8,462,867 368 20 8,463,255
2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
7,324,788 347 1,300 7,326,435
(19,150) - (1,285) (20,435)
7,305,638 347 15 7,306,000
()
2023 12 31
1 2 3
12
19,150 - 1,285 20,435
3,409 - - 3,409
(7,023) - 4 (7,019)
(2,283) - - (2,283)
13,253 - 1,289 14,542
2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
17,764 - 1,263 19,027
4,903 - - 4,903
126 - 22 148
(3,643) - - (3,643)
19,150 - 1,285 20,435
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18.3
( ) 2023 12 31
/
(1) 2,174,855 2,195,685 20,830 (3,870)
2 5,930 7,366 1,436
2,180,785 2,203,051 22,266 (3,870)
( ) 2022 12 31
/
(1) 1,694,785 1,697,405 2,620 (6,343)
%) 3,519 4,701 1,182
1,698,304 1,702,106 3,802 (6,343)
1
(@
( ) 12 3
2023 2022
1,102,019 870,339
243,852 235,712
703,570 429,063
120,006 135,994
2,169,447 1,671,108
0) 9,178 10,558
2,178,625 1,681,666
17,060 15,739
2,195,685 1,697,405
2
128173 124,853
1,938,190 1,486,760
129,322 85,792

2,195,685 1,697,405

(0] 412
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2023 1 1
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2022 1 1

2022 12 31

(i) 2023 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn

2023 12 31
1 2 3
12
2,104,783 885 17 2,195,685
(3.848) () (15 (3,870
2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,696,481 400 524 1,697,405
6,079) © (256) (6,343)
(i)
2023 12 31
1 2 3
12
6,078 9 256 6,313
@ 1 - -
- 77 (77) -
%81 - - 981
(1,224) () - (1,301)
(1,986) 3 (164) (2,153)
3848 7 15 3870
2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
10,457 189 115 10,761
(111) : 111 :
51 (51) i .
1,042 : i 1,042
(1,257) @ 30 (1,231)
(5,004) (125) i (5,129)
6,078 9 256 6,343
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2
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
6,636 4,564
730 137
7,366 4,701
2023 242 2022 6
612 2022 1
1 2022
19
(1
2023 12 31
(%) (%)
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,450 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 9,500,000,000 100.00 100.00
UK 2011 11 29 100,000,002 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 1,750,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 40,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 150,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
2014 12 23 7,556,038,271 100.00 100.00
2017 8 1 20,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
2019 7 25 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(i 3 2
(ii) 2012 12 31 51
2012 12 31 1,381 2016 12 31
917 2,844 3,761

51

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(2

A1
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20
(1
/ (%) (%)
(i) 2015 53,342,800,000 50.00 50.00
CFA
( (i) 2015 i3 313,000,000 31.95 33.33
)
(i) 2018 6,343,200,000 15.61 1111
( )
(ii) 2019 3,885,500,000 25.25 20.00
( )
( ) (i) 2020 6,000,000,000 15.67 14.29
( )
(iii) 2020 88,500,000,000 9.04 9.04
(iv) 2022 11,150,000,000 8.97 8.97
BNP (iv) 2023 1,000,000,000 49.00 49.00
( 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour | Afreque BSCA. BSCA.
50% BSCA.
(ii
(iii 2021 9.04%
(iv
(v

237/524
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! (%) (%)
2018 B 1,000 69.00 28.57
2018 B 500 74.00 33.33
2018 B 1,500 66.67 50.00
2018 i 2,000 50.00 50.00
(
2019 I 3,500 20.00 20.00
(
2019 B 1,000 50.00 50.00
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21
( )
2023 1 1 193,356 68,966 15,253 10,064 287,639
1,868 8,073 1,395 9,563 20,899
5,148 2,087 - (7,235) -
(2,366) (5,782) (196) 6) (8,350)
2023 12 31 198,006 73344 16,452 12,386 300,188
H i3 #
2023 1 1 (83,439) (47,128) (4,186) - (134,753)
(7.212) (7,044) (726) - (14,981)
1,136 5,169 324 - 6,629
2023 12 31 (89,514) (49,003) (4,588) - (143,105)
H 52 #
2023 1 1 (263) ® (12 (34 (3149
@ (22 (20 - (33
3 - - - 3
2023 12 31 (261) [70)) (22) (39 (344)
2023 1 1 109,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572
2023 12 31 108,231 24,314 11,842 12,352 156,739
( )
2022 1 1 189,309 65,906 16,398 9,516 281,129
2,673 7,203 730 6,709 17,315
4,948 1,204 - (6,152) -
(3,574) (5,347) (1,875) ©) (10,805)
2022 12 31 193,356 68,966 15,253 10,064 287,639
2022 1 1 (77,605) (45,724) (4,110) - (127,439)
(6,951) (6,289) (775) - (14,015)
1,117 4,885 699 - 6,701
2022 12 31 (83,439) (47,128) (4,186) - (134,753)
2 B2 B2 B2 2
2022 1 1 (270) (6) (81) (34 (391)
@) - (11) - (13
9 1 80 - 20
2022 12 31 (263) (5) (12) (34) (314)
2 B2 B2 B2 2
2022 1 1 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299
2022 12 31 109,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572

2023 12 31
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2023

2023

2021

2022

2022

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

I

I
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12 31

2023 2022
160,750 149,930
(14) 9)
160,736 149,921
138,684 14,807 189 10,197 (14,750) 794 149,921
- - - - (337) - (337)
138,684 14,807 189 10,197 (15,087 794 149584
12,366 1,907 (55) 72 (2131) (790) 12,019
- - - - (789) 922 (867)
151,050 16,714 134 10919 (19,007) 926 160,736
136059 11,844 272 8452  (14,437) 182 142,372
- - - - - 61 61
136,059 11,844 272 8452  (14,437) 243 142,433
2,625 2,963 (83) 1745 236 321 7,807
- - - - (549) 230 (319)
138,684 14,807 189 10,197  (14,750) 794 149,921
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31

/ / / /
() ()

604,204 151,050 554,795 138,684
49,280 12,317 50,271 12,570
66,858 16,714 59,228 14,807
43674 10,919 40,788 10,197
537 134 758 189
17,693 4,422 13,790 3,454
782,246 195,556 719,630 179,901
B Be
52 22
(125,487) (31,324) (109,465) (27,320)
(14,006) (3,496) (10,643) (2,660)
(139,493) (34,820 (120,108) (29,980)
52 22
642,753 160,736 599,522 149,921
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2023

2023

2023

2023

2023
2023

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022
2022

12 31

11
12 31

12 31

11
12 31

(3) 2023

1,874
1,884

2022
2022
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12 31
2023 2022
130,940 72,306
1) 19,191 19,982
2 11,502 10,877
(©)] 9,483 7,885
4,157 3,662
3,286 2,996
2,211 2,193
1,405 1,082
240 506
10,747 14,252
193,162 135,741
2023 12 31
21,418 147 21,565
4,891 38 4,929
(3,368) (50) (3,418)
22,941 135 23,076
(10,589) (99) (10,688)
(3,895) (22) (3917)
2,996 35 3,031
(11,488) (86) (11,574)
T i
10,829 48 10,877
11,453 49 11,502
18,940 154 19,094
5,249 36 5,285
(2,771) (43) (2,814)
21,418 147 21,565
3 2] Be
(8,825) (78) (8,903)
(3,844) (24) (3,868)
2,080 3 2,083
(10,589) (99) (10,688)
3 2] 5
10,115 76 10,191
10,829 48 10,877

1,393
1,560

oOoOooodn
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24

26

27

243/524

12 3
2023 2022
1,114,768 891,603
12,301 9,513
1,127,069 901,116
12 31
2023 2022
403,012 267,914
3,173,103 2,122,741
4,256 4,005
54,920 48,819
3,635,201 2,443,479
18,206 15,699
3,653,497 2,459,178
12 31
2023 2022
126,162 93,595
253,066 238,133
379,228 331,728
3,062 2,027
382,290 333,755
12 31
2023 2022
11,987 12,039
G4 S
530 248
80 -
610 248
12,597 12,287
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28
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
96,182 40,010
3,621 3,560
99,803 43,570
718 209
100,521 43,779
42
29
12 31
( ) 2023 2022
5,538,382 5,470,469
6,666,150 6,508,440
2l 22
5,068,105 3,686,042
10,453,689 8,479,927
@) 568,312 427,959
144,657 164,597
28,439,295 24,737,434
459,173 383,606
28,898,468 25,121,040
1
12 31
( ) 2023 2022
194,523 152,626
190,331 121,800
49,486 52,384
76,684 50,783
57,288 50,366
568,312 427,959
2 2023 12 31 28,889,726
2022 12 31 25,093,700
8,742 2022 12 31 27,340 2023 12 31

2022 12 31
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12 31
) 2023 2022

() 616,699 478,063

@ 296,543 306,523

©) 1,369,771 1,074,198

2,283,013 1,858,784

12,908 10,614

2,295,921 1,869,398

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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g o1 01 O O W W W W W w w

e
o o o

) 12 31
2023 2022

0] 15,000 15,000
(i) 5,000 5,000
(iii) 2,125 2,089
(iv) 2,125 2,089
(v) 2,125 -
(vi) - 209
Tier2 (vii) - 40,000
Tier2 (viii) 50,000 50,000
Tier2 (ix) 40,000 40,000
Tier2 (X) 40,000 40,000
Tier2 (xi) 40,000 40,000
Tier2 (xii) 50,000 50,000
Tier2 (xiii) 45,000 -
Tier2 (xiv) 30,000 -
Tier2 (xv) 30,000 -
Tier2 (xvi) 10,000 10,000
Tier2 (xvii) 20,000 20,000
Tier2 (xviii) 20,000 20,000
Tier2 (xix) 20,000 20,000
Tier2 (xx) 25,000 -
Tier2 (xxi) 30,000 -
Tier2 (xxii) 30,000 -
(xxiii) 48,414 57,643
(xxiv) - 20,000
(xxv) 20,000 20,000
(xxvi) 20,000 -
(xxvii) - 2,000
(xxviii) 2,500 2,500
(xxix) 2,400 -
(xxx) - 4,000
(xxxi) 2,000 2,000
(xxxii) 6,000 6,000
(xxxiii) - 500
(xxxiv) 1,099 1,099
(Xxxv) 2,998 2,998
(xxxvi) - 3,500
(xxxvii) 1,500 1,500
(xxxviii) 3,500 -
616,786 478,127
(87) (64)
616,699 478,063
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2022 10

2022 10

2021 1

2022 1

2023 11

2022 3

vii 2018 4

viii 2019 3

ix 2019 4

(x) 2020 4

(xi) 2022 6

(xi)2022 9

(xiii)2023 3

(xiv)2023 9

(xv)2023 10

(xvi)2019 3

xvii 2019 4

10

10

10

10

Tier2

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

10

10

10

10

10

15

15

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

Tier2

NFRA

2024
Tier2

2024
Tier2

2025 5
Tier2

2027
Tier2

2027
Tier2

2028
Tier2

2028
Tier2

2028
Tier2

2029
Tier2

2029
Tier2

3

4

10

2.40%

2.80%

1.25%

2.00%

SOFR+0.63%

SOFR+0.55%

4.45%

4.28%

4.30%

3.10%

3.45%

3.03%

3.49%

3.25%

3.45%

4.53%

4.63%

1

1

1

1
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2023 3 2
2023 4 27
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
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ooooooo
xviii) 2022 6 15  Tier2 365% 1
2032 6 Tier2 Tier2
NFRA Tier2
Xix) 2022 9 15  Tier2 334% 1
2032 9 Tier2 Tier2
NFRA Tier2
xxX) 2023 3 15  Tier2 361% 1
2033 3 Tier2 Tier2
NFRA Tier2
Xxi) 2023 9 15  Tier2 335% 1
2033 9 Tier2 Tier2
NFRA Tier2
xxii) 2023 10 15 Tier2 355% 1
2033 10 Tier2 Tier2
NFRA Tier2
xiii)
( ) 2023 12 31
(%)
2024 3 2026 9 2.70-2.99 4,584
2025 11 475 1,359
2024 1 2027 3 0.70-2.25 35,400
2025 8 SOFR+0.50 7,071
48,414
( ) 2022 12 31
(%)
2023 5 2024 4 2.60-2.90 2,801
2023 3 2023 6 0.50-0.66 4,906
2023 7 2027 3 0.70-2.25 46,982
2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.66 0.85 2,089
2023 8 115 865
57,643
Xxiv) 2020 4 3 199% 1 2023 4 21
xxv) 2021 4 3 338% 1
xxvi) 2023 6 3 265% 1
(owvii) 2020 11 3 390% 1 2023 11 26
xxviii) 2021 8 3 306% 1
XXiX) 2023 11 3 280% 1
(0009 2020 3 3 268% 1 2023 3
16

248/524
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) 2019 9 5 340% 1
(ool 2020 3 5 275% 1
(oo ( ) 2020 6 5 380% 1 ()
2023 6 20
) () 2021 4 5 410% 1
(00wv) 2021 6 5 380% 1
OV 2018 3 10 555% 1
2023 3 5
(ooxvii) 2020 3 10 360% 1 2025 3
2025 3 30 4.60%
(oouviii) 2023 3 10 367% 1 2028 3
2028 3 31 4.67%
22023 12 31
1 5 0.00% 6.06% 2022 12 31
1 5 -0.00% 5.85%
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3
2023 12 31
1 8 0.00%
5.84% 2022 12 31 2 1 0.00% 3.37%
2023 12 31
1 1 218%  2.75% 2022 12 31
2 1 0.00% 5.81%
31
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
149,169 123,978
96,067 112,572
) 78,601 71,469
39,523 47,716
%) 43,674 40,788
3) 11,699 10,918
9,752 8,418
MOF 302 1,732
49,141 60,635
477,928 478,226
1
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
() 76,127 68,820
() 1,937 1,891
() 537 758
78,601 71,469
( ) 2023
11 12 31
(@ 51,985 102,144 (95,964) 58,165
(a 177 10,326 (10,383) 120
(a 338 6,463 (6,480) 321
310 6,100 (6,116) 294
15 189 (189) 15
13 174 (175) 12
10,698 3,885 (3,460) 11,123
5,622 10,572 (9,796) 6,398
68,820 133,390 (126,083) 76,127
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2022
12 31
42,785 96,704 (87,504) 51,985
137 9,821 (9,781) 177
446 6,083 (6,191) 338
418 5,735 (5,843) 310
14 182 (181) 15
14 166 (167) 13
9,145 4,312 (2,759) 10,698
4,749 11,392 (10,519) 5,622
57,262 128,312 (116,754) 68,820
2023
12 31
628 11,973 (11,994) 607
64 115 (434) 45
1,199 8,051 (7,965) 1,285
1,891 20,439 (20,393) 1,937
2022
12 31
694 11,283 (11,349) 628
40 366 (342) 64
652 7,620 (7,073) 1,199
1,386 19,269 (18,764) 1,801
2023
12 31
758 13 (234) 537
2022
12 31
1,088 38 (368) 758

251/524
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12 31
2023 2022
2.39% 2.50%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
(i) 27,485 28,051
5,629 5,317
10,560 7,420
43,674 40,788
( ) 2023 12 31
1 2 3
12
2023 1 1 25,637 1,061 1,353 28,051
T BX T
1 2 (187) 187 - -
2 3 - (139) 139 -
2 1 121 (121) - -
3 2 - 564 (564) -
(@ 17,703 - - 17,703
(4,632) 937 215 (3,480)
€ (13,430) (650) (709) (14,789)

2023 12 31 25,212 1,839 434 27,485
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( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
2022 1 1 18,333 651 1,287 20,271
1 2 (113) 113 ; ]
2 3 - (133) 133 -
2 1 122 (122) ; ]
3 2 - 97 (97) -
@ 11,600 - - 11,600
4,045 1,204 479 5,818
@ (8,350) (839) (449) (9,638)
2022 12 31 25,637 1,061 1,353 28,051
a 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023
2022
3
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
1 3,996 3,710
15 7,174 6,931
5 1,290 1,070
12,460 11,711
11,699 10,918

253/524



1) A

(2) 2023 12 31
A H 2018 6
2023 7 3
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2023 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
2022 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
H
2022 12 31

19,960

19,960
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) ) )
5
0,
" 6.00% 100 400 40,000
5
5
o 5.50% 100 400 40,000
5
2019
5
4.39% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2019
5
_ 4.20% 100 350 35,000
5
2
2020
5
3.48% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2020
5
0,
4.50% 100 350 35,000
5
)
2021
5
3.76% 100 400 40,000
5
2
2022 5
3.49%
_ : 100 500 50,000
2
2022 5
3.17%
_ : 100 300 30,000
2
2023 5
3.21%
_ : 100 400 40,000

2
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(2) 800 1 100
2014 11 400 5 6.00% 1
5 5 2.29% 2019 11 1
5 2019 11 5 3.03% 2.29%
5.32% 1
2015 3 400 5 5.50% 1
5 5 2.24% 2020 3 6
5 2020 3 11 2.60% 2.24%
4.84% 1
Tier2
NFRA [2019]42 )
A
1 243 2018 6 25,189 A
1 243 2.46
NFRA Tierl
2023 12 31 79,899 (2022 12 31 :79,899

)
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2019 8 16

4.39%

2019 9 3

4.20%

2020 5 8

3.48%

2020 8 20

4.50%

2021 11 12

3.76%

2022 2 18

2022 9 1

2019 120
85
100
35
100
2020 120
85
100
35
100
2021 120
40
100
50
100
30
100
2023 200

257/524

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl
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Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tierl
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2019 8 20
5
2019 9 5
5
2020 5 12
5
2020 8 24
5
2021 11 16
2022 2 22
3.49%
2022 9 5
3.17%
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2023 8 24 40 Tierl 2023 8 28
100
5 5 3.21%

5 NFRA

NFRA

Tierl
Tierl
2023 12 31 Tierl 399,968 (2022 12 31
: 359,970 )
2010 2018
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35
( ) 2023
2022 12 31 47,542 (11,655) 35,887
665 (157) 508
2023 1 1 48,207 (11,812) 36,395
16,153 (4,117) 12,036
(521) 130 (391)
(8,821) 2,488 (6,333)
612 (167) 445
()] - @
766 - 766
(1,881) 470 (1,412)
2023 12 31 54,514 (13,008) 41,506
( ) 2022
2021 12 31 44,313 (11,482) 32,831
(1,169) 292 (877)
2022 1 1 43,144 (11,190) 31,954
(15,523) 3,749 (11,774)
(434) 109 (325
16,838 (4,407) 12,431
128 (33) 95
3,857 - 3,857
(468) 117 (351)

2022 12 31 47,542 (11,655) 35,887
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2024 3 28

10% 26,240

25%

37

MOF

2023 12 31
2022 36,984
2022 32,221

2024 3 28
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GAAP 10%
50%
2021
2022 25309
[2012] 20 2012 7 1
1.5%
67,600
2022 12 31 67,557
2023 6 29
75,629
2023
3
12 31
2023 2022
71,140 67,180
338,123 169,295
156,452 145,374
143,220 172,663
1,803,790 1,151,121
2,512,725 1,705,633
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oooooog
( )
2023 12 31
397,503 200502 132,037 108658 132,866 179421 23,223 49,398 - 1,223698
(90,2000 (142,182)  (85091)  (96,130)  (82364)  (88,601) (5613  (41,767) - (651,%48)
( )i
(382,914) 90,684 55,519 85,900 66,662 58,628 26,476 (955) - -
(75521) 149,004 102,465 98428 117,064 149,448 24,086 6,676 - 571,750
39,613 13,708 10,710 7,998 8,201 10,646 1,581 2,163 - 94,710
(4,179) (2,255) (1,940) (1,405) (2,164) (1,977) (432) (265) - (14,617)
35,434 11,453 8,770 6,593 6,127 8,669 1,149 1,898 - 80,003
/
() 19,723 318 a7 52 31 84 21 2,848 - 23,124
/
9,687 (26) (234) (337) (%) (1,245) (158) 9,172 - 16,764
1,019 - - - - - - 19 - 1,038
(5,912) 1,146 708 667 542 1,447 141 3,960 - 2,699
(15570) 161,895 111,756 105403 123769 158,403 25,239 24,573 - 695,468
(17.486)  (42981)  (30,754)  (35379)  (42790)  (57,153)  (15183)  (10,579) - (252305)
2259  (33117)  (28405)  (13904)  (25486)  (32.508) (3619) (927) - (185,707)
- - - (6) 3 (152) (7 (58) - (226)
Y (30,797) 85,797 52,597 56,114 55,490 68,590 6,430 13,009 - 307,230
62 - - - - - - 127 - 189
()
(30,735) 85,797 52,507 56,114 55,490 68,590 6,430 13,136 - 307,419
(37,599)
269,820
3191 332 2,424 3,306 3,565 4332 1,205 276 - 21,621
5,896 4,403 1,132 1,747 2,766 4,324 601 4,618 - 25,487
2023 12 31
7558728 8474485 5518775 7,096,125 5829445 7,199,820 1,702,189 1324190 (4,991,518) 39,712,239
2151 - - - - - - 6,235 - 8,386
160,750
39,872,989
22,161 31,104 19,109 29,538 28,509 43,033 9,911 28,814 - 212,179
(4656,956) (8,489977) (5527,881) (7,115660) (5869,208) (7,268814) (1,714337) (1,285316) 4991564 (36,936,585)
(39,537)
(36,976,122)
6,248 764394 516437 522572 425483 414,311 96,407 109,913 - 2,855,765

®
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( )
2022 12 31
340481 185872 126,792 106,041 125,002 172,289 23,777 28,120 - 1,108,464
(74888)  (113455)  (61,901)  (83036)  (69,369) (76645  (22675)  (16,612) - (518581)
( )i
(324,776) 75,809 39,376 75,998 58,671 53,819 23,288 (2,185) - -
(59,183) 148,226 104,267 99,003 114,394 149,463 24,390 9,323 - 589,883
38,434 13,864 10,132 8,739 8,383 10,694 1,880 3392 - 95,518
(3.449) (2.532) (1,907) (1,488) (2,094) (2,004) (435) (327) - (14,236)
34,985 11,332 8,225 7,251 6,289 8,690 1,445 3,065 - 81,282
7,968 (142) (11) 23 23 43 14 (2,400) - 5,519
/
4,159 (212) (299) (165) 24 (3,005) (40) 5,446 - 5,909
154 - - - - - - 6 - 160
(207) 1,642 980 641 828 1,114 189 7,343 - 12,530
(12,124) 160,848 113,162 106,753 121,558 156,305 25,998 22,783 - 695,283
(15377)  (41,208)  (29,738)  (34422)  (41175)  (56358)  (14,865) (10,430 - (243571)
8,135 (17,916)  (20,160) (9.983)  (30566)  (66,701) (6,050) (2,025) - (145266)
- - - 7 (19) (30) ) (12) - (59)
(19,366) 101,726 63,264 62,355 49,798 33216 5078 10,316 - 306,387
56 - - - - - - 10 - 66
(19,310) 101,726 63,264 62,355 49,798 33,216 5078 10,326 - 306,453
B B & B 53 = 53 i 32 (47,587)
B 53 & = 53 = 53 i 32 258,866
2,338 3,242 2,641 3,235 3322 4373 1,193 401 - 20,745
5,518 1,656 1,555 2,509 3813 4,672 734 2,405 - 22,862
2022 12 31
6,499,065 7,213176 4496584 6166474 4953791 6386015 1470623 1241216 (4,651,386) 33,775,558
2,105 - - - - - - 5,987 - 8,092
2 5 i3 3 i 5 i 53 32 149,930
i i i3 3 5 5 i 53 32 33925488
o) 19,786 28,599 17,393 30,071 30,283 43,660 11,297 24,889 - 205,978
(3689,997) (7,285,870) (4,489,449) (6,189,612) (4,991,794) (6,448,867) (1,480,796) (1,279,004) 4,651,386 (31,204,003)
i i3 i3 2 i3 i i 32 2y (47,725)
i i3 i3 2 i3 i3 i 32 2 (31,251,728)
i i i3 2 i3 i3 i i3 EY i3
13308 640617 420037 454542 356150 353,388 75,901 98,450 - 2412393
()]
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( )
2023 12 31
473,888 334,386 407,274 8,150 1,223,698
(217,604) (270,601) (158,505) (5,238) (651,948)
( )i
(36,887) 276,058 (239,171)
219,397 339,843 9,598 2,912 571,750
59,445 31,114 693 3,458 94,710
(6,873) (7,261) (44) (439) (14,617)
52,572 23,853 649 3,019 80,093
/ 23,688 (564) 23,124
/ (1,943) (81) 9,616 9,172 16,764
1,019 19 1,038
1,498 1,222 (5,356) 5,335 2,699
271,524 364,837 39,214 19,893 695,468
(81,675) (130,482) (29,268) (10,880) (252,305)
(100,615) (41,347) 6,188 67 (135,707)
(181) (3) - (42) (226)
89,053 193,005 16,134 9,038 307,230
189 189
89,053 193,005 16,134 9,227 307,419
3 53 23 3 (37,599)
3 B B 3 269,820
5,521 11,549 4,220 331 21,621
4,482 11,484 4,902 4,619 25,487
2023 12 31 3 B B 23 52
13,958,729 8,025,832 17,257,302 470,376 39,712,239
8,386 8,386
&g B3l B2 Be 23]
B 23 160,750
B 3 B
22 33 39,872,989
BY 23 Bs 2% 23]
(11,715,620)  (17,803,059) (7,042,912) (374,994)  (36,936,585)
3 B B B
3 3 3 (39,537)
B2 23l B2 Bg 23
23 B 23 (36,976,122)
3 22 B
1,946,877 908,888 2,855,765
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( )
2022 12 31
417,689 343,674 339,641 7,460 1,108,464
(160,818) (239,481) (115,219) (3,063) (518,581)
( )/ (29,880) 224,630 (194,750)
226,991 328,823 29,672 4,397 580,883
57,633 32,256 905 4,724 95,518
(7,470) (6,466) (44) (256) (14,236)
50,163 25,790 861 4,468 81,282
- - 6,707 (1,188) 5,519
/ (741) (254) 1,326 5,578 5,909
154 6 160
1,131 989 5,716 4,694 12,530
277,544 355,348 44,436 17,955 695,283
(86,066) (123,520) (24,248) (9,737) (243,571)
(101,917) (45,775) 2,814 (388) (145,266)
(47) 12) (59)
89,514 186,053 23,002 7,818 306,387
66 66
89,514 186,053 23,002 7,884 306,453
23 i3 i3 23 (47,587)
23 i3 23 22 258,866
5,707 10,087 3,662 389 20,745
4,835 11,204 4,418 2,405 22,862
202 12 31 23 32 A i3 i
11,695,117 7,512,287 14,162,923 405,231 33,775,558
8,092 8,002
23 i3
149,930
22
33,925,488
52
(9,945976)  (15,451,979) (5,469,192) (336,856)  (31,204,003)
22
(47,725)
82
(31,251,728)
2,308,207 104,186 2,412,393

266/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

267/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2023 12 31
316,890 906,808 1,223,698
(196,647) (455,301) (651,948)
I( 174,218 (174,218)
294,461 277,289 571,750
38,726 55,984 94,710
(6,051) (8,566) (14,617)
32,675 47,418 80,093
(648) 23,772 23,124
« ) (51) 16,815 16,764
1,038 1,038
5174 (2,475) 2,699
331,611 363,857 695,468
(117,196) (135,109) (252,305)
(61,821) (73,886) (135,707)
(45) (181) (226)
152,549 154,681 307,230
189 189
152,549 154,870 307,419
(37,599)
H 269,820
8,805 12,816 21,621
4,655 20,832 25,487
H # 52
2023 12 31
13,702,772 26,178,127 (168,660) 39,712,239
- 8,386 8,386
160,750
i
39,872,989
(12,735,059)  (24,370,186) 168,660  (36,936,585)
i
(39,537)
(36,976,122)
H 52
1,016,655 1,839,110 2,855,765
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( )
2022 12 31
291,067 817,397 1,108,464
(165,864) (352,717) (518,581)
I ) 158,544 (158,544)
283,747 306,136 589,883
37,779 57,739 95,518
(5,986) (8,250) (14,236)
31,793 49,489 81,282
(1,990) 7,509 5,519
« (211) 6,120 5,909
160 160
4,441 8,089 12,530
317,780 377,503 695,283
(115,112) (128,459) (243,571)
(71,334) (73,932) (145,266)
(17) (42) (59)
131,317 175,070 306,387
66 66
131,317 175,136 306,453
i3 B i3 (47,587)
i3 B i 258,866
8,291 12,454 20,745
6,012 16,850 22,862
2022 12 31 i3 i i i2
12,003,909 22,157,816 (386,167) 33,775,558
8,092 8,092
i i
g 149,930
i i
£ 33,925,488
tH 82
(11,093,700)  (20,496,470) 386,167  (31,204,003)
54 (47,725)
& (31,251,728)
i a2
815,000 1,597,393 2,412,393
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40
1 MOF
2023 12 31 MOF 35.29% 2022 12 31 35.29%
MOF
MOF
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
1,345,831 12.00% 913,436 9.58%
MOF 340,595 3.04% 333,078 3.49%
33 33 2
39 53
2,935 0.01% 4,377 0.02%
(MOF ) 4 0.00% 4 0.00%
MOF 302 0.06% 1,732 0.36%
( ) 12 3
2023 2022
(%) (%)
44,768 3.66% 32,424 2.92%
(3398) 0.05% (58) 0.01%
1,707 1.80% 1,382 1.45%
143 0.62% 103 1.87%
MOF
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
% %
MOF 0.00-9.00 0.00-9.00

0.0001-5.49 0.0001-4.43

42
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2
828,209
2023 12 31 40.14% 2022 12 31 40.03%
) 12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
12,009 0.06% 14,012 0.07%
36,044 0.32% 31,747 0.33%
22 28
52 22
14,166 0.05% 11,745 0.05%
) 12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
1,218 0.10% 1,077 0.10%
(138) 0.02% (395) 0.08%
3 0.01% 3 0.05%
) 12 31
2023 2022
% %
2.70 3.65

228-4.23 2.15-5.15
1.40-1.90 0.45-2.10
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12 3
2023 2022
(%) (%)
381,644 35.33% 120,662 19.13%
90,166 17.47% 61,552 12.30%
3,964 15.94% 6,049 19.69%
78,375 4.33% 46,008 3.92%
27,397 0.13% 31,468 0.17%
1,072,258 9.56% 851,275 8.93%
22 32
22 22
169,162 4.63% 122,269 4.97%
120,656 31.56% 91,971 27.56%
5,040 18.12% 5,604 18.08%
5,902 5.87% 6,155 14.06%
473 0.00% 3,032 0.01%
22 22
52 3
2,000 0.42% 2,000 0.45%
52 22
22 32
444 0.12% 1,239 0.38%
2 3
2023 2022
(%) (%)
15,820 1.29% 20,359 1.84%
(1,878) 0.29% (2,918) 0.56%
(1,077) N/A 699 12.67%

2,352 14.03% 4,194 70.98%
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( ) 12 31

2023 2022

% %
-0.60 - 4.23 -0.90-2.50
-0.15-6.58 -0.25-9.50
-0.004 - 5.00 0.00-7.15
1.75- 4.60 2.65-4.40
0.00-4.90 0.00-6.15
0.00-8.75 0.00-5.98
0.00-6.10 0.00-3.99
2.75-6.02 -0.20- 6.03
0.02-5.50 0.00- 6.26
1.81-5.87 2.00-4.23
0.05-155 0.0001-3.99

484 4.84
3
2023 12 31 SSF
6.72% 2022 12 31 6.72% SSF
( ) 12 31
2023 2022
(%) %)
36,114 2.00% 41,549 3.54%
32 23
52 B2
129,383 0.45% 78,773 0.31%
52 i
22 22
1,250 0.26% 1,250 0.28%
( ) 2 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
31 0.00% 29 0.00%

(4,518) 0.69% (2,798) 0.54%
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12 31
2023 2022
% %
250-450 2.45 - 4.30
0.40-4.26 0.45 - 4.26
484 4.84
12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
84,613 16.39% 83,895 16.77%
1,218 0.01% 601 0.01%
354 0.18% 288 0.21%
23 23 22 32
52 22
5,901 0.16% 15,881 0.65%
952 0.25% 798 0.24%
2,025 0.01% 2,247 0.01%
44 0.01% 15 0.00%
52 22
52 23
889 0.24% 2,866 0.87%
10 0.00%

274/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooood
12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
1,625 0.13% 1,484 0.13%
17 0.10% 198 3.35%
2,006 2.12% 1,941 2.03%
196 7.26% 150 1.20%
174) 0.03% (512) 0.10%
(101) 0.69% (1,655) 11.63%
(335) 0.13% (354) 0.15%
12 31
2023 2022
% %
1.62 - 7.40 0.30- 6.68
0.00 - 2.80 0.00
0.00 - 5.30 0.00-4.13
1.62 - 5.90 1.25
0.01-3.10 0.01-1.85
12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
996 0.00% 1,043 0.01%
H T B 3
3% 3% 3 3
47 0.00% 24 0.00%
66 0.00% 2,664 0.01%
22 32

20 20 20
0 A 0 A 0A

N
> ol

4 0.00%
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( ) 12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
39 0.00% 21 0.00%
(€)) 0.00% 9) 0.00%
12 31
2023 2022
% %
3.85 3.65- 4.60
0.00- 155 0.00 - 1.65
0.20-1.75 0.25-1.85
7
2023 12 31
7.40 2022 12 31 957
CSRC
2023 12 31 12.56 2022 12
31 17.66
( ) 12 3
2023 2022
10.86 15.69
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 2022
2022 11.84
2023 8 29 15.69
2022
8 CBIRC
2023 12 31 NFRA
206,272 44,692 2022 12 31
NFRA

95,327 12,792
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12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
7,290 0.03% 7,342 0.03%
52 i
32 22 2
7,500 1.56% 7,500 1.70%
12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
(298) 0.05% (279) 0.05%
2 A
2023 2022
% %
0.00 - 5.00 0.00- 5.00
484-532 4.84-532
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10

(

(

)

)

12 31
2023 2022

(%) (%)
381,644 35.33% 120,662 19.13%
90,166 17.47% 61,552 12.30%
3,964 15.94% 6,049 19.69%
114,489 6.33% 87,557 7.47%
40,402 0.19% 46,523 0.25%
2,794,728 24.92% 2,129,536 22.35%
169,209 4.63% 122,293 4.97%
120,656 31.56% 91,971 27.56%
5,040 18.12% 5,604 18.08%
5,902 5.87% 6,155 14.06%
154,313 0.53% 107,933 0.43%
306 0.06% 1,736 0.36%
10,750 2.24% 10,750 2.44%
444 0.12% 1,239 0.38%
4 0.00%

12 31
2023 2022

(%) (%)
61,876 5.06% 53,910 4.86%
(7,171) 1.10% (6,457) 1.25%
(931) N/A 805 14.59%
2,352 14.03% 4,194 70.98%
1,707 1.80% 1,382 1.45%
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41.
1)
/
2
WMPs WMPs
WMPs WMPs WMPs
2023 12 31 WMPs 1,774,790 2022
12 31 2,004,687 WMPs 1,685,287
2022 12 31 + 1,933,155 2023 12 31
WMPs 3,440 2022 5,742
WMPs 84.2 2022
WMPs
WMPs 2023 12 31
4,105.5 3 2022
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
WMPs
2023 12 31 308,643 (2022 12 31
423,668 2023
1,166 (2022 1,556 )
WMPs
2023 12 31
80,049 2022 12 31 73,497
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NFRA
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Ogoooood
/ 2023 12
5,629 2022 12 31 5,317
31

12 31

2023 2022
4914 1,929
12 31

2023 2022
66,608 31,744
299,239 383,897
365,847 415,641

1,024,150 702,237
873,029 797,219
373915 329,420
218,824 167,876

2,855,765 2,412,393

(2013 1 1 )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

12 31

2023 2022

1,155,402 1,186,585
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28
)
31 1,218,412
16
12 31
MOF
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 51,367

2023 12 31

100,521
12

43

2023 12 31
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12 31
2023 2022
103,516 44,352
3,623 3,565
107,139 47,917
2023 12 31
(2022 12 31 43,779
1,558,063 2022 12
2023 12 31 2022
48,783
3 5
2022 12 31
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OooooOodd
8.7 6
2023 12 31 116,040
(2022 12 31 101,538 ) 24,238 2022 12 31
9,736
91,802 2022 12 31 91,802
2023 12 31
8,519 (2022 12 31 8,850 )
2023 12 31
18,516 2022 11,883 8.7
6
2023 12 31 42
46,884 (2022 12 31 1,769 )

2023 12 31
26,400 2022 12 31 29,000
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LGD

LGD
LGD

IFRS 9
30

IFRS 9

90
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2023 12 31
2024
5.00 5.50

12 31

DCF

PD LGD

2024

GDP

4.40

12

10%
5%
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12 31

2023 2022
2,850,907 2,481,950
1,080,076 630,885
516,181 500,330
24,873 30,715
1,809,559 1,172,187
@) 21,731,766 18,980,973
392,939 383,048
(ii) 8,463,255 7,306,000
(iii) 2,195,685 1,697,405
143,663 87,396
39208904 33,270,889
(iv) 2,828,280 2,384,342

42,037,184 35,655,231

2023 12 31

2

1 3

12

13,977,605 51,293 14,028,898
245,659 245,659
241,556 241,556
13,977,605 538,508 14,516,113
(432,910) (215,054) (647,964)

13,544,695 323,454 13,868,149
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2023 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,930,111 34,735 7,964,846
74,458 74,458
59,204 59,204
7,930,111 168,397 8,098,508
(171,622) (63,269) (234,891)
7,758,489 105,128 7,863,617
2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
11,726,113 21,104 11,747,217
211,587 211,587
221,992 221,992
11,726,113 454,683 12,180,796
(377,699) (186,959) (564,658)
11,348,414 267,724 11,616,138
2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,431,294 25,819 7,457,113
76,848 76,848
49,070 49,070
7,431,294 151,737 7,583,031
(160,093) (58,103) (218,196)

7,271,201 93,634 7,364,835
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
(i)
( ) 2023 12 31
2
1 3
12
8,476,120 8,476,120
368 368
1,309 1,309
8,476,120 1,677 8,477,797
(13,253 (1,289) (14,542)
8,462,867 388 8,463,255
( ) 2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,324,788 7,324,788
347 347
1,300 1,300
7,324,788 1,647 7,326,435
(19,150) (1,285) (20,435)

7,305,638 362 7,306,000
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(iii)

(iv)

(v) 2023 12 31

(vi)

2022 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2023 12 31
2
1 3
12
2,194,783 554 2,195,337
331 331
17 17
2,194,783 902 2,195,685
2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,696,481 400 1,696,881
507 507
17 17
1,696,481 924 1,697,405
2 3
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12 31
2023 2022

(%) (%)
550,600 39 607,201 5.0
3,733,534 25.7 2,953,442 243
2,038,897 14.1 1,645,878 135
1,983,918 137 1,663,666 136
2,161,883 149 1,784,698 147
3,155,050 218 2,686,130 221
468,891 32 407,763 34
385,877 2.7 410,068 3.4
14,487,740 1000 12,158,846 100.0
45 0.0 43 0.0
1,804,749 224 1,777,354 235
1,643,329 203 1,588,312 21.0
1,158,539 143 1,083,299 143
1,458,634 18.1 1,308,100 173
1,758,985 218 1,561,455 20.7
235,634 2.9 226,719 30
16,614 0.2 16,779 0.2
8,076,529 100.0 7,562,061 100.0

22,564,269 19,720,907 A
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12 31
2023 2022
(%) (%)
2,736,603 18.9 2,386,103 19.8
2,499,350 17.3 2,107,478 17.3
2,148,952 14.8 1,768,094 14.5
1,487,779 10.3 1,184,206 9.7
918,851 6.3 891,470 7.3
1,145,331 7.9 874,684 7.2
1,131,128 7.8 827,723 6.8
968,329 6.7 928,185 7.6
496,062 34 361,175 30
283,272 20 223745 1.8
672,083 46 605,983 5.0
14,487,740 100.0 12,158,846 100.0
5,170,827 64.0 5,346,608 70.7
746,819 9.2 577,522 7.6
356,018 4.4 209,036 2.8
700,031 8.7 647,651 8.6
1,102,834 13.7 781,244 10.3
8,076,529 100.0 7,562,061 100.0
22,564,269 19,720,907
2023 12 31
1
1 5 5
4,082,548 1,908,519 2,507,474 8,588,541
810,939 613,035 1,492,090 2,916,064
1,618,549 735,402 6,265,124 8,619,075
365,530 137,767 1,937,292 2,440,589

6,877,566 3,394,723 12,291,980 22,564,269

2022 12 31
1
1 5 5
3,630,142 1,210,988 2,121,511 6,862,641
727,408 526,599 1,036,344 2,290,351
1,412,521 589,521 6,297,040 8,299,082
280,826 132,282 1,855,725 2,268,833

5,950,897 2,459,390 11,310,620 19,720,907
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0]
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EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2023 12 31
31 91 361
30 20 360 3 3
11,473 8,353 21,7719 9,247 4,155 55,007
4,029 1,201 8,065 11,702 1,295 26,292
46,465 36,278 39,491 27,138 5,799 155,171
2,145 1,083 1,440 2,965 427 8,060
64,112 46,915 70,775 51,052 11,676 244,530
2022 12 31
31 91 361
30 90 360 3 3
11,058 6,758 14,117 6,548 3,695 42,176
11,931 3,978 6,073 9,263 1,141 32,386
38,066 30,496 31,125 24,384 6,450 130,521
822 223 3,189 2,389 1,133 7,756
61,877 41,455 54,504 42,584 12,419 212,839
1
12 31
2023 2022

188,740 161,691
112,020 109,371
300,760 271,062

293/524
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2023 7 1

2023 12 31

3,299

NFRA

44,525

2022

294/524

2023 12 31

544

18.2
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MOF

MOF

i 2023

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

()
) 2023 12 31
6,904,528 - - 6,904,528
2,240,058 - - 2,240,058
869,390 - - 869,300
(i) 184,608 331 17 184,956
94,106 - - 94,106
340,595 - - 340,595
24,919 368 20 25,307
10,658,204 699 37 10,658,940
) 2022 12 31
5,664,931 5,664,931
2,060,235 2,060,235
600,420 600,420
(ii) 229,401 507 17 229,925
94,114 94,114
333,078 333,078
20,340 347 15 20,702
9,002,519 854 32 9,003,405
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12 31 2,409 2022 12 31 894
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EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2023 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

409,263 1,196 10,524 2,501,064 2,922,047
146,973 145,871 97,137 672,860 17,235 1,080,076
155,745 78,951 222,321 59,164 516,181
5,635 7,568 8,773 2542 355 24,873
3872 1,793,874 10333 1,480 1,809,559
26,167 860,084 1,426,659 4,863,202 4883398 9672256 21,731,766
3,083 2,767 36,500 105,554 41,950 226,153 131,400 547,407
387 81,055 179,635 572,798 2502672 5,126,708 8,463,255
17 84,594 291,167 596,560 641,529 581,818 7,366 2,203,051
4157 125,775 1,827 302 3,025 883 7,694 143,663
34,600 685,094 3,131452 2,120,448 7,057,097 8149373 15614984 2,639,830 39,441,878
(30 (123,464) (180,958) (822,617) (1,127,069)
(2,346,706) (213,026) (347,853) (509,181) (229,323) (7,408) (3,653,497)
(138,121) (134,140) (104,937) (2728 (2:368) (382,290)
(12,987) (80) (321) (209) (12,597)
(7,353) (8.024) (10,492) (1.948) (27.817)
(18,776) (40,684) (41,061) (100,521)
(14,159,827) (875,952) (1,846,343) (4,566,756) (7,441,935) (7,655) (28,898,468)
(166,810) (496,344) (1,018,088) (1297038)  (484,976) (2:295,921)
(125,567) (1,799) (768) (4,209 (11,433) (16,223) (159,994)
(16,644,117) (1,545,381) (3.055,114) (7.077.657) (7.817.275)  (518,630) (36,658,174)
34600 (15959,029) 1,586,071 (925,666) (20,560) 332,008 1509354 2,639,830 2,783,704
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OooooOodd
2022 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
236,475 1,046 1,479 2,310,130 2,549,130
84,380 68,096 155,947 315,608 6,854 630,885
211,786 87,740 194,248 5,166 1,390 500,330
5414 9,579 12,175 3,394 153 30,715
3,872 1,149,796 9,671 8,848 1,172,187
20,179 681,650 1,062,417 4,434,220 3011518 8,870,989 18,980,973
3,120 4,890 23,260 87,262 43539 236,736 123,250 522,057
361 59,732 137,709 557,500 2398673 4,152,025 7,306,000
17 55,910 108,643 412,304 598,101 522,430 4,701 1,702,106
3,662 70,808 1,149 186 3,026 856 7,709 87,39
28,001 394,783 2,238,423 1,596,198 6,026,670 6,968,101 13,791,432 2,438,081 33,481,779
(33) (112,661) (103,477) (684,017) (928) (901,116)
(1,683,473) (125,841) (210,189) (298,685) (140,990) (2,459,178)
(3442) (117,150) (100,850) (100,734) (8,951) (2,628) (333,755)
(12,039) (a4) (204) (12,287)
(9,158) (9,093) (11,057) (1,696) (31,004)
(13,768) (16,034) (13,277) (700) (43,779)
(13,399,420) (757,431) (1,489,777) (3,918,388) (5,546,897) (9,127) (25,121,040)
(44,857) (517,156) (834,459) (137,878)  (335,048) (1,869,398)
(147,415) (1,860) (650) (7,248) (10,744) (15,482) (183,399)
(15,245,822) (1,182,726) (2,447,226) (5,867,909) (5848988)  (362,285) (30,954,956)
28,091 (14,851,039) 1,055,697 (851,028) 158,761 1119113 13,429,147 2,438,081 2,526,823
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2023 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

400,263 1,19 10,524 2,501,064 2,922,047
147,065 146,068 97,971 684,001 18,570 1,003,675
157,148 80,361 226,642 66,027 530,178
3915 1,797,692 10,367 1,491 1,813,465
75,740 951,002 1,599,552 5,619,928 7135383 14,229,993 29,611,688
3,083 2814 37,014 111,317 71775 249,678 131,400 607,081
1,302 82,127 190,919 721,280 3324226 6,097,362 10,417,216
21 84,849 295,971 632,303 747,610 681,570 7.366 2,449,690
5111 128,432 1,828 302 3026 883 7,695 147,277
86,089 687,843 3,223,618 2,313,653 8,010,512 11,364,474 21,266298 2,639,830 49,502,317
(30) (123,611) (181,679) (837,139) (1,142,459)
(2,346,706) (215,353) (350,315) (519,072 (243,566) (7,735) (3,682,747)
(139,279) (135,438) (106,075) 3732) (2,816) (387,340)
(11,987) (80) (321 (209) (12,597)
(18,798) (41,123 (41,957) (101,878)
(14,150,827 (876,853) (1,853,472) (4,626,084) (7,843,250) (8,637) (29,368,123)
(167,159) (500,902) (1,042,618) (205960) (572,154 (2,488,793)
(125,567) (1,824) (802) (4,370) (11,836) (16,283) (160,682
(16,644,117) (1,542,957) (3,063,731) (7,177,636) (8,308553)  (607,625) (37,344,619)
86,089 (15,956,274) 1,680,661 (750,078) 832,876 3055921 20,658,673 2,639,830 12,247,698
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2022 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
236,475 1,046 1,479 2,310,130 2,549,130
84,380 69,226 157,741 317,966 7,459 636,772
214,343 89,477 197,592 8,002 1,461 510,875
3915 1,152,070 9,713 8,951 1,174,649
69,763 761,379 1,201,123 5,098,813 5913248 13,302,937 26,347,263
3,120 4372 23,49 93,412 78,252 265,549 123,250 591,451
1,308 60,167 146,879 690,483 3111553 5,005,895 9,016,285
121 56,112 110,418 440,003 708,529 610,826 4,701 1,930,710
5203 73,607 1,174 193 3132 858 7,710 91,967
80,310 397,672 2,318,843 1,740,086 6,851,831 9,827,901 19194378 2,438,081 42,849,102
(33 (112,845) (104,746) (697,076) (944) (915,644)
(1,683,473) (127,254) (212,647) (302,080) (144,069) (2,469,523)
(3.442) (117,966) (101,840) (101,573) (10,676) (2,891) (338,388)
(12,039) (44) (204) (12,287)
(13,775) (16,108) (13,482) (701) (44,066)
(13,399,420) (758,152) (1,495,385) (3,974,506) (5,900,104) (10,666) (25,538,233)
(44,980) (520,814) (850,121) (195391)  (386,684) (1,997,990)
(147,414) (1,906) (684) (7,447) (11,257) (15,560) (184,268)
(15,245,821) (1,176,878) (2,452,224 (5,946,329) (6,263346)  (415,801) (31,500,399)
80,310 (14,848,149) 1,141,965 (712,138) 905,502 3564555 18778577 2,438,081 11,348,703
2023 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5
(26) (549) (1,443) (42) (2,060)
2022 12 31
3
12 1
1 5
(1,392) 489 1,558 67 722
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2023 12 31
3
12
5 5
468,867 343,763 753,701 52,155 828 1,619,314
(472,545) (344,648) (753,886) (49,782) (464) (1,621,325)
(3.678) (885) (185) 2,373 364 (2,011)
2022 12 31
3
12
5 5
216,726 272,243 469,123 296,445 36,192 1,290,729
(219,050) (272,191) (469,332) (294,755) (36,015) (1,291,343)
(2,324) 52 (209) 1,690 177 (614)
2023 12 31
1
1 5
100,012 108,100 157,735 365,847
1,024,150 1,024,150
873,029 873,029
177,954 174,552 21,409 373,915
196,217 22,257 350 218,824
2,371,362 304,909 179,494 2,855,765
2022 12 31
1
1 5
129,074 125,563 161,004 415,641
702,237 702,237
797,219 797,219
155,951 156,531 16,938 329,420
157,063 10,448 365 167,876
1,941,544 292,542 178,307 2,412,393
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOood
VaR
)
2023
37 63 102 8
) 252 236 327 120
14 32 42 14
VaR 249 246 347 142
)
2022
63 43 70 29
@ 110 93 203 11
23 34 62 22
VaR 138 112 216 55
VaR
VaR
LPR
LPR LPR

LPR
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2023 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,817,659 75,462 1,439 27,487 2,922,047
952,425 34,206 3914 89,531 1,080,076
273,973 176,69 51,847 13,665 516,181

16,718 2715 2,849 2,501 24,873
1,809,559 1,809,559
21,190,871 367,196 68,569 105130 21,731,766
528,956 15,633 1,453 1,365 547,407

8,325,508 117,301 14,656 5,790 8,463,255

1,871,112 257,247 11,189 63,503 2,203,051
129,292 10,424 2,370 1,577 143,663

37,916,073 1,056,880 158,286 310639 39,441,878

(1,126,049) (1L,020) (1,127,069

(3,577,419 (50,430) (23.448) (2200) (3,653,497
(88,192) (204,480) (56,710) (32,908) (382,290)
(12,276) (321) (12,597)
(20,395) (2,315) (1,507) (3,600) (27,817)

(7,216) (83,654) (9,651) (100,521)
(28,200,270) (483,686) (45,842) (168,670)  (28,898,468)

(1,995,351) (231,691) (34,002) (34,877) (2,295,921

(139,636) (17,544) (1,171) (1,643) (159,994)
(35,166,804)  (1,073,800) (163,001) (254,569)  (36,658,174)

2,749,269 (16,920) (4,715) 56,070 2,783,704

132,838 20,198 26,915 (60,272) 119,679

2,580,632 217,252 13,818 44,063 2,855,765
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EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

( ) 2022 12 31
( ( (
) ) )
2,451,239 62,050 2,493 33,348 2,549,130
556,431 40,426 3514 30,514 630,885
226,596 201,279 48,943 23,512 500,330
22,433 3,242 2,466 2,574 30,715
1,172,187 1,172,187
18,512,313 310,569 68,962 89129 18,980,973
500,877 10,355 793 1,032 522,057
7,169,086 120,139 4,216 12,559 7,306,000
1,399,333 226,214 6,924 69,635 1,702,106
80,490 3,120 2,656 1,130 87,396
32,099,985 977,394 140,967 263433 33,481,779
(899,455) (1,661) (901,116)
(2,390,553) (30,949) (26,589) (11,087)  (2,459,178)
(78,693) (191,969) (40,088) (23,005) (333,755)
(12,243) (44) (12,287)
(23,656) (2,083) (2,019) (3,246) (31,004)
(11,855) (23,671) (8,253) (43,779)
(24,461,622) (581,718) (30,946) (46,754)  (25,121,040)
(1,559,352) (253,818) (20,772) (35456)  (1,869,398)
(165,085) (15,027) (2,044) (1,243) (183,399)
(29,602,514)  (1,099,235) (122,502) (130,705)  (30,954,956)
2,497,471 (121,841) 18,465 132,728 2,526,823
146,496 119,764 4,936 (120,394) 150,802
2,149,291 213,226 12,193 37,683 2,412,393
5%

( ) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
5% (1,368) 341 (2,265) 629
5% 1,368 (341) 2,265 (629)
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OooooOodd
PBOC
2015 12 24 PBOC 2019 8 16
PBOC
LPR
) 2023 12 31
1 3 1
1 12 5 5
2,673,721 10,524 237,802 2,922,047
285,086 96,101 670,690 16,947 11,252 1,080,076
184,543 98,819 211,918 17,362 3539 516,181
24,873 24,873
1,792,438 10,303 1476 5,342 1,809,559
5,377,071 3,660,201 11,355,552 821,121 467,469 50,352 21,731,766
3120 41,560 108,124 37472 218534 138,597 547,407
80,170 148,416 518,797 2,488,081 5,077,004 150,787 8,463,255
90,533 309,528 585,803 614,968 577,793 24,426 2,203,051
143,663 143,663
10,486,682 4,364,928 13,462,834 3,995,951 6,340,300 790,633 39,441,878
(120,354) (177,112) (816,714) (12,890) (1,127,069)
(2,554,534) (344,236) (505,377) (223,744) (7.400) (18,206) (3,653,497)
(137.162) (133,059) (103,999) (2673 (2:337) (3,062) (382,290)
(80) (321) (209) (11,987) (12,597)
(27.817) (27.817)
(18,690) (40,398) (40,715) (718) (100,521)
(14,978,192) (1,774,052) (4,446,867) (7.232,534) (7.650) (459,173) (28,898,469)
(175,187) (536,137) (997.562) (89,151) (484,976) (12,908) (2,295,921)
(159,994) (159,994)
(17,984,199) (3.004,992) (6.911,554) (7,548,311) (502,363) (706,755) (36,658,174)
(7,497,517) 1,359,936 6,551,330 (3,552,360) 5,838,437 83,878 2,783,704
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( ) 2022 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,290,703 1,479 256,948 2,549,130
145,656 155,047 313,789 6,714 9,679 630,885
215,067 94,572 184,103 3,808 2,780 500,330
30,715 30,715
1,148,899 9,648 8,823 4,817 1,172,187
4,367,833 2,990,459 10,388,924 780,984 409,853 42,920 18,980,973
4712 27,798 89,739 36,243 204,647 158,918 522,057
54,222 125,806 502,088 2,378,345 4,110,472 135,067 7,306,000
67,249 125,564 394,577 575,672 518,612 20,432 1,702,106
87,396 87,396
8,294,341 3,528,804 11,883,522 3,781,766 5,243,584 749,672 33,481,779
(109,923) (102,708) (678,938) (9,547) (901,116)
(1,800,732) (206,070) (295,798) (138,920) (17,658) (2:459,178)
(120,034) (100,254) (100,017) (8,851) (2572) (2,027) (333,755)
(44) (204) (12,039) (12,287)
(31,004) (31,004)
(13,749) (15,924) (13,198) (699) (209) (43,779)
(14,110,126) (1,436,280) (3,803,857) (5,378,056) (9,115) (383,606) (25,121,040)
(56,638) (536,873) (819,900) (110,345) (335,028) (10,614) (1,869,398)
(183,399) (183,399)
(16,211,202) (2,398,109) (5,711,752) (5,637,075) (346,715) (650,103) (30,954,956)
(7,916,861) 1,130,785 6,171,770 (1,855,309) 4,896,869 99,569 2,526,823
100 12
( ) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
+100 (35,951) (69,135) (43,303) (59,146)
100 35,951 69,135 43,303 59,146
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2012 NFRA

Tierl Tierl

2014 4 NFRA

2017 1 NFRA

NFRA

2023 12 31 NFRA

Tierl
Tierl

Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2

Tierl

2.5%
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Tierl

@
)
@
@
©)

4

©)

(6)
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5% 6% 8%

1%

NFRA
« )
NFRA
2023 2022
12 31 12 31
10.72% 11.15%
12.87% 13.37%
17.14% 17.20%
2,409,743 2,228,589
(14,803) (12,977)
2,394,940 2,215,612
480,009 440,009
2,874,949 2,655,621
953,222 760,728
3,828,171 3,416,349
22,338078 19,862,505
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
46.2
1
2 1
3
46.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2023 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 8028554 8,296,564 72433 8,161,452 62,679
627,615 624,941 45,222 579,719
( ) 202 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 6,878,808 7,040,956 76954 6,878,799 85,203

487,477 484,583 53,371 431,212
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2023 12 31
1 2 3

22,151 22,151

2,502 2,502

220 220

24,873 24,873

1,493,925 1,493,925

1,493,925 1,493,925

7,038 150,571 157,609

15,487 15,487

7,272 333 7,605

8,175 8,773 16,948

1,952 188,675 1,813 192,440

7,403 8,563 99,340 115,306

410 19,458 21,332 41,200

772 40 812

33,022 391,900 122,485 547,407

227,807 1,958,686 2,186,493

9,192 9,192

2,968 4,398 7,366

230,775 1,967,878 4,398 2,203,051

H H i

263,797 3,878,576 126,883 4,269,256
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2023 12 31
1 2 3
(11,987 (11,987)
(530) (530)
(80) (80)
(12,067) (530) (12,597)
(20,513) (20,513)
(1,420 (1,420)
(5,884) (5,884)
(27.817) (27,817)
(8,742) (8,742)
5

(48,626) (530) (49,156)
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2022 12 31
1 2 3

26,850 26,850
2,512 2,512
1,353 1,353
30,715 30,715
1,344,182 1,344,182
1,344,182 1,344,182
5,933 120,665 126,598
17,988 17,988
5,345 445 5,790
5,493 5,493
204,056 1,041 205,097
8,120 12,475 91,307 111,902
543 25,900 21,496 47,939
1,210 40 1,250
26,644 381,569 113,844 522,057
213,030 1,473,792 1,686,822
10,583 10,583
1,230 3471 4,701
214,260 1,484,375 3471 1,702,106
240,904 3,240,841 117,315 3,599,060
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(12,039) (12,039)
(248) (248)
(12,039) (248) (12,287)
(26,253) (26,253)
(871) (871)
(3,880) (3,880)
(31,004) (31,004
(27,340) (27,340)
(70,383) (248) (70,631)
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2023 1 1 113,844 3471 (248)
24,498 901 (362)
[ 3 (15,621)
I ) 23 H
(236) (244) 80
270
2023 12 31 122,485 4,398 (530)
3%
/
(349
( ) 2022
2022 1 1 98,841 3,424 (214)
33,970 38
/| 3 (19,401) )
) 52 52 2
434 243 (34)
(233)
2022 12 31 113,844 3,471 (248)
/
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12024 1 31 4.84% 1,936
2024 3 11

22024 2 20 2022 50 3.49% 1,745
2024 2 22

32024 3 28 2023 12 31

26,240 ( .36)
75,629 ( 37)

2023 12 31 2023 12 31 1 0.2309
80,811 ( 10)

2023 12 31

472 Tier2
2024 2 6 2024 Tier2
70
Tier2
47.3

2024 3 2024 Tierl 40
Tierl

IFRS 17 2023 1 1
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12 31

2023 2022
2,921,494 2,548,564
1,054,822 609,195
54,356 83,389
600,339 583,079
24,873 30,715
1,807,717 1,169,113
21,637,777 18,899,856
52
375,809 347,744
8,432,030 7,267,567
2,105,474 1,650,807
51,521 51,521
2151 2,105
142,045 141,159
159,899 148,699
188,308 131,534
39,558,615 33,665,047
1,127,068 901,077
3,659,398 2,475,046
293,716 263,009
12,067 12,039
271,817 31,004
95,345 35,484
28,897,264 25,120,347
1,936
2,261,597 1,828,305
323,634 350,094

36,697,906 31,018,341
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2023 2022
349,983 349,983
480,000 440,000
80,000 80,000
400,000 360,000
173,226 173,227
42,846 37,409
271,475 245,235
448,479 381,222
1,094,700 1,019,630
2,860,709 2,646,706
B
39,558,615 33,665,047

2024 3 28
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( )
2022 12 31 349,983 440,000 173227 37,400 245235 381,222 1,019,630 2,646,706
262,396 262,396
5,437 5,437
5,437 262,396 267,833
40,000 1) 39,999
26,240 (26,240)
67,257  (67,257)
(77,766) (77,766)
(16,063) (16,063)
2023 12 31 349983 480,000 173226 42,846 271475 448479 1,094,700 2,860,709
( )
2021 12 31 349983 360,000 173229 32,678 219926 348955 913,752 2,398,523
253,086 253,086
4,731 4,731
4,731 253,086 257,817
80,000 ®) 79,997
25,309 (25,309)
32267  (32,267)
(72,376) (72,376)
(17,239) (17,239)
1 an (16)

2022 12 31 349,983 440,000 173,227 37,4090 245235 381,222 1,019,630 2,646,706
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year endied 31 December 2023
[Armounty in millions of Renminbd, anless otheradise tated]

Yeor ended 31 December

2023 2022
Hate IV (Restated)
Interast income 1 1,223,698 1,108 464
Interast expense 1 (651,948 {518,581}
_Mat Inburast Income : E7i,750 t90.863
Few and commission income 2 94, 710 55,518
Fee and commission expense 2 {14,617} (14,236)
Met fea and commisslon Income 2 BO,093 81,282
Mt trading gain 3 23,124 5,519
Met gain on financial investments 4 16,764 5,909
Met gain on derecognition of financial assets measuned at amortized cost 1,038 160
Other operating income 5 2,599 12,530
Operating income 695 468 695,283
Operating expenses L] (252,305} (243,571)
Credit impairment losses g (135,707 {145, 266)
Impairment lrses on other assets (226} [58)
Operating profit 307,230 06,387
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 1ED 66
Profit before tax 307,419 ADE,A453
IPEOTIE Lax ERpET g (37,539) 147,587)
Prafit for the year 269,820 258,866
Attributable to:
Equuity holders of the Bank 269,356 259,232
Hon-controlling nterests AEd (366)
269,820 258,866
Earnings per share attritutable to the ardinary equity holders
of the Bank (expresced in AMB yuan per share)
— Basic and diluted 11 0.72 063

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these eansalidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivelncome

Far che year ended 3§ Decomber 2023
{Amaunts in milons of Benminbl, unless otherwise stxted)

—Year ended 31 Oecomber
Z023 2022
[Restated)
Profit for the year 269,820 258,866
Other comprehensive income:
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value changes an debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 16,206 |16, 089)
Loss allowance on debt instrumenis at fale value
through other comprehensive income {8,803) 16,717
Income tax impact for fair value changes and loss allowanoe on
debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (1.642) [518]
Foreign currency translation differences T6& 3,853
Otherss {2,767) {6E9)
Subtotal 3,760 3,176
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair walue changes an ather equity investments designated a1 faie value
thraugh athor comprohansive incoma 527 128
Income tax impact for fair value changes on other equity investments
designated at falr value through other comprehensive incomae {146 [33]
Subtatal iRl 95
Other comprehensive incoma, net of tax 4,141 3,371
Tatal comprehencive incame for the yaar 273,961 262,237
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 274,468 263,165
Non-contralling interists (507) (923)
273,961 262,237

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A5 a1 31 December 1023
[Armounty in millions of Renminbd, anless otheradise tated]

Az at 31 Decembar
023 2027
Note IV (Restated)
Assels
Cash and balanees with central banks 12 2,922 04T 2,549,130
Deposits with banks and ather financial Institwtions 13 1,080,076 630,885
Precious metals 54,356 B3,389
Macements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions 14 516,181 500,330
Derivative financial assets 15 24 873 3N, 715
Hnancial assets held under resale agreements 16 1,809,559 1.172,187
Loans and advances to customers 17 21,731,766 18,980,973
Financial investments i
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 547,407 522,057
Debt instrument investrments at amortized cost #,463,155 7,306,000
Other debt instrumant and other equity investments
at Fair value through othor comprehengive incamo 2,203,051 1,702,106
Inyestment in associates and joing ventures 20 B3B8 B,092
Property and cquipment 21 156,739 152,572
Goodwill 1381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 22 160,750 149 930
Dther aysets 23 193,162 135,741
Total assets 39,871,989 33,925,488
Uabilities
Barrowings from central banks 24 1,127 069 901,116
Deposits from banks and other finanoal institutions 25 3,653,497 2459178
PMacements from banks and other financial institutions 26 382,290 333,755
Financial liabdlities at fair value through profit or loss 27 12,597 12,287
Derivative financial linbilities 15 27 817 31,004
Financial assots sold under repurchase agreements 28 100,521 43,779
Duee to customers 28 28,808 468 25,121,040
Dividends payable 10 _ 1,536
Dbt securities. issued £l 2,295,921 1,868,398
Deferred tay liabilities 22 14 9
Other labilities 31 477,928 478,236
Taotal liabilitles 36,976,122 31,251,728
184 @emnen
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

Az #1 31 December 2023
{Amaumts @ milliors of Besmishl, s othersion statpd)

& ak !’: m!mﬂr

2023 2072
Mote v |Restated)

Equity
Ordinary shares 32 349,983 349,983
Other equity Instruments 33 450,000 440,000
Preference shares 50,000 50,000
Parpetual bonde 400,000 3E0,000
Capital reserve EC] 172,425 173,476
Other comprehensive income as 41,506 35,887
Surplus resenve 35 273,558 246,764
General reserve a7 456, 200 388,600
Retained earnings 1,114,576 1,033.403
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 2,889,248 2,668,063

_Non-controlling interests 7.619 5697

Tatal equity 2,B56.867 2,673,760
Total equity and liabilities 39,871,989 33,925,488

Approwved and autharized for issue by The Board of Directors on 28 March 2024,

chairman T Emecutive Director

The accompanying rotes fiorm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023
[Amounts in millaas of Renminbi, unless otharaise siated)]
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The accompanying notes form an integral parg of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fer thee year ended 31 December J033
{Amaunts in millans of Renminbi, urless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

2023 022
Mot IV [Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Frafit before tax 307,419 306,453
Adjustments for:
Amartization of intangible assets and other assets 3,406 3,466
Depreciation of property, oquipment and
right-of-use assets, and others 18897 177192
Cradit impairment losses 135,707 145,266
Impairment losses on other assels 226 59
Interest income arising from inwestment securitics 1308,166) {277,557)
Interest expense on debt secwrities sseed 59,548 45,140
Rewvaluation gain on financial instruments at fair value
through prafit or loss {3.070) |5,647]
Met gain on investrment securities {2.630) (2471
Share of results of associates and point ventures [1E9) |66]
Het gain on disposal and stocktake of property, equipment and
other assets 1,015) {7971
__Met foreign exchange gain 5288} f2547)
- 203,945 230,715
Net changes in operating assets and aperating liabilities:
Metincrease in balances with central banks, deposits with banks and
other financial institutions (634, 780]) (444,340)
HNet {increase)/decrease in placements with and loans to banks and
other financkal institutions (45,145]) 17,6681
HNet decrease/(increase] in fnancial assets held under resale agreements 14,134 {16, 796)
Netincrease in loans and advances to customers {2,824,236) [2.598,566]
Het increase in borrowings from central banks 223,165 150,974
Net increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions 47,500 41,292
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
other financial institutions 4,893,673 3,972,068
Increase in other operating assets {138,258) {54,8589)
Increase in other operating labilities 144,040 53,151
Cach from operations 1,883,038 1,391,320
Income tax paid |57.756) {69,317]
Net cash from operating activities 1,825 282 1,322,003

Anniisl Repany 187
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the year ended 38 December 2023
[amourts inmillicns of Benminkd, anlews otheradse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Mate IV |Restated)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cish receved from disposal of investment secufities 2,251,735 2,006,183
Cash recenved from investment income 290,994 266,576
Cash received from disposal af investment in associates and joint ventures 163 1,6B5
Cash received from dispesal of property, equipment and other assets 4,568 5,857
Cash pald for purchase of investment securities [3.858,350) 13,308.162)
Acquisition of non-controlling Interests - (37
Increase o investment in associates and joint ventures {aso) {2,000)
Cash paid Tor purchase of property, equipment and other assels (2B.B27) (22,092)
Met cash used In investing activities [1,331,207) {1,051,950)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution from issues of other equity instruments AF WY B0, 000
Cash payments for transactson cost of other aquity instruments issued [§1] (3
Cash recelved from debt securities isswed 3,341,941 2,035,552
Cash paymants for transaction cost of debt securities issued (8) [18)
Repaymaents of debt securitios issued [2,886,006) {1,656,608)
Cash payments far imerest on debt securities issued (89,774) {68,079)
Cash paymonts for principal portion and interest partion of leaso liability {4,850) 14,946)
Dividends paid |95,8532) {87.681)
Mat cash from financing activities 307.440 298,217
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 801,515 568,230
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 1,705,633 1,124,762
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash pquivalents 5.577 12,641
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December i8 2,511,725 1,705,633
Mt cash flaws fram operating activities include:
Interest recalved B35,165 774,945
Interest pasd |509,898) {389,721)

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these cansolidated linancial statements,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 1033
{Amaunts in milons of Renmimbl, urless otherwise sisied)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricuttural Bank of China Limited (the "Bank”} iz the successor entity to the Agricultural Bank of China
[the "Predecessor Entity™) which was a wholly state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the People’s
Bank of China (the "PBOCT) and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
On 15 Januwary 200/, the Bank was established after the completion of the finandal restructuring of  the
Predecessor Entity, The Bank’s establishment was authorized by the PREOC. The Bank was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Emchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2000 and 16 July 2010, respectively.,

The Bank operates under financial services cortificate Mo, BOOD2ZH111000001 issucd by the National Financial
Regulatary Administration (the farmer "China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission” the “NFRA"}, and
business license No. 911100001000054 748 sued by Beijing Administration of Industry and Commerce. The
registercd affice of the Bank is located at No. 69 languomen Nel Avenue, Dongeheng District, Beljing, the PRC,

The princigeal activities of the Bank and its subsicBaries (collectively, the "Group™] indude Renminki ("RMBE") and
foreign currency deposits, loans, clearing and settlement services, assets custodian  services, fund  management,
financial leasing services, indurance services and other services as ppproved by relevant regulators, and the
pravision of related serviced by it overseas establichments as appraved by the respective local regulatars.

Thie head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subdidiarics operating in Chinese mainland  are
referred to as the "Domestic Dperations”. Branches and subddianes regiiered and aperating outside Chinese
mainland are referred 1o as the "Owverseas Dperations™,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRSs"), as issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB").
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Gowerning the Listing of Securities en the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companses Ordinance for this financial year and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policles set out
below. Historlcal cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for assets and
that & recelved {or in some dircumstances the amount expected to be pakd) with respect to labilites.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs reguires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applyng
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financlal statements are disclosed
in Mote Hi,

Asnniial Bepart 189
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Desembes 2023
[Ameounts in millions of Renminbs, anless otheraise sated)

Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1  Basic of preparation (Continued)
1.1 Standards and amendments effective in 2023 refevant to and adopted by the Group

The Grawp has adopted the follawing IFASs and amendments issued by the LASE that are first effective
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023,

Notes
11] IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {i)
{2] Amendmaents to 1AS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies iy
IFRS Practice Statemant 2
{3) Amendments to lAS B Definition of Accounting Estimates {iii]
(4] Amendments to 14512 (2021) Deferred Tax related to Assets and [iv)
Liahilities arising from a Single Transaction
{5] Amendments to 14512 [2023) International Tax Reform — Billar Two Model Aules v}

(i} IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces |FRS 4 Inswance Contracts, sets out the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure requirements applicable to issuers of insurance contracts, The Group
has implemented IFRS 17 with the transition date of 1 lanuary 2023, which resulted in chanpes
In accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognized in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. The impacts of the adoption of IFRS 17 and its amendments
are disclosed in Mote 1l 1.3 Changes in material accounting policies,

(i} Amendments to [AS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Thie amendments clarify that an entity will be required to disdose its “materal”  accounting
policy information as cpposed to “significant” accounting policies and provide additional
puidance on how to identify material accounting policy information. The amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide additional guidance and examples to ewplain and lllustrate the
application of the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy information. The Group
has rewisited the accounting policy information it has been disclosing and considered it s
consistent with the amendments.

(i) Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments now define “accounting estimates” as “mopetary amounts  in financial
statemnents that are subject to measurement uncertainty” and remove the definition of “a
change in accounting estimate®, The amendments also clarfy that the effects of a change In
an input or a measurement technigue used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimates unbess they result from the correction of prior period errors. The adoption
of the amendments does not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2003
(Ampunts in milhona of Rermini, unles atherwisestated]

I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation [Continued)

1.1 Standards and amendments effective in 2023 relevant to and adopted by the Group
{Continued)

{iv) Amendments to [AS 12 (2021): Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments cpecily how entities should secount for deferred tax on transactions such
i lepses and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrow the seope of the initial
recognition exemption o that it does not apply 1o tronsactions that give rise to equal and
offsenting temporary differences on initial recognition. As a result, entities will need to recognize
a deferred tax asset and o deferred Lax lability for temporary differences arising on initial
recagnition af a lease and a decormmissioning provision. The adoption af the amendments does
not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

{w)  Amendments to IAS 12 (2023); International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

In accordonce with 1AS 12 as amended on 23 May 2023, the Group has applied the twemporary
mandatory exemption to the recognition and disclosure of Income tax related to Fillar Two. As at
31 December 2023, some of the countries where the Group has subsidiaries have enacted Pillar
Two legislation. As the new tax laws will take effect in 2024, the Group does not recognize
ary current tax relating to the Pillar Two legislation for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group is evaluating the impact of the amendments on income tax for subsequent years,

1.2 Stapdards and amendments relevant to the Croup that are not vet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2023

The Group has not adopted the following new standards and amendments that have been lssued by
the ASE but are not yet effective,

Effective for
annual perigds
beginning enor after  Notes
11} AmendmentstolFRS 16 Lease Lishility in & Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024 {iy
2]  AmendmentstolAs 1{2020) Clrssification af LiabiRties as Current 1 lanuary 224 {ii}
or Man-currént
3] AmendmenistolAS 1[{2022) Man-current Liab#iteswih Covenants 1 January 2024 (i)
8 AmendmentstolAS Tand IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arcangements 1 lanuary 2024 (iii)
{5 Amendmentste 4521 Lack o Exthangeability 1 January 2025 [
6] AmendmenistolFRS 10andlASZE  Saleor Comtribution of Assers The elfectve date has now
betwesn an Irvastor sndits been deferred irdelinitely

Asiociate af lalntVenture

Annyal Rage 7023 191

330/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn
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For the year ended 31 Desembes 2023
[Ameounts in millions of Renminbs, anless otheraise sated)

Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Basis of preparation (Continued})

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 202 3{Connnued)

(i} Amendments to IFRS 15: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments add to the requirements expliining how an entity accounts for & sale
ard leaseback after the date ol the transaction. The amendments reqguire a seller-lessee (o
subsequently measwre lease liabilities arising frem a easeback in 2 way that it does not recognize
ory amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right-ef-use it retains, including cases with
variable lease payments in the leaseback. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact an the Group®s consolidated financial statements.

(i} Amendments to [AS 1 Classification of Liabilities a5 Current or Nor-current and Non
current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments to 1AS 1 (2020} concern the reguirements on  determining if o liability &
current or non-current. In particular, the amendments specify the condition of an entity to
classify a lability as non-current requires that a right to defer settlement must exist at the end
of the reporting peried and have substance, and darlly that dassification & unaffected by
management’s intentions or expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right 1o defer
settlement.

The amendmeants also specify the dassification of Rabilities that will or may be settled by issuing
an entity’s own equity instruments. Whan a liability includes a counterparty conversion aption
that Involves a transfer of the entity's own equity instruments, the classification of such Hability
Is not affected ondy when the conversion option Is recognized separately from the host labdlity as an
equlty component under 1AS 32,

The amendments to 1AS 1 [2022] specify that only covenants with which an enfity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current,
Covenants with which the entity must comply after the reporting date (Le. future covenants)
do not affect a llability's classification &t that date. However, an entity Is required to disclose
Infermatien regarding the risk that the non-current Eabilities subject to future cowenants could
become repayable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The 2022 amendments defer the effective date of the 2020 amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning aon or after 1 January 2024, If an entity applies one of these two amendments
for an earlier period, the other amendments should also be applied for that period.

The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(Hi) Amendmants to [AS 7 and [FRS 7° Supplier Finance Arrangements
The amendments mtroduce disclosure requirements (o enhance transparency of suppler finance
arrangements and their effects on a company's liabifities, cash flows and exposure to liguidity

risk. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a  significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Far the year snded 31 Decomber 2003
(Ampunts in millond of Rermindl, unless athonsisestated]

I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation [Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2023 (Continued)

(vl Amendments to 1AS 21: Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments specily whisn & cufrenty |4 exchangeable into anather cufrency and when it i
not, and how an entity determines a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability.

Under the amendments, entities are required to provide additional disclosures te help users
evaluate how a currency’s lack of exchangeability affects, or is expected to affect, its financial
perfarmance, financial position and cash flows.

The Group antlcipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

{v) Amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Assoclate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and 1A5 28 in the sale and
contribution of assets between an investor and its assoclate or joint venture,

A full gaim or loss is recognized when o transaction involves a business. A partial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if those
assets are ina subsidiary.

The Group antidpates that the adoptien of the amendments will not have a significant Impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

1.3 Changes in material accounting policies

The Group has implemented IFRS 17 (the "Hew Standards for Insurance Contracts”] with the
transition date of 1 January 2023, which resulted in changes In accounting policles and adjustments
to the amounts previously recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Group did
not early adopt the New Standards for Insurance Contracts in previows periods,

According to the transitional provisions of IFRS 17, the Group has retroactively adjusted equity as at
1 lanuary 2022 tor the cumulative impact of the accounting treatment inconsistency of insurance
contracts prior to the transition date of 1 January 2023 and the provisions of the New Standards for
Insurance Contracts, and adjusted the related reporting information of the financial statements for
the comparative period, Besides, In order to coordinate with IFRS 17, the Group has reassessed the
business model for managing related financial asscts and redesignated somo financial assets undar the
requiremants of IFRS 17, and adjusted the cumulative impact of the reclassification and measurament
of financial assets in the retained eamnings and other components of equity as at 1 lanwary 3023,
without adjusting the information of comparative period.

Annusl Regor H23193
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued})
1.3 Changes in material accounting policies {Continued]
{i}  The impact on the comparative period financial statemeants
Thie impact of implementing the New Standards for Insurance Contracts on the Group's net

profit for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the impact on the opening and ending equity
in the consolidated statement of changes i equity for the above perlod are summarized a3

Tolbows:
Mot Profit
for the
year ended  Equity as at Equity as at
31 December 31 December 1 Jamuary
2022 2022 02z
Befare adjustrment 258,688 2,674,451 2,421,359
Impact of New Standards for
Insurance Contracts 178 {691] (180
Ad|usked 258,866 2,673,760 2421179

{fi}  The implementation of the New Standards for insurance Contracts will adjust the impact of
the reclassification and measurement of financial assets to retained earnings and other related
financial statement (tems as at 1 Janvary 2023. The Impact on items of the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 1 Janvary 2023 ks summarized as follows:

31 December  Adoptian of

2022 IFRS 17 1 Januany 2023
Before Amount After
Hudinll‘_l:ithn Reclassed R!Ldii_sHi:atlnn
Assols
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 522,057 1911) 531,146
Debt instrument investments
at amortized cost 7,306,000 (18.354) 1,287,646
Other debt instrument and other equity
Irvestments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,702,106 20,675 1,722,781
Liahilities
Detorred tox liabilities £l EER ERl]
Equity
Other comprehensive income 15,887 S0E 16,395
Retained sarnings 1,033,403 k1 1,033,442
Mon-cantrolling inferests 5697 526 6,223
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Far the yeae ended 31 Decomber 2023
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statemonts include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidinries
as well a8 structured entities controlled by the Group, The Group contrals an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights ta, variable returns from its invalvernent with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns thraugh ns pawer aver the entity.

Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
staternent of profit or loss fram the date of acquisiion of up to the date on which control ceases,
respectively.

Adjustments are made to the linancial statements ol subsidiaries, where appropriate, to cansistently reflect
the accounting policles of the Group.

When merging, all intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions are eliminated.
Unreakized losses are alse eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset.

Non-controlling Interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the controlling pary’s
equity thenein.

The carrying amount of non-controlling Interosts is the amount of those interests at Initlal recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total comprehensive income
of a subsidiary Is attributed, based on the proportion of their respective holdings, to the equity holders of
the Bank and to the non-controlling interests, even If this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

In the Bank's staternent of financial position, s Investments in subsidiaries are stated a8t cost, less
impalement losses, Famy.

Business combinations

Acguisitions of businesses are acoounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination Is measured at fair value, which ks calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
value of the assets transferred by the Group, Eabilities Incurred or assumed by the Group, and any equity
interests issued by the Group. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
prafit ar loss as incurred,

A1 the acquisition date, mespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable  assets  scquired  and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values; except that deferred tax
assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee bencfit armangements are rocognized and
maasured n accordance with 1AS 12 — Income Taxes and 1AS 19 — Employes Benafits, respectivaly.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle thelr holders to
a proportionate share of the entity™s net assets in the event of liguidation are accounted far at either fair

value or the non-cantrelling interests’ proportionate share in the recognized amounts of the acquiree™s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation {Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the exeeis of the eost of an acquisition less the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net (dentifiable assets of scquired subsidiaries and assoclates at the dote of acquisition, Goodwill on
acauisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated staterment af financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated 10 each of the Group's cash-generating unis
(“CEU*) or groups of OGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that sre largely independent
af the cash inflows fram other assets o groups of assets

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for Impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unil may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is less than its carrging amount, the deficit, reflecting an
impairment loss, is allocoted first o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the OGU and
then to the ether assets of the OGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGEU. Any poodwill impairment loss ks recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
An impairment koss recognized for goodwill is nat reversed in subseguent periods.

Investment in associate and jeint venture

An assoclate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that Is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. & joint venture & an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the arrangement through a separate entity, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement based on legal form, contract terms, and other facts and drcumstances.
Slgnificant influence |5 the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
imvestee but does not constitute controd or joint control over those policy decislons. foint control s the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an activity, and exists only when the decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the Group and other parthes sharing the contral.

The post-acquisition profit or loss of an assoclate or a joint venture ks Incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equily method of accounting. Under the equity method, investment in an
associate or a jont venture s initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of the net assets of the associate or joint venture, When the Group's share of loss of an assoclate or
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture], the
Group discontinues recognizing its share of further loss. Additional loss §s recognized only to the estent that
the Group has incurred legal o constructive obligations or made payments on behall of that associate or
joint venture,

At tha end of each roporting period, the Group considers whather there are circumstances that indicate
the passibility of impairment of the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture; when that is the
case, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 —
Impairment of Assets, as o single asset by comparing i3 recoverable amount (the higher of Tair value less
costs to sell and value in wse] with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in accordance with
1AS 36, to the extant that tho recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 Consalidation (Cantinued)
Investment in associate and foint ventiire (Continued)

Whien an entity b the Group transaets with the Group's osiociate of joint venture, profits and lodses
resulting from the transaction are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture that are not related 1o the Group, Unrealized losses
ae eliminated unless the transacton provides svidence of an impairment of the ssiet transferned.

3 Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses of financial instrurments are calculated using the effective interest method
and included in the eurrent profit and loss.

The Group uses the effective interest method to calculate the interest income and expense of financial
assets and Babilities measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive come,
presented as “interest income® and "interest expense” respectively. For specific accounting policies, please
refer tothe Note 1l B.4 subsequent measurement of financial instruments.

4  Fee and commission income

Fee and commission icome i recognized when the Group fulfills s performance obligation, either over
time or at a polnt in time when a customer abtains contral of the service,

For the performance obligations satisfled at a point in time, the Group recognizes revenue when control
is passed to the customer at a certaln point in time, incleding insurance agency fee, merchant acquiring
service fee, settlement & clearing services and bond underwriting fee, etc. For the performance obligations
satisfled owver time, the Group recognizes revenue according to the progress toward satisfaction of the
obligation over the time, including consultancy and advisory fee and custodian fee, etc.

5 Forelgn currency translation

The functional currency of the Group's Domestic Operations (s AMB. The presentation cumency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencles other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates] at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in forelgn currencies are retransiated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-manetary items
carried at falr value that are denominated in forelgn currencles are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date whan the fair value was determined. Nen-monetary items that are measured at historical cost In a
foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of maonetary items, and on the retranslation of mometary
items, are recognired in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the following:

il emchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment in the
Ovarseas Operations;
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
5% Foreign currency translation (Continued)

{ii) changes in the fair valve of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency closaified as finpncial
investments at fair value through other comprebensive income are snalyred between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortized east of the monetary assets and ather changes in
the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized
in the conwolidated statement of profit or lows, and other changes in the earrying amount  are
recognized in other compreheniive income.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or boss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monstary items n respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in
ather comprehenthve ineome, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognized directly in other
comprehensie Income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilitbes of the
Group's Overseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of
eachange prevalling at the end of the reporting period, and their incorme and expenses are transisted at
exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approdmates the exchange rates of the date
af the transaction. Exchange dilferences arising, # any, are recognired in other comprehensive income
and accurmulared in equity under the foreign currency translation reserve and non-controdling interests, as
appropriate. The accumulated foreign currency translation resenie related 1o the Overseas Operations will
be reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal of all or part of the
Owerseas Operations.

6 Taxation
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax,
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on tawable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes tems of mcome or expense that
are takable or deductibée in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's lability
for current tax is calculated wsing tax rates that have been enacied or substantieely enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
Deferred tax
Dweferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consalidated fimancial statements and the commesponding tax base wsed in the computation of Laxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax

assels are gonerally recognized for all deductible temporary difforences to the extent that it is probable that
taxabla profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized,
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b Taxation [(Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

If & single transaction i not 8 business combination, neither accounting profit nor laxable income (or
deductible loss) is affected at the time of the transaction, and the assets and fabilities initally recognized
do not result in an equal amount of taxable temporary differences and deductible termporary dilerences,
then the temporary differences arising lrom the transaction will not generate deferred tax. The temposary
differences resulting from the initial recognition of goodwill also do not generate the sssociated deferred tax.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that the temporary dfference will not reverse in the foresesable future or it is no longer
prebable that sufficient taxable profits will Be available to allow all or part of the asset 1o be wtilized.

Deeferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the perfod in
wihisch the Rability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rate [and tax laws) that have been enacted of
substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The measurement of deferred tax kabilities and assets reflects the tax comsequences that would follow
frem the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and llabllities. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to itemns that are recognized In other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred tax Is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respactively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to sat off current tax
assels against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group Intends to settle its current tax assets and Hzbilitkes on a net basls.

Value-added Taxes (“VAT")

The Group mainly provides financial services such as loan services, direct-charge firancial sendces, insurance
services and transfer of financial commaodities, which are subject to the VAT rate of 6%. For other services,
VAT Is calculated and paid in accordance with the tax rates stipulated In the tax law.

Pursuant to the "Clroular of the Ministry of Finance and the 5tate Administration of Taxatkon on Further
Clarification of Relevant Policies Applicable to the Financial Sector in the Comprehensive Implementation
af the VAT Pilot Programs” (Cai Shui [2016] No. 4B), the Bank elected to adept a simplified mathodology
to calculate VAT at 3% on interest income derived from loans granted to farming househaolds, rural
enterprises and other rural institutions by county-level sub-branches included in the Bank's pliot
programs of the County Area Banking Division, incleding those under the Bank's provincial branches in
provinces, autonomous reglons, municipalities directly under the central government and municipalities
with independent budgetary status as well as thase under the Xinjlang Production and Construction Corps
Branch.

In accordance with the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and the State Administration of Taxation's
“Circular regarding the Valug-added Taxes Policies Tor Financial, Real Estate Dievelopment and Education
Ancillary and Other Services™ {Cal Shul [2016] Mo, 140), the “Supplementary Circular regarding Issues
concerning Valuc-added Taxes Policies for Asset Managoment Products™ (Cai Shul [2017] No, 2) and the
“Circular on  the Rolevant lssuos concerning Value-added Tax Levied on  Assot Managoment Products”
(Cai Shui [2017] No. 56), the Group shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable asset management activitios
undertaken atter 1 lanuary 2018,
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits

Employes benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant expenditure incurred by the Group
in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These
benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early retirement benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits inclede salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, medical
insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and
staff education expenses. in the reporting peried in which an employee has rendered services, the Group
recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a lability with a cerrespending
inerease in the expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss or capatalization 8 cost of
related assets.

Post-employment benefits

The Group's post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic pensions and unemployment
insurance related to government mandated soclal welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. All these post-employment benefits are defined contribution plans, under which, the Group
makes fixed contributions into a separate fund and will hawve no begal or constructive obligation to make
Turther contributions if the fund does not hold sufficlent assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee sendces in the current and prior perkods.

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period or capitalization as cost of related assets in which the related
payment obligation is ncurred,

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domestic branches ("Domestic Institutions”) participate in
an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”), The Bank pays annuity contributions
with reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or capltalized as cost of related assets when incurred. Except for the fived contribution into
the Annuity Scheme, the Bank has no further obligation if the Annuity Scheme does not have sufficient
assets for the payment of any retirement benefits to employees funded by the Annulty Scheme.

Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept voluntary retirement before the
rormal retirement date. as approved by management. The related benefit payments are made from the
date of early retirement to the normal retiremant date.

The accounting treatmant of the Group's early retirement benefits is  in accordance with  termination
boncfits as determined in IAS 19, The lakility is recognized for the carly retirement benefit payments from
the date of early retiremant to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination
benefit is met with a corresponding charge in the consalidated statement of profit or loss, Differences
arising from changes In assumptions and adjustments of the standards of Benefits are recognized in the
wonsolidated statement of profit or loss when incurred,
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments
&1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets or finoncial liabilities are recogniced when the Group becomes a party to  the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

For purchases or sales of financinl assets in a regulnd way, the related assets and liabdities  are
recognized or sold assets are derecognized at the trade date, along with the recognition of gains or
losses on disposal and the receivables due from the buyer. The trade date is the date cn which the
Group commits to purchase ar sell the financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures 3 financial asset o financial labdéiey 8t it falr value.
Transaction eosts of linancial assets and financial labilities carried a1 fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss. For other classes of financial assets or financial labdlities, the relevant
transaction costs are included in the initial recognized valve.

{1} Fingrciol assets

Financial assets are classified in the following measurermnent categories based on the Group's
business model for managing the assets and the cash flow characteristhcs of the assets:

{ii  Amortized cost [AC");
(¥ Fair valuee through other comprehenshre incame (“FYOCI); or
(] Fair valwe through profit or loss (*FYPL").

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That ks, whether the Group®s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the
assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash fiows arising from the sale of
assots, If neither of these is applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), than
the financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model and measwred at FYPL
Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of assets include
past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the group of asset’s
perfermance Is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated,

Where the business model is to bold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whather the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent sodely payments of principal and interest {(*SFP1%], In making this assessment,
the Group considers whether the contractual cash fows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement Le. interest includes consideration for the time value of money, credit risk
amsociated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. The Group
also assesses whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition,

Fimancial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in thelr  entinety  when  determining
whather their cash flows are SPPL
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments {Continued)
&1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
{1} Financial assets [Continusd)

The elassification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments in the Group are
described as belaw:

Debt Instrunménis

Debt instruments are those instroments that meet the definition of a fnancial liability from
the issuer's perspective, such as leans, government and eoarporate bonds, Classification amd
measurement of debt instruments depend on the Group's business models far managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the debt instruments of the Group are classified into three categories
below:

{1 AC: Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective Is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash Tlows: and contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are sobely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount
outstanding, and that are not designated as at FYPL, are measured at amaortized cost.

(&)  FwOCI: Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective Is achisved
by both collecting contractual cash fows and selling financial assets; and contractual terms
glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, and that are not designated as at FYFL, are measured
at FVOC

(] FvPL: All financial assets not classified as measured at AC or FVOCI as described above are
maasured at FUPL.

The Group may also rrevocably designate financial assets as at FYPL if doing so significantly reduces
or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilities being measured on different bases,

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are  instruments  that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective referring to Note 1l 8.9, and examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary
shares. The Group subseguently measures all equity investments at FYPL  except for the
equity investment not held for trading where the Group's managerment has elected, at Initial
recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity nvestment as at FVOCL

(2} Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities are dasified into financial Tabilities a1 FYPL and ather financial
liabilities carried at amortized cost on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVPL is applied to

derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated as such at initial
recagnition,
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
(2} Financial liabilities {Continwed)

The Graup may, at initial recognition, irrevoeably designate a financial lability 85 measured at fair
value theough profit o boss when deing so results in maore relevant information, becauss either:

[ it eliminates or significantly reduces 8 measurement of recognition inconsistency  that
wiould stherwise arise; o

(8] apgroup af financial liabilities or financial sscets and financial Nabilities is managed and
its perfarmance i evaluated on a fair value basis, In accordance with a documented
risk mansgement of investrment strategy, and information aboul the Group 5 provided
internally on that basis to the entity's key management personnel.

Once the designation is made, it shall net be revoked,

Financial Nabilities arising from the transfer of finandal assets which do not qualify for
derecognition, if the enterprise retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the transferred financlal asset and does not qualified for derecognition, the Group shall continue
to recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety and recognize a financial liability for the
consideration receved. In applying the continued invaleement approach of accounting, please refor
o the Nowe 1l 8.7 Derecognition of financial assets for the measurement of the transferred liability.

8.2 Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes the business model for managing its financial assets, it shall reclassify all
affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The
Group does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impalrment gains or losses)
or interest. Reclassification date is the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets.

8.3 Determination of fair value

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sofl an asset or paid te transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, For financial instrumaents
traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Is based on quoted market prices. Active market s a place in which transactions for the asset or
lability take place with sufficient frequency and volume o provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. In an active market, the guoted prices of relevant assets or liabilites should be readily and
regularly avallabbe from exchanges, dealers, brokers, industry groups, pricing institutions or regulatory
institutions by the enterprise. The current market may not be active whon there i a significant
decling in the volume of transaction or level of activity, price quotations vary substantially either over
time or among market-makers and current prices are not avallable, For financial instruments not
traded in active markets, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation technigues. Valwation
techniques Include the wse of recent transaction prices, fair value of other financial instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other technigues
commonby vsed by market participants. When measuring the asset or liability at fair value, the Group
shall use valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
and other information are avallable to measure falr value, select Inputs that are consistent with the
characteristics of the asset or liability that market participants would take into account in a transaction
for the asset or Rability. These valuation technigues indude the use of obserable andfor unobservable
inputs. and observable inputs are prefermed,
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments [Cantinued)
8.4 Subsequent measurement of financial Instruments
Subsequent measurement of finaneial instruments depends on the categories:
{1} Financial assets and liakilities measured at amartized cost

Thie amortized cost s the amount at which the financial asset or financial lability & messured
at initial recognitson: (i) minus the principal repayments; (i) plus o mines the cumolative
pmortication using the effective interest method of any difference between that Initial
amount ond the maturity ameouwnt; {iil] for financial assets, adjusted for amy loss  allowance,
Interest income and interest espenses fram these financial assets and liabilities are included in
“imterest income” and “interest expense” wing the effective nterest method,

The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the eapected lfe of the financial asset or financial llability te the gross
carrying amount of o fnancial asset (e its amostized cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortized cost of a financial Hability. The calculation does not corsider expected
credit isses (“ECL") but includes transaction costs, premiurms or discounts and fees and points
paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate. Fos purchased or odiginated credit-
Impaired [“POCT] financial assets, the Group caltulates the credit-adjusted effective interest rats,
which is calculated based on the amortized cost ol the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected eredit losses |n estimated future cash flows.

Interast income ks calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carmying amount
of financial assets and Is included in “interest income®, except for

{1 POCH financial assets, whose interest Income s calculated, since initial recognition, by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to their amartized cost; and

{#] financial assets that are not POCK but have subsequently become credit-impaired, whose
interest income ks calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized
cost (Le. net of the expected credit boss allowance), If, In a subsequent period, the
financial assets improve thelr qualities so that they are no longer credit-impaired and
the improvement in credit quality s related objectively to a certain event ocourring after
the application of the above-mentioned rules, then the interest income is calculated by
apphying the effective interest rate to their gross carrying amount.

(2} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Deht instruments
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue cakculated by wsing the effective interest method
and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized
in prafit or loss. When the financial asset s derecognized, the cumaulative gain or loss previously

recognized in OC1 5 reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in “Interest income”™ using the effective interest method.
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
84 Subsequent measurement of financial instruments (Cantinued)
{2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued)
Eruity instriments

The equity instrument investments that are not beld for trading are designated as FVOCI
Dividends, when representing a return an such investments, continue to be recognized in profit
or loss a4 investment income when the Group's right to recaive payments i established. Other
net gains or lpises are recognited in other camprehensive income. Dn derecognition, gains and
lpsses accumulated in other comprebensive income are reclassified to retained earnings.

{3} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Thie financial asset s measured at fair value and net gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss
of the current period.

{4)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FYPL are measured at fair value with all gains or lnsses recognized in profit
or loss of the current period, except for financial Nabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or boss, where gains or losses on the financial liabilities are treated as follows:

ij changes in fair value of such financial liabilities due to changes in the Group's own crodit
risk are recognized in other comprehensive income; and

[}  other changes in fair value of such financial liabdlities are recognized in profit or loss of
the current period, If the accounting of changes in the credit risk of the financial liabHities
in accordance with (i) will create or endarge accounting mismatches In profit or loss, the
Group recognizes all gains or losses on such financial labilities {imcluding amounts arising
from changes in its own credit risk) in the profit or loss of the current period.

‘When the liabilitses dessgnated as at far walue through profit or loss is derecognized, the
cumaulative gain or loss previously recognized In other comprehensive income s reclassified from
equity to retained earnings.

8.5 Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with its debt instrument assels
carried at amortized cost and FYOC! and exposures arising from some loan commitments and financial
Euarantes contracts,

ECL is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
waights. Credit loss is the difference batween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, which are all
cash shortfalls, discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for POCH financial asse1s).

Annual Bepart MOII0S

344/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year endad 31 December JO23
[Ammcuims i millicns of Renminks, unlses othereise stated)

Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B  Financial instruments {Continued})
8.5 Impairment of financial instruments {Continued)
The Growp measures ECL of a finaneial instrament reflecting:

[if  an unbiaded and probabilibg-weighted amount that s determined by evaluating & range  of
possible aulcomes;

fiy  the time value of money; and

[lhr reasonabie and sunpnrtahle informaticn that is avadlable without undee cost or e"nn: at
the reporting date aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic
condilians.

For financial instruments whose impairment losses are measured using the ECL models, the Group
applies & three-stage impairment model to calculate their impairment allowance and recognize their
ECL, as fallows:

= Stage |z IT the credit risk has not increased significamily since its Indtial recognition, the financial
asset s included in Stage |,

= Stage Il If the credit risk has Increased significantly since its initial recognition but is not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 1l. The description of
how the Group determines when a significant increase in credit sk has occurred s disclosed In
Note IV 44,1,

= Stage Il if the finandial instrument Is credit-impaired, the financial instrument s then moved o
Stage 1. The definition of credit-impaired financial assets is dischosed in Note 1V 44,1,

Financial instruments kn Siage | have thelr ECL measured at an amount eguivalent to the ECL of
the financial asset for the next 12 months ("12 menths ECL™). Financlal instruments in Stage 0 or
Stage Nl have their ECL measured at an amount eguivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financlal
instrumaents (*Lifetime ECL"), The description of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used In
measuring the ECL is disclosed in Note IV 44.1.

For accounts receivable, lease recelvables and contract assets, the Group always recogndre lifetime
expected credit losses, The Group wses provision matrix based on [ts historical credit loss experience
for above-mentioned financial assets to estimate ECLs. The historical credit experience ks appropriately
adjusted to refiect the specific factors of borrowers, current events and forecast future conditions as at
reporting date.

The Group applies the impalrment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss
allewance for debt instruments that are measured at FVOC), The loss allowance is recognized in other
comprehensive income and the impairment kass is regognized in profit or loss, and it should not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statemant of financial position,

If the Growp has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument other than POCIH at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reparting date that the financial instrument is no longer regarded a3 experiencing a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-
manth expacted credit Iosses at the curront reporting date and the amount of espected crodit losses
reversal is recognized in prafit or loss. For POC) financial assets, at the roporting date, the Group only
recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expectod credit losses sinoe initial recognition,
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.6 Modification of contracts

The Group sometimes renegotistes of otherwise modifies contracts, resulting in 8 change to
the contractual cash flows. When this happens, the Group assesses whether the new terms are
subrstantially different to the ariginal terms.

Il the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the odginal fingncial asset and
recognizes a ‘mew’ asset at fair walue and recabeulates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is corsequently considered to be the date of initial  recognition  for
impairment caleulation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether & significant
inerease in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group ako assesses whether the mew flinaneial
asiet recognized is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, espedially  in circumstances
where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable 1o moke the originally agreed
paymients. Differences in the carrying amount are abio recognized in profit or loss as 4 gain of loss an
derecognition.

Il the terrms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes @ modification gain or loss in profit or lpss. The new
Eross carrying amount s recaloulated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial assets).

8.7 Derecognition of financial asseis

Financial asset is derecognized when one of the following conditions s met: (I} the Group's
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; (4) the finandal asset has  been
wansferred and the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financlal asset; or (W) the financial asset has been transferred, although the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it does not
ratain control aver the transferred asset.

The financial asset has been transferred, If the Group nelther transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset. the asset |s recognized to the
extent of the Group's continuing Involvernent in the asset, whereby the related lability &s recognized
accordingly.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difterence between the sum  of the
consideration received for the part derecognized any cumulative amount of fair value recognized in
other comprehensive income [if the transfer involves any other debt Instrument investments measured
at falr value through other comprehensive income) and the carrying amount allocated to the part
derecognized on the date of derecognition shall be included in profit and boss for the current period.

&8 Derecognition of financial liabilities
& financial lability is removed when the ohligation specified in the contract s discharged or concelled
or expires in whale or in part, An exchange between the Group and lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial Hability,
The difference betwesn the carrging amaodant of a financial liabitity extinguished or transierred  to

another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred o liabilities
assumed, shall be recognized in profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments [Cantinued)
8.9 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the sssets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. A financial instrurment is an equity instrument i, and only if, both
canditions (i) and (i] below are met: (i) The financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another linancial pdset to another antity, of to exchange financial assels or financial
liabilities with anather entity under conditions that are potentislly unfavorable to the Group; and

[ii} 0 the financial indtrument will or may be settled in the Group's own equity instrumenis, il is
a non-derivative nstrument that incledes no contractual obligations for the Group to delbser a
variable number of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will be settled only by the Group
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or anather fnancial asset for a fxed mumber aof s own equity
Instrurments,

Preference shares and perpetual bonds issued by the Group thal should be classified as equity
Instruments are recognited in equity based on the actual amount received.

.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are Initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered (nto and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair vabue at the end of the reporting period. The changes in fair
value are recognized in profit o loss.

The Group accounts for hedge businesses that are efigible and choose to use hedge accounting
In accordance with applicable accounting standards. The Group documents, at the inception of
the hedge, the relatlonship between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking warous hedge transactions. The Group also
documents ts assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing  basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used In hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values ar cash flows of hedged items.

{a) Fair value hedge

Fair walue hedge is @ hedge of the exposure to changes In fair walue of a recognized asset or
liability or an unrecognized firm commitmant, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability
or firm commitment, that is attributable to & particular risk and could affect profit or loss or
ather comprahensive income

The changes in falr value of hedging instruments that are designated and gualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, together with the changes
in fair wvalue of the hodged item attributable to the hedgod risk,

Any adjustment of the carrying amount arising from the recognition of hedging gains or
losses of the hedged item shall be amortized to profit or loss if the hedged item is a financial
instrument measured o1 amortized coat,

The Group discontinues fair value hoedge accounting when the hedging relationship coases
to maet the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the hedging
rolationship, including the hedging nstrument has expired or has been sold, terminated or
exercised. If the hedged items are derecognized, the unamortized adjustment of the carrying
amount is recognized in prafit or loss,
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting(Coniined)
(bl Cash flow hedge

Cash few hedge is o hedge ol the exposure to variability in eash flows that is attributable 1w a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset o hability (sueh as all o some future inberes
payments on variable rate debt] or 3 highly probable forecast transaction that could witimanely
affect the profit or loss.

The effective portion of the net gains and losses of hedging nstruments that are designated and
gualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive incoma and accumulated in
epuity in the “other comprehensive income”, The insffective partion s recognized immediately
in the profit or loss.

Amounts aceumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the profit or loss i the
same periods when the hedged item affects the profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or Is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, amy cumulative gain or loss existing In eguity at that time remains n equity
and is recogndzed in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. When the hedged
future cash flows are no longer expected to occur (for example, the recognized hedged asset is
disgosed of), the cumulative gain or loss previously recagnized in ether comprehensive income is
Immediately reclassified to profit or koss.

8.11 Embedded derivative financial instruments

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the conversion option In a comvertible
bond. i the hybrid contract contains a host that is & financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract for classification and measurement purposes, Otherwise, the embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when:

{ly  Thebr economic charactersstics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract;
(i} A separate Instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative; and
{iiil  The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit ar loss

\Whene an embedded derivative is separated from a hybrid contract, the Group accounts for the host
contract of the hybrid contract in accordance with the applicable accownting standards. Where the
fair value of the embedded derivative is unable to be reliably measured on the basis of the terms and
conditions, the fair value of the embodded derivative is determined as the differcnce between the fair
value of the hybrid contract and the falr value of the host contract. If, after using the above mathod,
the fair value of the embedded derivative at the acquisition date or at the end of a subsequent
financial reporting period Is stil unable to separately measured, the Group designates the entire
hybrid contract as a Fair valee through profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued)
8.12 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

When the Group has a legal right to set off the recognired amounts and the legal right is eurrently
enforceable, and the Group intends either to settie on a net basis, or o realize the financial asset and
settle the financial liability simultaneoudly, financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
ls presentad in the consolidated statement of linancial pasition. Dtherwise, finoncial  assets  and
liabilities shall be sentled respectively but not offset each other, The legally enforceable right of set-off
must not Be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of dtfuull, Insalvency or bankruptcy af the Group or the counterparty.

8.13 Financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Financial assets tranmsferred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, involdng fixed
repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized. They continue to be recorded as investrnents
classified as financial assets before sale or loan. The corresponding liabllity is included in financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements. The ltems which are not derecognized are disclosed In
MNote I¥ 42 Contingent labilities and cormmitments — Collateral.

Consideration paid for financial assets held under agreements to resell are recorded as financial
assets held under resale sgreements, the related financial assets accepted s not recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial positien (Note IV 42 Contingent liabilities and commitments —
Collataral),

The difference between the purchase and sale price is recognized as gain or loss in profit or loss of the
current period using the effective Interest method.

9 Insurance contracts
Level of aggregation
Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF are aggregated into groups for measwring purposes.
Groups of contracts are determined by first Identifying portfolios of contracts, each comprising contracis
subject to similar risks and managed together. Each portiolio s divided inte annual cohorts {ie. by year of
ssue) and contracts in different product lines are cxpected to be in different groups. Each annual cohorts
are divided into three groups:

. Any contracts that onerous on initial recognition;

. Any contracts that, on initial recognition, hawe no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsoquenthy; and

. Any remaining contracts in the annual cohart,

When a contract is recognized, it is added to an existing growp of contracts or, T the contract does not
qualify for inclusion in an existing group, it forms a new group in which future contracts may be added.
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9  Insurance contracts (Continued)
Contract boundaries

The measurement af a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary of sach
contract in the Group.

For insurance contracts, cash flows are within the comtract boundary if they arse from dubstantive rights
and obligations that exist during the reporting perod in which the Group can compel the policyhobkder
to pay premiums or has a substantive obligation to provide services (incheding indurance coverage and
imvestmient services).

For investrment contracts with DPF, the cash flows are within the contract boundarny il they result from a
substantive abligation of the Group to deliver ash at a present ar future date.

Measurement — Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

On initial recognition, the Group medsures a group of contracts as the total of (o] fullilment cash flows,
which comprise estimates of future cash flows, adjusted te reflect the tme value of money and the
associated financinl risks, and a risk sdjustment for non-Tinancial risk; and (b) the CSM. The fulfilment cash
flows of a group of contracts do not reflect the Group's non-performance risk.

Subsequently, the carrying amount of a group of contracts at each reporting date is the sum of the liability
of remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. The liability for remaining coverage comprises
{a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be provided under the contracts in future
perieds and (b} any remaining C5M at that date. The Habllity for incurred claims includes the fulfilment
cash flows for incurred claims and expenses that have not yet been paid, including claims that have been
incurred but not yet reported.

Insurance acquisition cash flows
Inswrance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of
contracts that are directly attributable to the porifolio of contracts to which the Group belongs. Insurance
acquisition cash flows are allocated o groups of contracts wsing systematic and rational methods based on
the total premivms of each group.
Inswrance acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the related contracts are recognized as
saparate assets and tested for recoverability, whereas other insurance acguisition cash flows are included in
the estimate of the present value of future cash flows as part of the measurement of the related contracts,

10 Precious metals
Procious metals comprise gold, siver and ather procious metals,
Procious metals that are not related to the Group's trading activities are initially measured at acquisition
cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable vahse, Precious metals that are

related o the Growp's tracling activities are initisly recogniced at fair value and subsequent changes in fair
value are recognized in profit or loss,
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i1 Property and equipment

iz

i3

Property and equipment including buildings held for use in the supply of services, or far  administrative
purpose [other thon condtruction In progress) are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. When
the eosts attributable 1o the land use rights cannat be reliably measured and separated from that af the
Building a1 inception, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and recarded in property and egquipment.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the property and equipment |other than construction in progress) s
incleded in the cost of the property and equipment (other then construction in progress) if it is probable that
econamic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subteguent expenditure can be
maeasured, and the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognired. Other subsequent expenditure
recognized in profit or loss im the: period in which it i incurred,

Depreciation is recognized as a compenent of operating expenses in the consobdated statement of profit
or lods 5o as to recognize the consumption of the economic value of property and equipment [other than
construction In progress), less their estimated residual valves, over thelr estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line methed. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates are reviewed at the
end of each reparting period.

The useful lves, estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of property and
equipment are as follows:

Estimated Annual

residual depreciation

Classes Useful lives value rates rates
Buildings 5-50 years 3% 1.94%~19.40%
fachinery and equipment 3-11 years 3% B8.82%-32.33%
Motor vehicles 5=8 years 3% 12.13%-19.40%

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrathee purposes are corried at
eost, 84 construction im progress, lese amy Impairment fess, Buildings, machinery and equipment under
construction in progress Is redassified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for thelr intended wie.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from its continued wuse. Any galn or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in other aperating income or operating expenses in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss. The accounting polickes of Impairment of property and equipment
are included in Mote | 17 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill,

Land use rights

Lamd wse rights are classified in other assets and amortized ower a straightdine basis over their authorized
usizful ves,

Foreclosed assets
The Group initially recognizes at lair value the loreclosed financial assets. Mon-linancial foreclosed assets

are Initially recognized at the fair valee of the rights given up by creditors and other costs such as tases
directly atiributable to the asset,
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
13 Foreclosed assets (Cantinued)

Wihen the debtor pays ofl the debts with multipbe assets or in form of resirucluring arrangement, the
Group firstly recognizes and measures the foreclosed financlal assets and restructured rights according
to provision llustrated in Note 1l 81 Initial recognition, dassification and measurement of financial
instruments. The net amount, of the fair value of the rights given up by creditor dedocted the initial
ameunt recognized for the transferred financial assets and restructured rights, should be distributed n
accordance with the proportion of the fair value of each nom-financial asset. The distributed amount showld
be recognized as the initial book value of each non-financial foreclosed assets,

The difference between the fair value and baok value of the rights given up by ereditor i< recorded in prafit
and loss.

14 Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both,

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation and amartization i recognized
the same way ad propery and equiprment and land use rights. Subsequent expenditure incurred for the
investment property Is incleded in the cost of the inwestment property If it s probable that economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure can be measured
reliably. Other subsequent expenditure is recognized in prafit or loss in the period in which it & incurred,

The accounting policles of impalrment of investment property are included in Note 11 17 Impalrment of non-
financial assets other than goodwill,

Where an impairment loas subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the investment progerty s
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impalrment loss
been recognized, A reversal of an impalrment loss 5 recognized in profit or loss,

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recagnizes the amount of
any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related taxes, in profit or loss.

15 Leasing

Lease Is a contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use an asset for a pericd of time In
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognized the right-of-use assets at the commencement date, and recognired the lease
liabilities at the present value of the outstanding lease payments. Lease payments include fised payments,
the amounts expected to be payable by the Group if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option or an option to terminate the lease. Variable lease payments not included In the measurement of the
lease liablity are recognized as an expense in profit or loss when incurred,

Tha right-of-use assets of the Group are measured at costs, which incduda the amount of the initial
maeasurement of lease liabilities, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial
direct costs and less any lease incentives received. If the Group could reasonably determine the ownership
of the |leased asset when the lease term expires, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the asset™s
remaining wseful life. Otherwise, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the recoverable costs of right-of-use
assets ane lower than the carrying amount, the value of right-of-use assets will be decroased down to the
recoverable costs,
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Il SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
15 Leasing (Continued)
The Growup as lessee (Continued)

The Group chooses not to recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as expense in profit o loss on a
straight-line basis over each period of the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months ar lesd. Leases of low value assets are the underlying asses are of low value when nsw,

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in a flinance lease, o finance lease receivable as an amount equal te the net
lease investment is recognized and the finance lease ascet is derecopnized at the commencerment date
The fimance lease receivables are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position as loans and
AcANEES 10 CUSIMEers.

‘When the Group is the lessor in an operating lease, rental income from operating leases is recognized as
other operating income in the consolidated statement of profit or lows on a straight-line basis over the term
of the related lease. The initial direct costs are included in the carrying amount of the underlying assets and
is recognired &5 expenses over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

16 Intangible assets

Intangible assets aoguired scparately and with finite useful lives are carrled ot cost less accumulated
amartization and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful
livas is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from S ta 20
WEArs,

Imangible assets with Indefinite useful lves are not amortized, but are subject to annual ImpaiFment
assessment

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference betwean
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profitor loss.

Expenditure incurred for an internal research and development project is recorded as expenditure on
the retearch phase and development phase by the Group, respectively, The classification criterion is the
submission of Project Plan [Definition of project objectives), Projects with incompleta submissions are in
the research phase and those with completed submissions are in the development phase. Expenditure
on the research phase s recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it ocours. Expenditure on the
development phase is capitalized only when the following conditions are satisfied;

{1} It i technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or salg;
{2)  The Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
{3}  The Group can demonstrate the ways in which the intangible asset will generate economic benelits,

Including the evidence of the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the
intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset;
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
16 Intangible assets (Continued]

{4)  Thete are adeguate technical, linancial and other resources to complete the development and the
shility 1o use or sell the intengible aset;

{5) The expenditure attributable to the intangible aseet during its development phase can be reliably
measured,

Expenditure an the development phase which does not satisfy oll of the above conditions is recognized in
prafit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Thie Group capitalizes eligible projects in accordance with relevant regulations. The scope of capatalized
research and development expenditure includes capitalized stall costs and oulsourcing  service  fees
peneraled during the developmient ph.ﬂc al ressarch and d:ul:lu.'lprh:rl'l. projects that :.u'l.-i:.hr capitalication
conditions. Among which, capitalized stafl costs refer to the salary and employee benefits of own staff
generated during the development phase of research and development projects that satisfy capitalization
conditions. The salary and employee benefits mainky include salaries, employee benefits, labor insurance,
housing funds, and annuity scheme, ete

17 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assels to determine whether there is any Indication that those assets have suffered an Impaiement loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset ks estimated in order to determing the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs 1o sell and value in use,

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less tham its carrying amount, the carrying amount  of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss,

Where an impairment boss subsequently rewverses, the carmying amount of the asset |5 increased to the
revised estimate of i3 recoverable amount, to the extent that the Increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, had no impalrment hoss been recognized.
A reversal of an impalrment loss |s recognized in the consoldated statement of profit or loss.

18 Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liguid assets, which are readity convertible inte known
amounts of cash and subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash and assets with origingl maturity of three months or less under cash and balances with central banks,
depaosits with banks and other financial institutions, placoments with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions and financial assets held under resale agreemaents,

19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Banks ordinary equity holders is recognized as a liability in the Group’s and
the Bank's finandial statements in the pericd in which the dividends are approwed by the annual general
maating of the Bank.

As authofized by the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to declare and
distribute dividends on preference shares, Preference share dividend distribution s recognized as a Gability

in the Group®s and the Bank's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Board of Directors of the Bank.
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I SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
20 Contingent liabilities and prowvisions

A contingent Eability [s 8 possible obligation that arses from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the sceurrence or non-occurrence of one of more uncertain future events not wholly within
the contral af the Group. It can alse be o present obligation arising fram past events that i not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or  the amount of
abligation cannot be measured reliably.

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it 5
probabde that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a relisble estimate can be made of
the amount af the obligation.

Provisions are messured ot the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reparting period, taking into account the risks and  uncerainties  surrounding  the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrylng amount is the present value of those cash Mows.

21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduclery capacites to safeguard assets for customers
in accordance with custody agreements between the Group and securities imvestment funds, social security
funds, Insurance companies, rust companies, gualified foreign institutional Investors, annuity schemes
and other Institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for its services provided under the
custady agreements and docs not have any interest in the ecomomic risks and rewards reloted to assets
undier custody, Assets under custody are not recognized in the Group’s consalidated statement of linancial

position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers. Under the terms of entrusted loan
arrangements, the Group gramis loans to borrowers, as an Intermediary, according to the loan  object,
purgose, amount, interest rate and repayment plan determined by the principal. The Group is respansible
for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services
rendered and does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted leans. The entrusted loans
and funding for entrusted funds are not recognized m the Group's consolidated statement of finamcial
position.

22 Financlal guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract s a contract that requires the ssuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for @ koss incwrred because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the original or revised terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subseguent
to initial recognition, the Group's liahilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantes fees, and the expected credit loss provision required to settle the
guarantes, Any incroase in the liability refating to guarantees is recognized in profit or loss,

Thar impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is medsured wing ECL modeks, The
Group has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be
settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing ancther financial instrument.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments (Continued)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss sllowance is recognized as a provision.
However, for contracts that inclede both o loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
separately identify the expected eredit losses on the undrown commitment eamponent from thase on the
loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with
the lons allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected eredit lowes exceed the gross
cairying amaunt of the loan, the expected eredit losses are recognized a5 a provision.

23 Related parties

The Group determines the Group's related parties in accordance with IFRSS and other relevant pravisions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 1, management s required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
Judgements, estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant lactors
Including reasonable expectations for future events,

The judgemaents, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Aevisions to
accounting estimates are recognired in the period in which the estimate & revised and in future perinds as
appropriate.

The foflowing are the critical judgements and key estimates management has made in the process of applying
the Group®s accounting policies that have a significant risk of causing a8 materlal adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and Habilithes within the next twebe months,

1 Classification of filnanclal assets

The critical judgements the Group has made In determining the dassification of financlal assets  Include
analysis of business models and characteristics of contractual cash flows.

The Group determines the business model for managing financial assets at the level of financial asset
portfolin, The factors considered include how the asset's performance s evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

When assessing whether the contractual cash flow of financial assets is consistent with the basic lending
arrangemant, the Group has the following main judgements: whather the principal may be subject to
change in the duration or amount of money due to prepayments during the duration; whether interests
only included time valwe of money, credit risk, other basic borrowing risks, and comiderations for costs
and profits. For exampla, whether the amount paid in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and
interest on the cutstanding principal, as well as reasonable compensation for early termination of the
contrack.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
2  Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The: measurement of thie expected credit lods allowance Tor financial assets messured a1 amortized cost and
OO and for exposures arising fraom some loan commitments and linancial guarantee contracts, is an area
that requires the wse of complex madels and significont assumptions about future econamic eonditions and
credit behadar (the likelihood of custormers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techaigues used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note IV 44,1 Credit risk.

3  Fairvalue of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of finandal instruments which are not
guoted in an active market. These valuation technigues include the use of recent transaction prices of the
same orf similar instruments, discounted cash Now analysis and generally aceepled pricing models. Te the
extent practical, market observable inputs and data, such as interest rate yleld curves, foreign currency
rates and implied aption volatilities, are used when estimating fair value through a waluation technbgue.
Whaere markel ebservalsle inpuls are nob availabbe, 1.|'n:1|r dre estimaled using assumplions that Gre calilsrated
as closely as possible to market observable data, However, areas such as the credit risk of the Group and
the counterparty, liquidity, volatilities and correlations require management to moke estimates. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instraments.

‘With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scale policy directed financing transactions,
fair valwe is determined using the stated terms of the relaved instrument and with reference to terms
determined by the PRC government in similar transactions engaged in or directed by the PRC government.
In this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or ylelds reflecting arm’s length transactions of a
comparable size and tenor.

4 Deferred taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business for which the
witimate tax effect is uncertain, The Group made certaln estimation and judgement for items of uncertainty
in the application of tax legislations, taking into account existing tax legislation and past practice of tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
estimated, such differences will affect the current income tax, deferred income tax and VAT during the
period In which such a determination |s made.

5 Consolidation of structured entities

‘Whare the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured antities, the Group makes significant
judgement on whather the Group controbs and should consolidate these structured enfities.  When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual rights and obligations In light of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Growp's power over the structured entities, performs analysis
and tests on the varlable retwrns from the structured entities, incduding but not  §mited to commission
incoma and asset management foes carmed a5 the assct manager, the rotention of residual Income, and, if
any, the liguidity and other support provided to the structured antitios, The Group also assesses whether
it acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration 10 which it is entitled for asset management services, the Group's
exposure to variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entitles.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {Continued)
6 Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets through various types of
transactions intluding regular way sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, securitict lending. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has
transferred these linancial assets which qualify for a full ar partial derecognition.

Where the Group enters inta structured teansactions by which it transfers linancial assets 1o structured
entities, the Group analyres whether the substance aof the relstionship between the Group and these
structured entities indicates that it controls these strectured entities to determine whether the Group
needs to consolidate these structured entities. This will determine whether the following derecognition
analysis should be conducted at the consolidated level or at the entity level from which the finpncial sesets
are transferred,

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to determine
whether the derecognition eriteria are met based on the fallowing considerations:

. whether it has transferred the rights to recelve contractual cash flows from the financial assets or the
wransfer qualifies for the “pass through® of those cash flows to independent third parties.

. the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets  are
transferred. Significant judgement ks applied in the Growp's estimation with regard to the cash flows
before and after the transfers and other factors that affect the outcomes of Group's assessment on
the extent that risks and rewards are transferred.

. where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls owver
these financial assets by assessing whether the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entlrety to an unrefated third party and Is able to exerclse that abllity unilaterally and without needing
to impose additional restrictions on the transfer, and if the Group has continuing involvernent in these
transferred financial assets. Where the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes these financial
assets and recognizes separately as assets or liabilives any rights and obligations created or retained
in the wransfer. Otherwise, the Group continues to recognize these financial assets to the extent of its
continuing invalvement in the financial assats.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1  MNETINTERESTINCOME

Year ended 31 December

2023 022
Interest income
Loans and advances to customars BOB.672 Tel, 744
Incheding: Corparate loans and advances 474,171 417,978
Persanal loans and advances 334,501 343,766
Financial investments
Delbt instrument investments at amortized cost 255 838 231,114
Other debt instrement investrments at fair valee
through athir comprahensive incoma 52,328 46,4431
Balances with central banks 39,341 34,494
Placements with and loans 1o banks and other finoncial institutions 18,774 9,853
Financial assets held under resale agreements 28,452 16,672
Depasits with banks and ather financial insttutions 20,283 B,144
Subtotal 1,223 698 1,108,464
Interest expense
Due 10 customers [475,534) {388,546)
Depasits from banks and ather financial instivutions {71,337) |52,562)
Delit securities issued {549,548) {45,140)
Bosrowings from central banks (26,459) (24,5944)
Placemints from banks and other financial institutions {16,571) {6,776)
Financial assets sold wnder repurchase agreements {2,499} [593)
Subtotal [651,948) {518,581}
Mat interesl intame 571,750 580,BB3
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2043 204

Fes and commission income
Electronic banking services 27,459 26,772
Agency services 20,438 23,965
Bank cards 16,307 15,760
Comsultancy and advisory services 13,337 11,976
Settlement and clearing Services 10,796 10,296
Custodian and other fiduciary services 4,078 4,308
Credit commitment 1,793 1,979
Others 502 4559
Subtatal 54,710 95,518

Fee and commission expense
Bank cards {9.129) {8.573)
Electronic banking services [3,360) 13.386)
Settlement and clearing services [1.321) {1,391)
Others [BO7) (B8&]
Subtotal {14,617) (14,238)
Ket fee and CommMEsion INcome BO.093 E1,282

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 December

— B LS
et gain on debt instruments held for trading 6.510 13,244
KNet gain on precious metals ] 5,597 3623
KNet galn/(loss) on foreign exchange rate derivatives 10,295 {11,050)
Net gain on interest rate derivatives 1,599 516
Others (B77) [a14)
Total 23,124 5,519

il MNet poin on precious metels consists of nel goin on precious mefels and precious meral reloted dervative
pradvgts
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4  NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Year ended 31 December

Mote 2023 2022
Net gain on debt Instruments designated as at FYPL 108 5
Met gain on other debt instruments and equity Investments
maasured at FUPL 16,046 6,040
Nt loss on financial liabilities designated as at FyPl [y [422) [B43)
Met gain on other debt instrument and other
equity investments measured at FVOC 2,635 859
Crthers {1,603) {352)
Total 16,764 5,909

[ Met foss o financial linbities designated o8 of FYPL consists of the papoble amount upon the moturity of
structured deposits designried of FYPL

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

o e

¥ nded r
2023 2022
Imsurance premium 3.258 2,841
Met (loss)/gain on forelgn exchange {5.467) 5,613
Rental income 1,371 1,241
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 1,037 a00
Government grant 1,317 TaF
Crthars 1,183 1,138
Taotal 2,699 12,530
& OPERATING EXPENSES
— Year ended 31 December
Hotes 2023 2022
Staff costs [i] 151,628 145,641
Goneral eperating and administrative exponses {2] G247 61,554
Imsurance benafits and claims 6128 5,758
Depreciation and amortization 21,621 20,745
Tan and surcharges 131 T.260 6,525
Orthers 3,621 3,348
Tatal 252,305 243,571

In 2023, the Group’s research and development expenses amounted to RAMB3,7221  million
(2022 RAMEBE3, 242 millian).
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
b OPERATING EXPEMNSES (Continued)

{1} Staff costs

__Year ended 31 Decgmber

2023 2022

Shart-term employee benefits
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies 100,620 5,362
Housing funds. 10,151 9,673
Sacial iImsuranoe B.3a4 5977
Including: Medical insurance 5,987 5,634
Maternity inserance 186 180
Employment injury insurance 171 1583
Labor unign fees and staff education expences 3,858 4,283
Others 10,515 11,316
Subtotal 131488 116,611
Defined contribution benefits 20,127 18,992
Early retirement benefits 13 33
Tatal 151,628 145,641

{2} Included in general eperating and administrative expenses is auditer's remuneration of RMBL17 millien
for the year, consisting of RMB112 million for linancial staternents audit service and RMBS million for
nan-pudit prafiedional service (2022: RMB110 millisn for the ywear, consisting of EMBI0E million far
fimancial statements audit service and AMB2 million for non-audit professienal sendce).

{3) City eanstruction and mainteaance tax i3 caleulated at 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT and sales taxes for the
Group's Demestic Operations.

Education surcharge is calculated at 3%, while local education surcharge ts calculated at 2% of VAT
and sales taxes for the Group's Domestic Operations.

Anniisl Ragor BOIYIE
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr ended 38 Decembes J023
[Ameums in millions of Renminbs, unless otheraise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7  BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1} Details of the Directars’, Supervisors” and Senlor Management's emolumenis are as follows {in thousands

of AME):
¥ear ended 31 December 2023
Basic  Contribution Other
salaries o retirement benefits
and berneflt  inkind
Mem Notes Fees  aBowances schames [x) Total
Executive Directors
G Shu - 73 136 &9 B3B8
Zhang Xuguang = 605 128 91 824
Liim Li = 605 138 91 824
Indapendent Non-Exacutive Directon
Huang Thenthang 380 = = = 380
LEUNG KO May Yee, Margaret Ei] - - - 180
Liu Shauying 380 = — — IED
W Liansheng 380 - - - 180
Wang Changyun 360 - = = 160
Non-Executive Directors
Thow Ji - - - - -
Li Wi - - - - -
Liu Xiaopeng - - - - -
Yiao Yiang - - - - -
Zhang Qi - - - -
Supervisors
Deng Lijuan - - - - -
Huang Teo 50 - - - 50
‘Wang Suejun 50 - - - 50
Liv Honguia 00 - - - 300
Ku Kianglin EE - - - 130
Wang Xixin 280 - - - TR0
Serior Management
¥u Han = 605 133 a4 LEF
L Mawang - 605 118 S0 [FE]
Li Mg 1l - 252 55 39 346
Wu Gang i} = 516 12 46 674
Executive Director resigned
Fu Wanjun fiii] - 673 136 29 L E
Non-Exccutive Diroctors resigned
Liac Luming [iv) = - = = =
Supersors resignod
‘Wang lingdong ] - 112 12 B 132
Wu Gang i 17 - = = 17
Senior Managemaent resigned
Zhang ¥i |wii] - 101 21 14 116
Li Zhicheng [il] - 172 3z 12 116
Han Guogiang lix] = 1,031 226 a0 1347
Tatal 2,507 5,450 1247 753 10857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SEMIOR MANAGEMENT
[Continued)

(1) Details of the Directors”, Supendsors” and Senior Management's emoluments are as folfows [in thousonds
af AMA): (Continued]
] Litr Mowng wod elected Execidive Vice President effective 21 August 2023
(i W Gang win elected Chicf Risk Gffieer effective 1 Jume 2023,

(7))  Fu Wooun feased 0 by Vior Chairmon of fhe Bpard of Dwectars ond  Execwtve  Director  aod
Executive President effective 26 December 2023,

{wl  Lioa Luming ceased to be Non-Executive Director effective 78 Seprember 2023,

fe)  Wong lingdang ceosed (o be Chovrman af the Soord of Supenvsaors ood Superesior of the Shoreholders
Representative effective 7 Februnry 2023,

fal Wy Gong ceased to be Supendsor Arpreseating Employees effective 25 Aprd 2023
fal} Zhamg ¥i ceased to be Execubive Vice President effective 21 March 2023
feill] L ghicheng ceosed fo be Chéef Risk Officer effeciive 28 February 2023,

fx} Ham Guogiong oresed fo be Sporetovy of the Board of Directors pod the compony secretovy effective
2 December 2023,

(f  Other benefits in kind include the Fork's contribwidions to medical fund, housing fund ond other social
ey winich are hie to Iobour ond Security outhorities bosed on the lower of certain percentoge of
the savaried ond ollwances oF the prescribed woper Mot @i requived by the retevant regulotions isued by

the government outharities.

The total compensation pockages for the abose Directors, Supenvisors and Senior Management for the year ended
1] December 2023 have not yet been finalised m accordance with regulations of the relevant authartses in the
PRC at the date of this consalidated Ninancial statements. The final compensation will be disclased in & separate
announcement when determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Ameunts in millions of Renminbd, unies ooheradse ated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
{1} Details of the Directors’, Supervisars’ and Senior Management's emoluments are o follows fin thousends of
RMB]: (Continued)
‘Year ended 31 December 2022 [Restated)
Basic  Contribution Other
salares o retirement banefits
and benefit im kind
Item Hotes Fees  allowances schesmes (xv] Todal
Exmeeutive Directors
Gu Shu - 201 155 B& 1,142
Fu Wanjun (i) - 75 11 B 04
Ihang Xuguang - 811 143 B 1,040
Lin Li - 1 143 B6 1,040
Indepandant Non-Executive
Directors
Huang Zhenthong 380 - - - 380
LEUNG KO May Yee,
Margaret 380 - - - 180
Lius Shauying 361 = - = 161
Wi Liansheng 380 - - - 380
‘Wang Changyun [y 10 - - = 10
Maon-Exctutive Directors
Liao Luming - - - = i
Li Wi - - - - -
Zhou Ji - - - - -
Liu Xigopeng - . - = 5
Xiao Xiang - - = = =
Zhang Qi [y - - - - -
SUpErvisers
Deng Ljuan fiv] = - . £ by
Wu Gang, 50 - - - 50
Huang Tao 50 - - - 50
‘Wang Xuajun (] 29 - - - F+
Liu Hongxia 300 - - - ino
Xu Nianglin 330 - - - 330
Wang Xl 280 - - - 2B0
Senwor Managerment
¥u Han - B11 133 a0 1,034
Liu Jiawang [w) - 03 51 12 176
Han Guagiang - 1,989 106 85 2,780
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Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

[Continued]
(1) Detoils of the Directors’, Supervisars’ and Semor Manogement's emoluments ore as folfows {in thousands of
RMBE): [Continued]
Year gnded 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Basic Comtrbution Other
salaries to retirement benefils
and banefit in kind
Iem Notes Feas allowances schemes |=¥) Total
Executive Director resigned
Zhang Qingsong {id] - B0 108 55 764
Kon-Executive Diroctors
resigried
Wang Xinxin {vii} 399 - - - 399
Supervisors resigned
Wang lingdang (=] = 901 152 83 1,138
Fan liangiang [x} - - - = -
Shaa Lihong [x1] 1 - - - 21
Senior Management resigned
Cui Yong [xi] - 473 B4 48 G05
Zhang i {xid) i E11 130 85 1,016
Li Zhicheng [xiv] - 1,989 219 83 2,701
Total 2,910 10,376 1,525 8321 15 652

il Fu Wanjun wos elecled Vice Chodman of the Board of Birectors and Executive Director ond Exetirlive
President affectve 20 lonisary 2023,

i Wong Chongyun was elected Independent Non-Executive Birector effective 27 December 2027,
fwl  Ihang OF wos elected Mon-Exequtive Director effective 22 December 2022,

ful  Deng Livan wos slected Supervsor of the Sharsholders Representative effective 29 June 2022,
fel  Wong Kusjua waes elected Supenvisor Representing Employees effective 10 Moy 2022,

fell Ll iowong wos efected Executive vice President effective 28 November 2022,

fail  Thang Quagsong ceased to be Vice Chairman of the Boord of Directors and Executive Director and Executive
President effective 6 Septermber 2022

fwill]  Wong Xinein ceased to be independent Mon-Eeecutive Director gffective 22 Decembeyr 2022,

{m]  Wong fingdong ceesed to be Chairman af the Boord of Superwzors ond Supervisor of the Shoreholders
Representotive sffective F Februnry 2024,

fid  Fon fongiong ceased to be Supenisor of the Shareholders Representotive effective 13 Juoe 2022
]  Shaoo Libong coased to be Supervisor Representing Cmplayees effectve 10 May 2022

fmll  Eul ¥ong cemsed to be Executive Wice President offectivg 9 August H022

{uif] Fhang ¥ ceaied o be Evecutive Vice President effective 21 Morch 2023,

fuiw] Li Zhicheng cemied to be Chief Risk Officer effective 28 February J023.

fav]  Dther benefits i kad include the Barnk's contnbutions o medicl fund, housing fund ond other sooal
impronces, wivich are papohie to Imhour ond security outhorities bozed on the lower of certoin percentoge of
the soiaries pnd pllewanses o Che preicrbed woper Novils of required by the refevanl regulationd (ciped by
the government owtharibied.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr ended 38 Decembes J023
[Ameums in millions of Renminbs, unless otheraise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

{2) Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

202 Mraneny

[} O the five indiiduals with the highest emoluments i the Group, none of them bre Difectons,
Supervisors or Senlor Management whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments
af the fve individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 Decermber 2022 were 44 Tollows:

¥ear ended 31 December _

2023 2022

Basi salaries and allowances 23 1

iscretionary bonuses. 9 16

_Contribution to retiremant benefit schemes and others 1 1
Total a3 k13

i} The aumber of these five individuals whose emalurments fell within the follewdng bands are as follows:

Year en 1D r
2023 2022

RME34,500,001 vo RMBS5,000,000 yuan
RMB5,000,001 to RMBS,500,000 yuan
RKES,500,001 ta AMEBS, 000,000 yuan
RMEB6,000,001 to RMBS, 500,000 yuan
RMB6, 500,001 to RMEBT, 000,000 yuan
RMBT, 000,001 to AMBT, 500,000 yuan
RMEBT, 500,001 to RMBE,000,000 yuan
RMEE, 000,001 to RMBE,500,000 yuan
RMBE S00,001 to AMBS,000,000 yuan - 1
R ES 0001 to KVIBS, 500,000 yuan - -
RAABS, 500,001 to AMB10, 000,000 yuan - -
RMBL0,000,001 to RMB 10,500,000 yuan = =
RMBELD, 500,001 to RMBLL, 000,000 yuan 1 =
RME11,000,001 to RMBLL 500,000 yuan - -
RMBL1, 500,001 to RMB 12,000,000 yuan - -
RMEL 2,000,001 to RMBL2, 500,000 yuan - 1

1 =1 1 | M e
U I R I

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the five highest pald individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as a campensation for loss of office. For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022, none of the five highest pald individeals waived any emalument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yeae ended 31 Decomber 2023
{Ampunts in mallons of Benmindl, unless othonsdsestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
[Continued)

{3) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no emolument was pald by the Group
to any af the Directors and Supervisors as an inducement o join or upon jaining the Group or as a
compensation fer loss of effice. Except for the Annuity Scheme and Pension Scheme (Note Il 7 Employee
benefits], there were no other retirement benelits for Directors or Supervisors, or consideration provided
1o third parties for making available Directors’ or Supervidors’ sendces: and none of the Directars ar
Supervisors waived any emolument, or had material interests, whether directly of indirectly, in any
material transactions, arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group's business for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 20232,

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directors, Supervisors of certain controflied body
corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at arm's length in the crdinary course
of business. For the years ended 31 Decermber 2023 and 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, the respective balances of lcans and advances from the Group to
Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or
Supervisars were not significant. The Group did not provide any guarantee or security to the Directors,
Supervisars of eertain controlled bady corparates and connected entities of the Directors of Supendisors
in respact af thelr loans, guasi-lpans or eredit transactions.

8 CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

—Year ended 31 December
e 2023 2022
Loans and advances to customiers 138,883 140,967
Fimancial investrments
Diebt instrument investments ot amortized eost {5.464) 1,919
OHher debit insteument investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income {2.235) {4.094)
Provision for guarantees and commitments (B06) 7,669
Placements with and loans to banks and ather financial institutions S (268]
Deposits with banks and other financial Institutions 58 [152)
Fimancial assets held under resale agreements 1,128 [462]
Others 3.379 [313]
Tatal 135,707 145,266

Annual Bepart MO

368/524



MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembsers 7023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

i u r
2023 2022
Current income tax
= PRC Enterprise Income Tax A 584 54,326
= Hong Kong 5AR Income Tax Hi6 Tar
= Other jurisdicthons Income Tax 208 361
Subrotal 49,618 55,394
Deferred tax (Mote IV 22) {12,019} {7.B07)
Total 37,599 47,587

Domestic and Overseas Branches Income Tax i calewlated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit lor
bath years, and also includes supplementary FRC tax on Overseas Branches as determined in accordance  with

ani
governed by the relevant tax regulations in Chinese mainland. Taxation arising in ather jurisdictions (including

the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations, Pre-tan deduction items of enterprise Income tax

Hong Kong SAR) is caleulated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 can be reconciled to the

profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Year ended 31 Decembeer

Naote 2023 2022
Prafit before tax 307419 306453
Tax calculated at applicable PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 76,855 76,613
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose m {51,884} [46,587)
Tax effect of costs, expenses and losses not
deductible for tax purpose 16,106 20,320
Tax effect of perpetual bonds interest expense {3,484} {2.810)
Effzet af differant tax rates in other jurisdictions 6 [19)
Imcomie Lax expense 37,599 47,587

1)  Mon-toxohie inconse primarify inclodes imterest income from PAC treosiy bonds and municipal gowernment bonds

10 DIVIDENDS

Year 31 b

Motet 2023 2022

Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid
Cash dividend related to 2022 11 77,766 -
Cash dividend related to 2021 121 - 71,378
77,766 72,376
Dividends on preference shares declared and paid 13) Z128 4,064
Dividends an preference shares declared and unpaid 13) = 1,936
Intorest on perpetual bonds declared and paid 4] 13,935 11,239

202 Memeeny
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbs, aniess otheradse stated)

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(1) Dstribution of dividend on ordirary shares for 2022

A cash dividend of RMBOI22? (tax weluded] per ordinory  thare  reloded te 2022 amounting o
AMBF7 766 million frax included) in fotal was opprowed, affer the required approprigtions for the stotutory
turpius reserve and the general reserve for 2022 o8 detecmined in accovdance with he relevent accounting rules
and finoncio! regulations opplicoble fo PRC enterpeises (the “PRC GAAPT), af the annuel genero! meeting heid an
29 Jume 2023,

The above dividend was recognized as distribution and disiributed duning the yeor ended 11 December 2023,
(2} Dstribution of dividend on ordirary shares for 2020

A roth dividend of RMBOJOGR ftar mcluded] per ordinery  dbare  relmled ro 2021, omoimting  f0
AMBRE A6 million (paw included) in total was approwed, after the reguired oppropriotions for the sipritory Surplus
reserve and the general reserve for 2021 o3 determined i occordance wilh the PRC GAAF, al the annual general
meeting held an 29 June 2077,

The abowe dividerd was recogriied a3 distributron and distributed duning the yeor ended 11 December 2022,

(3 Distribwtion of dividend on preference shares
Distrrburion of dividend on preference shoves for 2023
A cosh dividend ot the dividend rate af 532% per annum reloted to the first trarche of preference shares of 2022
to 2023 omounting to AMBZ, 128 milon (tox included)] i total wos approved ab the Boord of Déredlors’ Meeling
held an 29 August J023 and distributed on & NMowember 2023
Duseriburion of dividend ea proference shoves for 2022
A pash gividend at the dividend rote of 4.84% per annwm reloted to the second tranche of peeference shares of
2021 to J02} amouwnting to AMBLA3E milion (lex fncluded) in toto! wos coproved of the Bpard of Directors’
Merting heid on 36 Mmeary 2022 end distributed @n 11 March 2022,
A osh diwidend of the dividend mete of 5.32% per onnum reloted fa the first franche of preference shores of 2021
to 2022 ecrmounting to AMDZ, 128 milion (tox included] in total wos approved at the Boord of Divecors’ Meeling
heid on 23 August J23 ond distributed on F Mowember 2002
A cosh dividend ot the dividend rate of 4.84% per annum relmted to the second trarche of preference shores of
2022 to JO23 omaunting to AMBLSIE milion (e ioluded] im tatel was approved of the Boord of Dinechors’
Meeting held on 28 December 2022 and distibuted on 13 March 2023, As ot 31 December 2022, the dividends
on preference shares declared ond wapoid was recognired in the consoWdated stafement of finameial position,

(4} Distribution of interest on perpetival bonds
Distributlon of Interest on perpetval bomds for 2023

An fnterest of the inferest rote of 3.49% per annum related fo the 2022-first tronche of pevpetual bonds of
AMBSO Bbilliv amounfing to RMBL 245 milion in tote! wos declared on 20 Febeuory 2033 and distribured an
23 Februmry 2023,

An interest of the mferest rofe of J48% per onnum reloled fo the 2000-first tronche of perpetun! bonds
of AMEFS Blion amownting fo AMB2.958 malanr o tore! wel declored an 10 May 2023 and distributed on 12
Aoy 2023,

232 ey
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Far the ypear ended 31 Decomber 2003
{Amaunty in millons of Renamindi, unless athorwisestated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 DIVIDENDS (Continued)
{4) Distribution of interest on perpetial bonds (Contineed)
Bistribution of Interest on perpefual bonds for 2023 (Continued)

An inferest o the indevest roie of 4.39% per annum redated fo the 2019-first rronche of perpeted’ bomds of
RABES bifion amounting to RMEIFIT millien i tedol wai declored on 17 Awgust 3033 ond disfritiited on 20
August 2025

An intevest of the intevest rote of 4.50% per ganum refated fo the 20X0-second fronche of perpetual bonds
of RMA3S bitfion amounting fe RMEL 575 millorn dn fodel wos declared on 32 Awgust 2023 and distethuted on
24 Augerst M023.

An intevedt ot Bhe interest rolé af A20% per andum felafed to the MM B-decand ranché af perpetual bondy
of FMEIS bilion amoumping fo AMBLLA0 milion in tobe! was declared on 41 Avgust J023 ond distnbuted on
5 September 2021,

An intevest of the interest rote of 3.07% per onnum refoted to the J0F2second tranche of perpetucl bonds
of RMB20 hillon amourting to AMBSSD milfion in totol wor declored on 31 August 2023 ond distrbuted on
5 September 2023,

An inferest of the interest rode of 2.76% per apnum related fo the 2021-first tronche of perpefund bonds of
RAMGLE bififon omounting to R, 504 miton in toim! wos declored on 14 SNovember 2023 ond distributed on 16
Mowermber 7023

Bistribuntion of interest on perpetunl bonds for Hk2

An interest of the inderest rote of 148% per arnum redated fo the 2020-first rronche of perpetun) bonds of
RABRES milor amounting fo RMEZ 958 miliion in tofo! wad declared on 7 Moy 2027 and dicrcibated on 17 Moy 2022,

An interest of the inferest rode of 4 379% per apnum reloted ho the 2019-fiest tranche of perpefunl boads of
RAEES hifon amouating do AMEZ P3P milipn 0 todal was declared on 18 Adqust 2022 and distrbuted on 20
Auguit 7022,

An intevest ol the dnfevest nrle of A50% per oanum mefeted fo the J0R0-second (amache of perperual bensds
of RMIIS bilfion omounting to RMBLETS aiillan in todel wos dedlored an 22 August 2022 and distebuted on
24 Avgust 2022,

An interest ot the interest rate of 4.20% per onnum related fo the 20159-second tranche of perpetual bonds of
RMEFS bilion emounting (o RMEBLAA0 milWon i totol wos deciared on I Sepfember 2022 ond ditributed on 5
September 2022,

An interest ot the indesest rode of 3.96% per annum redated to the 2021.first tronche of perpeiuc! bonds of
RAMESD bitfian amounting fe RAME1504 mifan A tobn wies deckored on 14 Movember JI2 and distributed on 16
Movemnber 2022,

{5 A final dividend of AMERE23109 (lax included] per ovdinary sbore in respect of the yeor ended 31 December 2023

feltaiing AMBE0.E1] mifion (fax included) har been propoved by the Board of Directors and i wilect fo approvel
by the ardincry equity halders in the annwal general meeting,
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Far the year ended 31 December 2003
(AmaunLs in milon of Rermindl, unless othoraice stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Thie caleulation of basic and diluted earnings per share |5 a3 follows:

__Year ended 31 December
2033 2022
Earnings:
Prafit for the year attributable te equity holders of the Bank 268,356 258,232
Less: profit for the year attributable to other equity instruments holders
of the Bank 116.063) {17.239)
Profit Tor the year attributable to erdinary equity holders
of the Bank 253,293 241,993
Number of shares:
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in millﬁgﬂ 349,033 349,983
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RME yuan) 0.72 0.69

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank issued two non-cumulative
preference shares, respectively, and the specific terms are included in Mote IV 33 Other equity instrumaents.

From 2019 to 2023, the Bank issued a total of eight non-cumulative undated tier 1 cagital bonds, and the
apecific terms are included in Note IV 33 Other equity instrumeants,

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, cash dividends of RMB2,128 millian (tax
included) of non-cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 3023 and nterests of
RABIBEL3 935 million af non-cumalative undated tier 1 capital bonds n respect af 2023 were deducted
from the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Bank [2022: cash dividends of
RAABE,000 million (tax included) of non-cumulative preference shares and interests of AMB11,239 million of
non-curnulative undated tier 1 capitel bonds declared in respect of the year of 2022).

Thie conversion feature of preference shares i considered to fall within  contingently  Bsuable  ordinary
shares, The triggering events of conversion did not occur for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022, and therefore the conwversion feature of preference shares has no dilutive effect on
earnings per share calculation.

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at_31 Docembar

Notes 2023 2022
Cash TL 140 67,180
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks 1] 2,359,006 2,153,612
Surplus reserve deposits with central banks 121 338,123 168,295
Other deposits with central banks &l 152582 157.997
Subitotal 2,920,851 2,548,084
Accrued interest 1,196 1,046
Total 2,921,047 2,549,130

Anniisl Ragor BOYF1E

372/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amouns i millices of Renminkd, unles ctheracie staced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1¥ CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS {Continued)

1) The Group ploces mandatory reserve deposits with the PEOC and oversens regulotory bodies. These incivde AAE
reserer deposits and faredgn currency reserve deposits thet ore not avedlable for use in the Group's daily operations.

As ot 31 December 2023, the mondatory deposit reserwe robios of the domestic bronches of the Bork in respect of
customer deposiis derominoted in BME and foreign curmrencies were consésfent with the regu nt of the PEOC
Fhe mondotory resevve funds placed with the central bank of domestic subsidicries of the Group ore determined
by the PBOC The amounts af mandotory resenee deposits pioced with ihe centrol banks of those couniries or
regions outiide Chinese motafond ore determined by focal jurisdictions.

{2)  Swplus reserve depgosils with cerriral bonks inclede funds for the prrpose of cosh settlerment and obher kinds of
wnrestrcted deposits.

{3 Other deposis with centraf onks primorily represent [iscol deposits ond foreign exchonge risk reserve ploced with
the PBOC that are nod avalable for use f the Group™s delly aparelions,

13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

S 2022

Depasits with:
Domestic banks 1,008,493 573,034
Other domestic financial institutions 15980 9,502
Overdeat banks 49 9949 A6, 130
Subtatal 1,074,467 628,666
Accrued interest 5,983 3,538
Allowance for impairmaent losses {1379} 11,318
Carrying amount 1,080,076 630,585

14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

A
Lt e lh
Placements with and leans to:
Domestic banks 142 828 153,580
Dher domestic financial institutions 157,965 144,529
Overseas banks and ather financial institutions 214,983 202,003
Subtatal 515,776 500,112
Accrued interest 3,539 2,780
Allowance for impairment losses {3,134} 12.562)
Carrylng amount 516,181 500,330
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMEMNTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group primarily enters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal derivative contracts
related to trading, asset and linbility management, and customer initiated transactions.

The contractuslfnotional amounts and fair values of the dertvative financial instruments entered into by
the Group are set out in the following tables. The contractualfnational amounts of derivative financial
instruments pravide a basis for comparison with e values of iRstruments recognized in the consalidated
statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows inohed o
the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group®s exposure to credit or
market risks, The fair value of derivative instruments become favourable |assets) or unfavaurable [liabilities}
as a result of fMuctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or precious metal prices
relathee to their terms. The aggregated fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fMuctuate
significanthy.

Certain financial assets and fnancial liabilites of the Group are subject to enflorceable master net
arrangements of similar agreements. The agreement between the Group and the counterparty generally
allows for net settlement af the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to settbe
on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and financial labilities will be settled
an a gross basis. However, each party to the master netting armngements or similar agreements will have
the aption 1o settle all such amounts on a net Basis in the event of default of the other party. The Group
did mot offset these financial assets amd financial liabilities on a net basis, As at 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022, the Group did not hold any other financial assets or liabilities, other than dervatives,
that are subjeet to master netting arrangements of similar agreements.

31 Docembor 32023
Contractualf

notional FMHI
) amount Assots Liakilities

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency farwards and swaps, and

Cross-cunrency [nterast rate swaps 2,101,349 20,701 {19,287)

Currency options 161,055 1,450 {1,226)
Subtotal 22,151 {20,513)
Intefest rate derhathes

Interest rate swaps 362,817 2,502 {1,420)
Preciaus metal derivatives and others 141,712 220 {5.884)
Total 24873 (27,817)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)

31 Decemnber 2022

Contractualf
notional Fair valug
— amount L]

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency forwards and swaps, and

cross-currency interest rate swaps 1,766,754 25,476 |25,6584)

Currency eptions 87,071 1,374 [565)
Subtatal 26,850 (26,253)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 242,817 2,512 [871)
Preclous metal derivatives and others 143,701 1,353 {3.880)
Total 30,715 {31,004)

Cradit risk welghted amount for derivative transaction counterparties represents the counterparty credit
risk associated with derivative transactions and & calculated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for
Commerdal Banks (Provisional]® issued by the WNFRA which was effective from 1 lanuary 2013 and
“Measurement Rule of Counterparty Default Risk Welghted Assets on Derivatives™ ssued by the NFRA
which was effective from 1 January 2019, and s dependent on, among other factors, creditworthiness of
customers and maturity characteristics of each type of contract. As at 31 Decernber 2023 and 31 December
2022, the credit risk weighted amount for derwalive transaction counterparties was measured under the
Internal Ratings-Based approach.

A
2023 2022
Counterparty crédit default rsk-weighted aisets 54,728 31,566
Credit value adjustment risk-welghted assets 6,646 8,825
Total 51,574 40,391
Fair value hedges
The following designated fair value hedging instruments are included in the dervative financial instruments
discloved above.
31 December 2023
Contractualf
national Fair value
amount Assels Uahllities
Interest rate swapds 4} 853 882 {336)
- 31 Decernber 2032
Contractualf
national Fair walu
amount Assets Lizhilities
|Interast rate swapd 37721 1,455 {45)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Fair valiue hedges (Continued)
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge ogainst changes arising from changes In interest rates in falr
value of loans and advances to customers and other debt instrument investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income,

The Group®s net gakns/{losses) on fair value hedges are as follow:

MNet gulru‘f[lm.u:b on
— hedging instrumaents
— hedged items

inetfective portion recognized in net tading gains 57 [125)

The following table shows maturity details with notional amount of hedging instruments disclosed above:

_.. Falr value hedges

Less than 1 13 3-12 1-5 Overs
maonth maonths months pears yEars Total
31 December 2023 2351 B, 768 3,118 26,835 1,784 a4 353
31 December 2022 1,985 Aa5 10,137 23,556 1,598 37,731
The following table sets out the detalls of the hedged items covered by the Group's falr value hadging
stratogios:
31 December 2023
Accumulated
amount of falr value
Carrying amaount af adjustments on the Line items in the
h ir iterm statoment af
Assets  Liabilitles Assets Liabilities financial position
Cther debt instrument
investments at fair
value through othar
Bonds 42 465 - - - comprehensive income
Loans and advances to
Loans 2474 - {83} - CUSTOMErs
Total 44,939 = {83} =
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For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Fair value hedges (Continved)

The following table sets aut the details of the hedged itams covered by the Group's fair value hedging
stratogies: [Continued)

31 Decemnber 2022

Accumulated
amount of fair value
Carrying amount of adjustments on the Ling items in the
h [ i statement of
Aty Liabilities Assels  Liabilities financial position
Other debt instrument
Inwestments at fale
value through other
Bands 39,250 - - - comprehonsive incoma
Loans and advances to
Loant 2,787 - [179) - custOmers
Total 42,037 - |17 -
16 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS
2023 2022
Analyred by collateral type:
Dokt securities 1,743,760 1,113,854
Bills. 67,904 50,835
Subtatal 1,811,664 1,173,689
Accrued interest 1470 945
Allwance for impairment |osses {3,575) (2,447)
Carrying amount 1,809,559 L172,187

The colisteral received in connection with financial assets beld under resale agreements is disclosed in
Note IV 42 Contingent liabilities and commitments — Collateral.
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{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS

17.1 Analyzed by measirement basis

As at 31 December

HNotes 2023 2023
Peasured at amortized cost 1] 20,237,841 17,636,791
Marasured at fair value through ather

comprehensive income 12] 1,453,525 1,344,182
Tatal 21,731,766 18,980,973
I}  Mesiwed at omarticed cost:
Az ot 31 December
= 4023 12
Corporafe loans ond edvances
Loons and advanoes 12,993,815 10,814,664
Persanal loans end advences 5076, 528 7562061
Subrotal 21,070,344 18 376,725
Acerued inferest 0 352 42,920
Allpwonce for impolrment bosses {#8F 855} (782 854)
Carfang amount af [oand oad eduences 18 cosomen
measured ot amartined cost 20,237,841 17,636,791
2 Mesiwed of faoir valde throuph other comaprehensive income:
_ Asat 3 Degernber
2023 FlePE
Corparate loans ond oovances A -
Loans and odvances 183,178 EELNER
Discounted bils il rar LDo7.548
Carrping pmount af loans ond odvences o
custommrers measured ot fair walue throwgh
olter camprebemiie inoome 1,493,925 1544, 182
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For the year ended 31 December 3023
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method

31 December 2023

e = =

‘Stage | Stage || Stage Il
12 months
ECL Lifetime ECL Taotal

Gress loans and advances to customers

measured at amortized cost 20,424,619 395,527 300,550 21,120,696
Allowance for impasrment losses {604,532 (92,521) {1B5,802) (B82,855)
Loans and advances to customers

measured at amortized cost, net 19,820,087 303,006 114,748 20,237,841
Loans and advances to custamers

measured ot fair value thraugh

other comprehensive income 1,483,097 10,618 210 1,493,925
Allowance for impairment losses of

ki and advances (o customiers

measuned at Tair value through

other comprehensive income (28,798) {2,202} {63) (31,063}

31 Decernber 2022

Seage | Stage 1l Stage 11
12 manths
; oy ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Gross loand and sdvincet o Customers
mzasured at amortized cost 17,813,231 335,352 271,062 18,419,645
_ Allowance for impairment losses {537,790 (B0.242]  [164,220)  {782.8%4)

Loans and advances to customers
measured at amartived cost, net 17,275,439 254,510 106,842 17,636,791

Loans and advances to customers
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,344,176 ] a 1,344,182

Allowance for impairment |osses of
loans and advances to customers
measuned at fair walue through
other comprehensive income {37,372] (2] a (37,374)
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IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method (Continued)

The ECL for eofpasate loans and advances in Stoge | and Stage I, a2 well as personal  loans  and
advances, were measured 0 pccordance with the rsk parameters modelling method, The ECL for
corparate loans and advances i Stage (1l were ealeulated wwing the discounted eash flow method. For
details, see Note IV 441 Credit risk.

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance

The movements of loss alleswance are mainly affected by:

—  Transfers between stages due (o loams and advances to customers experiencing significant
Increases for decreases] n credit risk or becoming credit-impatred, and the corresponding
transfier of the measurement basis of the loss allowance between 12 months and the  entire
Ifetime ECL;

—  Allowance for new loans and advances to customers recognized;

= Remeasurement inchudes the Impact of changes In model assumptions, updates of model
parameters, changes in probability of default and loss given default; changes in ECL due 1o
transfer of loans and advances to customers between stages; changes in ECL due to unwinding
of discount over time; changes in foreign exchange translations for ossets denominated in

foreign currencies and other movemants;

=  The reversal of allowances caused by repayment, transfer out and write-offs of loans and
advances to customers.

242 @emmen
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 LOAMNS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowarnce (Continued)

The fellowing table shaws the impact of above factors en the allowance for impaifment losses:

Yieor ended 31 December 2023

Stage | Stage il SMage 1|
12 months
Carparate loans and advances ECL (i) Lifmtima ECL [ii} Tatal
1 January 2023 415071 55,734 131,227 602,032
Transfer:
Stage | to Stage 1 {13,931) 13,931 - -
Stage Il to Stage 10 - (25,130) 15,130 -
Stage Il to Stage | 13,258 [13,258) - -
Stage |1l o Stage N - 9,748 [, 7a6) =
Originated or purchased financial
assels 157 423 = = 157,419
Remeasunement {32,918) g, ral 50,354 56,117
Repayment or tranfor out {77.201) (10,848) (23,853) [ii1,563)
Write-offs - - 24,745} [24,748]
31 December 2023 451,708 68,916 148,403 679,027
Year ended 31 Decermber 2023
Stage | Stage I Stage 11l
12 months
Personal loans and advances ECL (i) Lifetime ECL(W) _Total
“1January 2023 160,093 25,110 32,093 218,19
Transfor:
Stage | to Stage 1 {4,097) 4,097 - -
Stage 11 to Stage 11 - [12,501) 12,501 =
Stage Il to Stage | B636 |8, B96) - -
Stage 1 e Stage 11 - 2,998 [2.908) -
Driginated of purchased financial
assels 73,149 - = 73,149
Remeasurement {7.650) 13,782 27,796 43,924
Repayment or transfer out (58,5659 [8,983) (10,212} [77.764)
Write-offs = = [¥2,618] [22,518)
31 December 2023 171,622 15 BO7 ITABZ 234,891

Adryal Regant 7025 241
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

The following table shaws the impact of above factors on the allowance for mpairment losses:

(Continued]:
¥ear ended 31 December 2022
Stage | Stage |l Staga HI
12 manths

Carporle loans Snd achintes ECL [v) IWelime ECLiV,______ Totd
1 fanwary 2022 352,237 50,260 140,884 543,381
Transfer:

Stage | to Stage 0l {5.288) 5,288 - -

Stage Il to Stage 1l - {13,043} 13,041 -

Stage Il to Stage | 5,603 {5,603) - -

Stage 1l 1o Stege 1 = 6,154 {6, 154) -
Originated or purchased financial

Astels 152,359 - - 152,359
Remeasurement |18,541) 23,052 a4 450 49 9561
Repayment or transfer ocut [73,299| 19,374) {19,331) |102,004)
Write-offs - - {41,665) (41,665)
31 December 2022 415,071 55,754 131,237 602,032

¥ear ended 31 Decombor 2022
Stage | Stage |l 1
12 maonths

Peranal lgans and advances ECL {wi) Lifetime ECL [wiii) Total
1 Janwiary 2022 163,984 7.243 21,075 193,302
Transfer:

Stage | to Stage | {3,701) 37m - -

Stage Il to Stage Nl = {6,111 6,111 =

Stage I to Stage | 1,375 [1.375] = =

Stage N 1o Stage 1 - 9497 [9a7] -
COriginated or purchased Financial

asien B2,092 i - 62,092
Remediunemend {7,101 24712 28,038 A5 B4D
Repayment or transfer cut |56,556| (4.057) (6,315) |B6,928)
Wit e-otfs - - {15,919) {15,919)
31 December 2022 160,093 25,110 32,933 218,186
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance {Continued]

il Im 2023, the chonges af the Grouvp’s loss ollowance of corporote boons ond odwarces im Stoge | were
mainly driven by the net tncreose of obout 15% in the book boloace of the corporate fomns and odvonces
compoved with 1 fanuery 2023,

(i I 2023, e changes of the Group’s loss ollowance of covporate loans ond odvoaces in Stoge i were maoinly
detven by the mef increase of obowt 28% b the book bofonce of the corporole looms ond cdvonces in Stoge
I compared with I Joovary 2023, diven by net trensfer between stoges. This impoct wes porticlly offset by
the decrease af provision ratio fn Stage il

in 2023, the changes of Group's foid efiowonce of corporate foand ond odvodces i Stoge N were
mmialy driven by Bath the net trander between stoges which led to @ net ingrease of aeardy 9% ja the
correspording gross ameunl oonnpared with 1 lovvary 26023, ond the indreose of provision retio covsed iy the
fravsfier af selevent Toans and odvances frowm Srage T to Stoge I, This impoct wos partioly offset by the
repayment., rensfer oul and wailte-olfs of corpansie loans and odwanoes,

fid] w2023, the changes of the Group's loss olowance of personal oans end odvances in Slage | were maialy
driven by both the pet increase of obout 7% 0 the book bolonce of the pevsonal joons and  adeences
campoyed with 1 fanugvy 2023, amd the increase of the provision ratio.

fw) e 2023, the changes in foss oflowance of the Group's persanl loans and advances i Sfage 1T were maraly
deiven By the net tronsfer berween sloges which led fo o net increase of nearly 6% i the Qormesponding
grass amauat, This impest was partioly affsct by the decroase af prewsion ratio in Shage I,

I 2023, the chonges in foss afowonce of the Group's persong! loens and edvences i Shage I were
mainly driven by both the net troagfer bebween stoges which led fa o net norease of nearly 21% in the
carrespanding gross omaunt ond fncreose in the propartion of provinon reswlting from Fransfer of refevant
Ipans ond odvances frovm Stage I to Srage TW. This impoct was portially offser by the repoyment, transfer out
and write-offs of relevoat loans ond odvances.

il I 2022, the chonges of the Group’s loss ollowance of corporoie loons ond oacwamces fm Stoge L were
muminly drven by the net increose of obout 22% m the book bolmace of the corporote fosns and odvoncoes

compared with 1 lanuary A22.

(Wl Im 2022, the changes of the SGroup’s loms ollowance of corporote loans ond odvonces in Stage N were maoinly
driven by the ned increcse af ohout 5% dn the book holonce of the corparte fomnt and advances in Stage
compared with 1 january 2022, ond the increcte of provision rotio caused by the tracsfer of revevant fomns
avd aovances fram Stege | da Stoge !

Im 2022, the changes of Group’s fods aliowonce of corporate foand ond odvonces m Stoge # were
maialy driven by both the net frongfor between stoges which led te o net dncreade of ncardy 4% fn the
carrespanding gross amoimt compared with 1 iarary 2022, and the incremse af provision ratio covsed by the
rravisfer of relevent Toans ond odveaces from Stoge I o Stoge IR, This impact was pertolly offset by the
repayment, transfer out and wte-offs of corparete loans ond advances,

vl I FO22, the changes of the Group's koss allowance of personal loens ond advances i Sage | were mainly
driven by the deorense of prowision rotio.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

fuilll] 2022, the chonges 1 foss offowence of the Groop's persomal foons ond odvonces dn Stoge § were
moinly deiven by both the net transfer bebeeen ttages which fed to o net increcse of neorly 106% (n the
correspanding gross and the increose of provision rotio.

In 2022, the chonges in foss afowance af the Groups personnd foond and odvances m Stage i were
moinly driven by both the net tronsfer between stoges which led ta a net increase of neorly 44% in the
carreipandinog gross omand ond dncrense in the gropartion of prowition reswlfing fram traviifer af refevant
Ipans oad advences from Stage i fo Stoge WL ThIS impoal was partiolly affser by the repopment, transfer out
aad write-offs of relevant Ioan and acheraces.

18 FINAMCIAL INVESTMENTS

As_at 31 Decembar

Motes %ICHB- 10;2
“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18.1 547,407 522,057
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 18.2 8,463,255 7,306,000
Other debt instrument and ather squity investments
at faiir value through other comprehensive incoma 18.3 2,203,051 1,702,106
Total 11,213,713 9,530,163

18.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss

Az at 31 embe

Notes 2023 22

Financial aels held tor trading 1] 197 649 155 859
Fimancial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss 2] 812 1,250
Other financial mssets at (air valus through

profit or loss 3] 348,046 364,938
Tatal A7 40T 522,057
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 10,45% 5,480

Listed outside Hong Kong 11} 370407 351,425

Unlisted 166,501 165,152
Tatal 547407 522,057

] Debt securities iroded an the Ching Damestic inter-bonk Bond Market are feclided in “Livted outeide
Hang Kong®
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued]

18.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
(1) Financial assets held for trading

A 3

2023 2032

Debt securities isswed by
Govermiments 9,342 16,999
Public sector and quasi-governmenis 77,220 63,951
Financial institutions 55,489 18,445
Corporaties 15,558 27,203
Subtotal 157,609 126,598
Procious metal contracts 15,487 17,988
Fquity 7,605 5,700
Fund and athers 16,948 5,493
Total 197,649 155,869

{2) Financial assets designated ot fair value through profit or loss (i)

—As at 3lDecember
2023 2022
Debt securities issued by
Financial institutions 654 626
Corporates 158 624
Total g1z 1,250

Gf  in order fo eliminole o sigailficantly reduce occounting mismarches, the Group desigrates cerain
debr secwities as financial ossets of folr vatue throwgh profir or foss.

{3} Other financlal asseis ai falr value through profit or loss (i)

— Az at 3] December
2023 2022
Debt securities issuved by:
Public sector and guasi-governments 22,284 27,678
Financial institutions 167,756 176,537
Corporates 2,400 BAZ
Subtotal 193,440 205,097
Equity 115,306 111,502
Fund and others 41,200 47,939
Total 348,945 364,938

fuj  Other fiooncie! essets of foir velue throwgh profit or foss refier to finonclod ossets thet do ot quolify
Jor meosurement ot AC or FVOCT end ore pof held for troding, incleding band fevestments, equity
ingerests, funds, fnest plors aod oiset monagement products of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument investments at omortized cost

As ot 31 December

T —— Notes 08 0m
Debt securities issued by:
Gowernments 5,747,715 4,751,633
Public sector and quasi-governments 1,953,312 1,783 050
Financiad institutions 161,595 159,394
Corporates B2,400 o0,812
Subtotal of debt securities 7,925,031 &, 794,889
Recenvable from the MOF [} 290,891 290,891
Speclal government bond [ 93,316 93,332
Others (i} 17,761 11,530
Subtotal B 327 009 7,190,692
Accrued interest 150,788 135,743
Allvewwance for Imparment losses {14,542) (20,435)
Debt instrument Investments at amortized cost, net £,463,255 7,306,000
Analyred as:
Listed in Hong Kong 30,403 35017
Listed outside Hong Kong (i) 7.981,978 6,832,620
Unlisted 450,874 438,363
Taotal 8,463,255 7,306,000

il The Group received a nodice from the MOF in jormary 2020, clowifising that fram 1| foneovy XN, the
Inferest rate of the wnpoid poyments wil be verifled year by pear based on the rate of return of the flve-pear
treasury bond of the previous year.

) Special govermment bond refers fo the nonstramsferoble bond ssued by the AMOF n 1598 in the oggregaied
principal amovat gf AMBSLT billion ho the Predecessor Enrity for caplral replenishment, The band  will
moture i1 2028 and brors interest of o flied rote of 2.25% per onnum, stovting from 1 Oecember 2008

il  Other debt instrument mvestments ar omortired cost are primanty refoted to ) f f in arconsolidoned
structured entities held by the Group (Nate I 41(2)).

fwi Dbt seouvities froded on the Ching Domestic fater-bonk Domd Morket ore incfuded in "Lished owisice
Hang Kong"®.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument investments ot amortized cost (Continued)

{1} Analyzed by ECL assessment method

31 December 2023

Stage | Stage Il stage Wl
12 months
S ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Gross debt instrument
imvestments alamortized cost 8,476,120 368 1,309 B.A77,797
Allowance for impairment |owses {13,253) = {1,283) (14, 542)
Dbt inatrument investments
at amortized cost, nat 8,462 867 L] 10 8,463,255
31 December 2032
Stage | Sage 11 SLage 1L
12 months
r ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Gross debt instrument
imvestments at amortized cost 7,324,788 a7y 1,300 7.326,435
Alowance forimpairment losses (19, 150§ - [1,285) {20,435)
Dot ERLLFUmMERE Investments
at amortized cost, net 7,305,638 347 15 7,306,000
Dl imstrumnent investments at amortized cost in Stage 0 and Stage 1l mainty incleded
cofporated bands and other debt instrument investments,
(2} Aralyzed by movements in loss allowance (v)
Year ended 31 December 2023
Stage | Stoge || Stage Il
12 months
ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 January 2023 19,150 - 1,285 20,435
Originated or purchased financial
55015 3409 - - 3,409
Romeasuremont [7.023) - 4 {7,013}
Maturities ar transfer out (2,282) - - |2,2R3)
31 December 2023 13,253 - 1,289 14,542
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Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument Investments ot omortized cost (Continued)
(2] Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (V) (Continwed)

Year ended 31 December 2022
Stage | Smagedl  Stage Wi
12 months
ECL _Lifetime ECL Total
1 January 20022 17,764 - 1,263 15,027
Qriginated or purchased financial

assots 4,903 - - 4,903
Hemeasuramant 126 - 22 148
Maturities or transfer out {3,643} = = (3.643]
31 Decemnbar 2022 19,150 = 1,285 20,435

v Ay ar 31 December 2023, the decrecses of the Group™ lpds o¥owance of debt nstrament Investments
at amortired cosf were mainly due [0 the sempasuremant and maturities o troasfer eut of remained
debt instrument rvestments

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments of foir value through ether
comprehensive income

31 December 2023

Cumulative
amount of
chamge in fair
Amaortized value that
cast af debt is acerued
Instruments/ to other Cumulative
cost of equity comprehensive amount of
Notes instrumants Fair value Incame impairment
Dther debl instrument
Inwestments (1) 1,174,855 2,195,685 20,830 {3,870)
_ Other equity investrrems (2] 5,930 7,366 1436 HfA
Total 2,180,785 2,203,051 22,266 (3,870}
31 December 2022
Cumulative
amount of
change In fair
Amortized walue that
cost of debt b5 accrued
instruments/ to other Cumulative
cost of equity comprehensive amount of
MNotes instruments Fair value income impairment
Other debt Instrument
investments (1) 1,694,785 1,697,405 2,620 16.343)
Other equity Investrents (2} 3,519 4,701 1,182 MR
Tatal 1,698,304 1,702,106 3,802 5,343)

Annial Bepart HOIIMD
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity invesiments ot foir value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

1) Other debt instrument investments

fal  Analyred by types of Hsuers

EDINETOOOO
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Note 2023 2032

Debt securities:
Governments 1,102,019 B70,339
Public sector and guash-governments 143,852 235,712
Financial institutions 703,570 429,063
Larpomies A0 Laado%
Subtotal 2,169 447 1,671,108
Others {iy 9,178 10,558
Subtotal of debt instruments 2,178,625 1,681,666
Accrued interest 17,060 15,739
Total 2,195,685 1,697,405

Analyred as;

Listed in Mong Kang 128,173 124,853
Listed outtide Hong Komg 1,938,150 1,486,760
Unlisted 129,327 B5,792
Total 2,195,685 1,697,405

il Others primply include nvestments (n unconsolidated structuned entiies heid by the Group
{ate v AR(FH, such os frusd imeesdarent plans and debt imvesiorent plens,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2003
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Diher debt instrument and other equity invesimenis ot foir value through other
comprehensive income {Continued)

(1) Other debt instrument investments (Continued)

) Amalyeed by FOL assessment method

_31 December 2023
Stage Stage stagg il
12 months ECL Lifetima ECL Total
Carrying amaunt of other
tebt instrument investmenis
atfairvaluethroughother
compeehenibve intome 2,194,783 EAS 17 2,195,685
Allewance farimpalrment losses {2,848) 7 [15) 138700
: 31 December 2022
Stage | Seage Il il
12 manihs ECL Lifetima ECL Tetal
Carrying amaount of other
debt instrument investments
atfairvalue throughother
. hinive ingaims 1,696,481 400 534 1,697 405
Allowance farimpairment losses [G078] 19} [256] |G, 343)

Dther debt indtrement investmints at Tair value through ather compiehdniive income in
Stage |1 and Stage N mainly ingluded corporates bonds and financial institutions bonds,

Ayl Rag 7025 251
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity invesiments at foir value through other

252 emaeny

comprehensive income (Continued)

(1) Other debt instrument investments (Continued)

fel

Analyrad by movements i lois allowance (i)

Year ended 31 Decedriber 2023
Stagel _ Stagell Stageiil
- 12 moaths ECL Lfetime €L Toul
1 January 2023 £078 q 256 6,341
Transfer:
Stage | transfer 1o Stage || {1 1 = =
Stage Il tramsfer to Stage I = b r ™ -
Originated or purchased
financial assots anl - - aa
Remeasurama it [1.224) [ ” {1301]
Maturities o transber out |1,988) 13y (164) 2,153
31 December 3023 3648 7 15 EN ]
Year ended 31 December 2022
Stage | stage Il IiE
12 manths ECL Lifetime ECL Todal
1 january 2022 10,457 19 115 10,761
Trarsler:
Stage | transfer (o Stage 1) {111} = 111 =
Stage Il transfer 1o Stage | 51 (513 - -
Originated or purchased
financial ety 1,847 - - 15042
Remicasuram rit (1,357} [ kN1 (1,231}
Maturithes o transfer out |5, 004) [135) - LS,_I.E_!L
31 December 3022 6,078 5 156 6,343

fil) As at 31 December 2023 the decreases of the Group’s loss ollowance of other debt instrment
imvestments ai foir valie through other comprehenifve inmome were moindy dise fo matwrifies
ar tronsfer out af debr estrement investments aad the remeasurement of remained debt

insirement imapshments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year snded 31 Decomber 2003
(AmaunLs in milon of Rermindl, unless othoraice stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investmenis at foir value threugh other
comprehensive income (Continued)

(2} Other equity instruments

Az at 31 December

I 2023 2022
Financial institutions 6.636 4,564
_Other enterprises 730 137
Tatal 7,366 A, 701

The Growp designates certain non-trading equity  investments  as financial  investments a1
fair value through other comprehensive income. tn 2023, dividend income from such equity
investments of the Group was RMB242 million [2022: RMBG6 million). The value af disposed
of such equity investments was RMBE12 million (2022: RAMB1 millien) and the cumulative
gains transferred into relained earnings from other comprehensive incorme after disposal was
RMAB1 million (2022; cumulative gains of RMBO yuan),

Anniisl Ragor BOIFE

392/524



MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Ameoums in millions of Renminbi, unless cthersise saed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES

1) Invesitment in subsidiaries

The following are the principal subsidiaries of the Bank a< ot 31 Deeember 2023:

; muf m'd-'
gtz of Place ol LT woting
incoponition)  incorporation] Mrthonioed imeresl rights Frisggal

Name of entity Notes  etablshmert  establnhment il [%] %) thities

{Chana Agricultural Finance INevermber 1988 Hongiioag PRC  HEDSEE 790000 e 10601 Iwesrnest hakdng
o, Lee.

KB Intematonal Holdings L1 November 009 HongMong PRC WD, 103, 190450 Lkl G0 imemen holdng
msed

KBC Firancial Leasing Hlepterbar 0 Shangha, PRC MBS, 500,000000 blucku] 0000 Frasc! kasig
fo, Lbs,

Agricufturad Bank of Chira [UK] Newvervher 2011 Lo, 15D0500,000007 jludi] 10:m Ankrg
Limitedd Ltited Kingdam

ABCCE Fund Maragnmant 18 March 2008 Shanghal, PRC.  RME], 50,000,001 SLET 5157 Fand managomest
o, ltg

KB Henighen Rural Bank 12 Augat M08 inner Moagolin PR EMI1,800,000 L0 5102 Ankrg
Wit Lighidity Company

A0 Hubad Fanchuan RuralBaek 1) 10 Aot 2008 b, FRC RNERI1,000000 Eiti] BE5Y Bankng
Limised Lty Company

ML bifura Bk Lirmated isbiiby B My HIED Anbe, PRC IS, 400,000 SLIF §1m Anirg
Compary

KBC Arayi Rural Bank Lisited 30 March 2010 Tuars, FRC EAVRAD 000000 5100 1M Anirg
Uasilty Compuny

MBC Thajisng Vorgkasg Rural Bank 20 8pri 2012 Dwjarg, FRC ANE2H,000000 5100 51 Aankrg
Limitrd Liskdity Comgany

ABC faurmen Tong anAural Bank My ML R, PRC INBESD,000000 SL00 51m Ankrg
Limited Lishidity Compaery

KBC Lile beurante Ca, 18 fil  19Deember ME Begng, PRC  RMELMETIEATS SL00 51m e e

Agricuhuenl Bank of Chisa TiMevenser 214 Lemrbasy, 20,000,000 100 100 Baskrg
(Lumembsouty) Limied Lunssbeury,

Agricutiural Bank of Chica Wlcormber M4 Monoow, s RUBTSSEBAIN m el Balng
(Mo Levited

B Frunial Asiet Invesimenl 1 Augus 2017 Resing, PR ANTAZ0,000,000,000 10000 EO0.00 Dietrt Ao bguity fusag
o, Lbe, i iexiad e

Agrituturl Bank of Ohing Weshth Bluly 113 Besjing, PRC AINTE12,000.000,000 1000 100,00 ‘Weakh managermann
Management Ca, Lid.

EDINETOOOO
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During the years eandad 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there were no changes in the
proparton of equity interest or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries.

W Twa af the theer directors on the board of ABC Hube! Hanchuan Rurgd Boak Limited Umhilidy Company were
oppointed by the Sank. The Bank concluded thof it hes effective control over ond has included this entity in

irs consohdotion scope,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

(1) lnvestment in subsidiories (Confinged)

fi}  On 31 Decermber 2012, the Bank ooquired SI% of the bsved shore copital of Sofbe e fosuronoe Co, Lol
and rengmed it as ASC Life lnsurance Co., Lid. (“ABC Life tnjuronce™)l As at 31 December 2612, the Group
recognired goodwill of RAEL 381 milion as o result of this ocguisition, Dwing the yeor ended 31 December
201G, the Bank and other investors contrituited odditfonal copitc! tebafing FME3, 761 million fo ABC Life
Insuronce, comprising registened copitol of RMER17 million ond copital reserve of AMBZE4E miffion. Afier
the copite! imjection, the proportion of equily inlerest aod voling rights the Bonk held in ABC Life bisuvrandce
remained of 51%.

The Bomk fests the impoirment of goodwill onovally. When performing the impoirment test,  the  Somk
campares the corrping amount of the aidets fincluding goodwill ond the walive af the mengers and
mequisitions affer deduction of omortization) with the fecoverable amownt The excess of covnging amount
over recoveralde avrrowni 5 secognioed by pooit o koss of e currenl period,

The recoveroble omount of the ossefs & bosad on adjusted Ael osiers, valve of n-foree Busipis, volie af
wne yeor of new busingss, new business mulliplier, ond other date approved by the memegement af ABC
Life Ingurance, The ectuaninl valvation method is opplicd and the Asic discount robe, AHUmM on iRWEERme,
wirluation discount rote. and other pssumplions odopled fo Jorecast cosh  flaws  respectively  reflect  the
specific nisks assochated with them,

As of 31 December F023 and 31 December 2027, there wos no abfective evidence noted for gay goodwil
Impairment, and o Fmrpainmen loss was recognized.

{2) Structured entities

The Group alse consolidated structured entities as disclosed in Nate IV 21 Structured entities.

Annusl Bepart MOIME
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For the year ended 11 December 2023
[Amounts im millions of Renmink, unless otheraise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(1} Investment in ossociotes

202 | Memeeny

Maceol Pertertage o Percertage o
Dateod  lmcorporation) hathorioed  pquiey votny rghts Frircipal
hame ol entity Molen  emalsheem turnets aptal [ 1%l ]
Sno-Longolese Bank o Mra  [i] W5 Bomwde, Congo  XAFR1MLA00A00 il ] wm Rirk
Sharghen Yaraghishal Mo & 1] 105 Guasgong FRC EVEIIZNEDN 315 3333  bqwty vesmeel,
Irres et Enterprive el
(Limited Parinership) managemint and
nimel jhmiafy
wrig
Besing Gualy hern Esgine fil M Bejng PAC  BM3E T, M0,000 1561 11 Nsesturiter
Irhustry Ieestrmatest Fnd ivesner] atwies
Ceeinr i|amind Partranbig| anal riind advory
e
FinHongrthmpng New ey ) HIS Jon, AT RMI33EES, 500000 Ial5 ol s pandines
Agrermadie furd Fvpitme) EeAREr] WEvThEL
Managenent Cactar and eelated by
[Lirited Pareashiph OES
Errpuan Beiing Debtto-fquity W) g Bejing PAC  FMIZE,000, 000,000 1587 AE  Eruly mvesiment
Spocial Equty invesimert
Civtat (Lt Paatruring |
Matonal Green Development &) i Shanghai PAC  ENEEE.500.500,000 A 304 foquly mminel
Fued {o, L2d. ol iRt
st rastmint
maragrect
Hatongl Soctal Endpwement. ) i Beging, PAC  AEID1, 150,000,000 1L LLo nrane
Imsurance Co, Lid.
NP arisay ABL Wealth [w bk ] Shanghal PIC  RME1,000, 200,000 4900 B0l Weathmasagement
Maragereent (o, Lid

i On 28 Moy P015. the Sino-Congodese Donk of Africa (Lo Boagee  Sme-Congolose  pour  PAfriguee,

i

hersinafter referred to oz BSCA. Bonk), estoblizhed by the Benk and ofther investors with authonied copitalf
denorlmated in Ceatral African OFA frane ["RAFT]L was gronted the reguined bonking loense by the focal
reguintony autharity. The Benk holds 50% equity intevest and voting rights in BSCA. Bonk, ond hos the nght
o partigigate in the fingocial ong operational decisions of BSCA. Bank, bl dors not consiifnle condrad oF
jpint controf over those decisions.

Thee Bonk’s wioliy-gwned subsidory, ABC Firomoiel Asiel fvestmment fo, Ll ond oiffer mvesdors vesfed
i the aboue mentioned enterprices, The Group Bas the right o poviicipate in the finoncial end cpevartionol
decizions af thete enferprises, bul coes mal constilufe oonfnol ﬂrlflﬂnl contred aver those decisions,

The Bank wos aaproved (o participane in the irvestment i Notional  Green  Deveopment Fund Co, Lid, in
2021. The Bank hoids S.04% squity interest omd has the nght to porticipate in the financie! @nd opevationa?
deciviond, hirt doed nar canttitide cantrel af fainl centrm aver thale ddeivian

fw)  The Beak'i whollp-ownmed tufsidiary, Agvicwiiurel Beak of (Rine Wealth Menragement Co., L, sad ather
investors mvested m the ohove mentiored enferprrses. fhe Group hos the right fo poarticipete i the
fiapaciof and aperalianal degitions of he ealerpeite, buf dagd ol conibirute confred or joial canirel over
thoie deditions.

fed

The interests of the Group w the ebove montioncd pasecinies docs ot howe @ significant  impoct on the
Growp,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decamber 2033
{Ampumns in millons of Renmindi, unbess othorsiuestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

{2) lnvestment in joint ventures

Placeal Peroestage of  Feresizge ol

Dateod  incorponstion) Mghodeedd  pquity interest  voting fights Finopdl

_Hame of enttty rublsheent  buiness ot L] ] Kivtin_
Tangsu fogeamulte Staeowned HIE Tengu Pl EMELD0G001.000 am 8T Fquty mesmen,
Enterprije Mard Ownership Reform debe to-equity and
Fand {United Parnershig) relited iggrmeg
e
Wongin Gactou {Hubel] Debt-to-Equity ot ke, R AMESOLO00.000 M 13 Roeseuities equy
Irreestment Fand et vl
[kimited Partnership] and reiated adviory
ST
Jaming S Mew §ik Road ik Dejang, PR, FNE L0 (1 H00  indurii investrmt
Irvesiment Fend B gy
(Limited Partnership) ivesiriet
laner Mongalia Mengringzhell MO lserllorgoiiy  ENEL00R000.000 500 SO0 Equtyineirent,
Development Fand irestzent P ineatraeet
Cenier [Limibed Parimerskip) Maragime ind
vairen! Bty
ni
Famaianto Infrastructara Equity 0 Tiashe, FRC  ENE3.500,000.000 L] MIOC gty iwestment
Ireestment (Fianjin] Fund and inwesimest,
{limited Partnership) mgApnert
Stapeni uihe Equity Irvesimeat Fund o] Shaaead, FRD  ENE 1000000000 Fm S iy irwentret

Farmershig [Limited Parinership)

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, ABC Financial Asset Investment Cao., Ltd, and other
inwestors ostablished the above-mentioned entities. According to the agreements, matters
considered at the Meeting of Partnérs or investment decsion-making committee  shall  be
approved by the wnanimous consent of all the partners or all the committee members. The
Group constitubes joint contrel over the financial and operational decisions of these limited
partnerships with the other investors,

The interests of the Group in the above-mentioned joint ventures. dees not have a  significant
impact on the Group,
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For the year nded 31 December 2023

[Arncunas i millices of Renminkd, unisws othersise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPFMENT

Machinery
and Motor  Construction

o Buildings _ equipment vehicles  in progress Total
Cost:
1 January 2023 193,356 58,966 15,253 10,064 287,639
Additions 1. BER 2073 1,395 9,563 20, B00
Transfers in/{out) 5,148 2,087 = (7,235) =
Other meavements 12.366] 15,782} (196} 18] {8,350}
31 Decomber 2023 196,006 73344 16,452 12,386 300,188
Acoumulated depreclation:
1 lanuary 2023 (83.439) (47,128} [a,186) & (134,753}
Charge for the year {7.211) {7,044} {726} . (14,981])
Other movements 1136 5,169 324 - 6,629
31 December 2023 {89,514) {49,003} {4, 5B8) - {143,105)
Allowance for impairment lossas:
1 January 2023 [26:3] 15} 112} [34) (314)
Impairmant loss (1} 122} 110) - (33}
Orther moverments £ - - - 3
31 December 2023 (261) e ) (U]
Carrying amaunt:
1 January 2023 100,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572
31 December 2023 108,231 24,314 11,842 12,352 156,738

202 | Mameeny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Machinery
and Mater  Canstruetion
Buildings equipment wehicles in progres Total

Cost:

1 Jamuary 2022 189,309 65,906 16,3108 9,516 281,129
Additians 2,673 7,203 T30 6,709 17,315
Tramsfers inf{out) 4,948 1,204 - {6.152) -
_Other movements 13,574) 15,347] |1,875) @) 10,805)
31 Decamber 2022 193,356 6B, 966 15,253 10,064 287,639
Accumulated depreciation:

1 lanuary 2022 {77.605) 145,724] [#,110) : {127.439)
Charge for the year (B,951) {6,289] {775} by {14,015)
Other movements 1,117 4,885 (k] - 6,701
31 December 2022 {83,439) (47.128) [#,186] = 1134,733)
Allowance for iImpairment losses:

1 January 20232 [270) (6] 181) [34) [391)
Impairment loss 21 - 111] - 13}
Orther movements ] 1 B0 - oan
_31 December 2022 [263) £ 112) [34) (314)
Carrying armoul:

1 January 2022 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299
31 Decomber 2022 109,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572

According to the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank's transformation into a jaint stock
company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Enfity are to be transferred 1o the
Bank. As at 31 December 2023, the registration transfer procoss of these transferred properties and other
certain properties has not been completed, Management belioves that the incomplete rogistration transfor
process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor (o those assets or adversely affect the
Bank’s operation.

22 DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpese of presentation in the conselidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities hive been offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current tax assets
against current tox liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority, The
Tollowing s the analysis of the deferred tan balances;

m

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets 160,750 149,930
Deferred tax labilities [14) {2
Mot 160,736 149,921

Annual Bepart HOEMD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year nded 31 December 2023
[Amounts im millions of Renminbd, unles otheraise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 DEFERRED TAXATION [Continued)

1

202 | Mameeny

The follewing are the movements and major deferred 1ax a2sets and Labilities recognized:

Fire vilae

Hrwance lor Arcnued Early changes ol

Impairnent bt urgaid TEtitErLEn tranial
hses  seaff cost berefls  Provhos irstnments Oseny Toal
31 Decemaer 1007 138,584 14,807 19 i 14,750 b 15
Changes in aceounting poicas = = = i [3an : 13}
Hlaragery 1033 L 1457 13 et 15,287} ™ HA

Cradititharge] bo the conualidated

statereeni. of grofit or ks 13,36 Laar LY i (L) i | L]
Crrge b wher comprebemsar inppoe - - - - 11,784 i 143}
31 Decemzer 1023 151050 16714 1 gy 115,007 % 160,36

Foir e

Mgy lor Al Exly chargws of

T bt i retiumer el
Ioues il st el Pevisice mte hers Toil
31 Decemszer 1021 135,068 154 Firl EAR EREH] 1= ain
Chamges in acenussing peiicies = - - - x il il
1 laeagary 1031 s 1154 m RS RN Lt L

Crpditiicharge] b the conpsbdited

staterment of profil or ki LES 151 L] 178 16 EH] TET
(Crarpe 2 et comgrebening incpme & - - * ] n [L)]
31 Devemzer 1021 135688 14507 15 10457 |14,750 L) a5l
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2003
(Ampunts in milhona of Rermini, unles atherwisestated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(2] Deferred tax assetsf{labilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifising
amounts, are attributable to the following items:

—31 Opcember 2033
Deductible/ Dreductible
(taxable} Deferred {raxabie) Deferred
temporary tax assots) temparary tax agsots/
differances [liabilithes) differences {liabilities)
‘Deferred tax assets -
Allowance for impairment losses B04,204 151,050 554,795 138,684
Fair value changes of financial
indtruments 49,280 12,317 50,271 12,570
Accrued but unpald staff cost 66, 858 16,714 59,138 14, 807
Pravision 43,674 10,919 40, 7EE 10,197
Earty retirement benefits 537 134 758 189
Othirs 17,693 4,423 13,790 3,454
Subtatal 782,246 195,556 719,630 179,901
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial
instrumenis {125,487) (31,324) (109, 465) |27,320)
Others [14,0:08) [3,496) [10,643) {2.660]
Subtotal {139,493) (34.,820) (120,108} 129,980]
Met 642,753 160,736 599,522 149,921

23 OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Notes 2023 2022
Accounts recetvable and temmporary payments 130,940 12,306
Land use rights {1} 19,191 19,982
Right-of-use assets {2) 11,502 10,877
Intangible assets (3 9,483 7.885
Interest receivabis 4,157 3,662
Long-term deferred expenses 3,186 2,996
Investment properties 2,211 2,193
Foreclosed assets 1,405 1,082
Indurance services receivable 240 506
Others 10,747 14,252
Total 193,162 135,741

{I)  Accovding fo refevont fows ond reguimbions, subseguent to tise dank’s tronsformotion nbo o joint stock covmpony,
famd wie riphts previowsly beld by the Predecessor Enfity are fo be troasfesred to the Bonk. As af 31 December
2023, the registration tronsfer process of certeln fond use rights hos not been completed. Management believes
that the incomplete regitration trangfer process does pot offect the rights of the Bank o3 the lege! succesice fo
those fand use rights,

Anryal Reg 7025 251
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year endad 31 Decembaer 2023
[Armcunas i millicns of Renminbd, unisw ocheradse iated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 OTHER ASSETS (Continued)
2] Righi-of-ise osseds

______ Dudltingn [l ] Toetad
Cosr
1 donwory 2023 21,418 147 23,565
Additians 4,891 £l 4929
Dither ¢ 13.364) [50) 3.418)
31 December 2023 22,941 135 23,076
Ascumulpled deprecimdion:
1 Januany X143 {10,585} 95 {10,688}
Additiony: 13595} f2z) 3.217)
DItsir menemen 1,996 35 3031
31 (recember 2023 {11,488 85 (1n.5r4)
Cornyimg amownt:
I donwovy 2023 10,829 45 10,877
i1 December 2073 11,453 @ 11,502
Buidings Orhers Tt
Cif-
1 Joruary 2023 15,940 154 158,094
Additiand E.M9 k1 5285
Daher movemdnti 2771 43 (Z814)
32 Becemiver J037 el £l 21558
Accumifoied depeciodion:
I fonwory 2023 (&,825) 78 (8503}
Adeitions [3.844) (24) L
CHbPr mowments 2080 E] 2083
31 December 2022 [1R58%) (99 (10L688)
Cornyimg amounr:
I oy 2022 0115 El 10, fed
31 Decemibner 2022 10829 il narz

(3} #n 2023, the Group's copitoteed resegrch ond dewelopment expenditure amounfed o REELE millon (2002;
RMBI 393 million), ond the Growp’s capitaized resenich ond development expenditune of the prajects that hod  Been
clasid and Pravisferred to intangilile aisels amawnted to RMBLERD million [X022: BB 560 millian),

262 Mrmeeny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2003
(AmaunLs in milon of Rermindl, unless othoraice stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December_

2023 2022
Barrawings Trom central banks 1,114,768 BO1,603
Accrued interest 12,301 9,513
Total 1,127,069 901,116

25 DEPODSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

e S ] 2023 2022
Deposits fram:
Domeste banks 403,012 267,914
Other domestic financial institutions 3,173,103 2,122,741
Owerseas banks 4,256 4,005
Orther overseas financial institutions 54,900 45,819
Subtatal 3,635,291 2,443 479
Acerued intenest 18,206 15,694
Total 3,653,497 2,459,178

26 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINAMCIAL INSTITUTIONS

s at 31 ber

2023 20022

Macements from:
Domestic banks and ather financlal institutions 126,162 93,595

. Dyersens hanks and olher linancialnsiltiticns Lo L Zih1as

Subtatal 375,228 331,728
Accrugd interest 3,062 2,027
Total 382,290 333,755

Anniisl Ragor BOYRE
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022

Financial liabilities held for rading

Freciows metal contracts 11,987 12,039
Financizl liabilties deslgnated at fair value

through profit or loss

Liak#lithes of the controlled structured entities 248

Others -
Subtotal 248
Total 12,597 12,287

For the current and prior year, there were no significant changes in the fair value of the Group's financial
Habilities designated at fair value thraough profit or loss attributable to the changes in the Group's own

cradit risk

28 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Analyred by type of collateral;
Dbt securitics 06,182 40,000
Rills 3,621 3,560
Subtatal oo A0 431,570
Accrued interest 209
Tatal 100,521 43,779

The callateral pledged under repurchase agreemaent i disclosed in Nate 1V 42 Contingent linbdlities and

commitments — Collateral.

202 Memeeny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29 DUETO CUSTOMERS

As_at 31 December

) Mote 023 2022
Demand depodsits
Corporate customers 5,538,382 5,470,459
Individunl customars 6,666,150 5,508,440
Tirme deposits
Covrporate customers 5,068,105 3,686,042
Individupl customars 10,453 689 EB.A70,927
Pedged deposits 11 568,312 427,959
Others 144 657 164, 597
Subrotal 28,435,295 24,737 434
Accrued interest 459,173 383,606
Tatal 28,898 468 25,121,040

(1] Analyzed by activity to which pledged deposits are related to:

As al 31 December

2021 2022
“Trade finance 194,523 152,626
Bank accoptance 150,331 121,800
Letters of guarantee and guaraniess 49,486 52,384
Letters af credin 76,684 50,783
Oihers 57 1BR 50,366
Tatal 568,312 A27,959

{2)  As 8t 31 December 2023, due o customers measured ot amortized cost of the Graup amounted to
RMBZE 889,726 million (31 December 2022: RMB25,093,700 million], duc to customers measurcd
at fair value through profit or logs of the Group amountod to RMBE,742 million (31 December 2022
RMB27,340 million). As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the difference between the
fair walue of the structured deposits designated at fair value through profit or loss seed by the
Group and the contractual amount pavable to the bholders of these products upon maturity was
ol material.

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSLIED

Az ot 31 Decembar

Notes 2023 2022
Bonds issued [§1] 616,699 478,063
Certificates of deposit issued 12} 296,543 306,523
Other debt securities Issued [E]] 1369771 1,074,198
Subtotal 2,283,013 1,858,784
Accrued Intenest 12, 908 10,614
Total 2,295,921 1,869,398

Annusl Bepart MOIME
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

As at 11 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there was no default on the principal, interéest or
redemption related to any delbt securities issued by the Group.

202 Memeeny
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Motes 2023 2022

2.40% CNY figed rate Green Bonds

maturing in October 2025 (i) 15,000 15,000
2.80% CNY fized rate Green Bonds

maturing in October 2027 i 5,000 5,000
1.25% USD fixed rate Geeen Bonds

maturing in January 2026 [iii} 2,125 2,088
2.00% U5D fixed rate Green Bonds

maturing in lanuary 2027 (vl 1,115 2,089
SOFR+0.63% USD float rate Green Bonds

maturing in November 2026 fvl 2115 -
SOFR+0.55% USD figat rate Green Bonds

maturing in March 2023 {vil - 09
4,.45% Tierawo capital fived rate Bonds

maturing in April 3028 |wii] - 40,000
4.28% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in March 2029 [wiii] 50,000 0,000
4,30% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in April 2029 [in) A0, 000 40,000
3,10% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in May 2030 [} A0, 000 40,000
1.45% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in June 2032 ] A, 0 40,000
3.03% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

matuting in September 2032 [xii] 50,000 50,000
3.49% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in March 2033 |=ili} A5, 0 =
3.25% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in September 2033 (L] 30,000 =
3.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in October 2033 ] 30,000 -
4.53% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in March 2034 [mwi} 10,000 10,000
4.63% Tier-two capital fiwed rate bonds

maturing in April 2034 (i) 20,000 20,000
3.65% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in June 2037 (i) 20,000 20,000
1.34% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in September 2037 [=ine} 20,000 20,000
3,61% Tier-two capital fiwed rate bonds

maturing in March 2038 [xx] 25,000 -
1.35% Tier-two capital fined rate bands

maturing in September 2038 (Ed]] 30,000 -
1.55% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in October 2038 (=xii} 30,000 -
Medium term notes issued (i) 48414 57,643
1.99% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in April 2023 {mmiv) - 20,000
3.38% flxed rate financiol bonds maturing in April 2024 [mxw) 20,000 20,000
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Far the yeas endad 31 Decomber 2003
{AmnunLs in milkons of Renmindi, unbess otho raduesated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

111 Bonds issued [Continued)

at 31 mhbear
Motes 2023 2022

2.65% fined rate financial bonds

maturing in June 2006 [ 20,000 =
3,90% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in Movember 2023 {xmwii} - 2,000
3.06% fixed rate financial bonds

mdturing i Auguest 2024 {xenwiiil) 2,500 2,500
2.B0% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in November 2026 [uxix] 2,400 -
2.68% fiwed rate financial bonds

maturing in March 2023 [FE] - 4,000
3.40% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in September 2024 [l 2,000 2,000
2.75% fimed rate financial bonds

maturing In barch 2025 [T 6,000 6,000
3.80% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in June 2025 {xeiii) - 500
A4, 10% fixed rate financlsl bonds maturing in April 2026 (xxwiv) 1,099 1,099
3.80% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in June 2026 () 2,998 2,998
5.55% fixed rate capital replenishment bands

maturing In March 2028 (BRI - 3,500
3.60% fixed rate capital replenishment bonds

maturing in Macch 2030 [EEE ] 1,500 1,500
3.67% fixed rate capital roplenishmant bonds

maturing in March 2033 (=] 3,500 -
Total nominal value 616,786 A478, 127
Lese Wrmowized ssuaies tist il diolints L] {64)
Tatal 616,699 478,063

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities, the bonds issued by the Group are set out
as below:

il The CNY green bands ssued in Dctober 2022 hove @ moturity of 3 pears, with a fioed covpon rate 2.40%,
payabie aracaily.

il The CNY gredn bonds iaued in Detoder 2022 hawe o motariy of 5 peers, with a fieed cavpen rate 2.80%,
payabie annwally,

) The USD green bonds ssved i deneary 2021 hove o matuesity af 5 years, with o fived coupon rote I.25%,
payable semi-onaually,

i The USD green boads ssped dn deneary 2022 howve o matusity of 5 peons, with o fived coupon refe 2000%,
payebie semi-manially,

fel  The USD green bonds ssued in November 2003 have a mmturity of 3 yeor, with @ floot cowpon rate
SO0FR+0 B3N, poyobie guorteriy.

foill  The USD green Bonds sswed s March 2022 have o moturity of 1 peor, with o flosr covpon fole
SOFRY55%, poyohie monthly, The bownds hove expived on 2 March 2023,

Anndiil Regert MOIIT
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Ameounts im millioes of Renminbi, unless otheraise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1} Bonds sswed [Continued)

Wil  The Tier-two coite! bonds Mswed & Apdl 2008 hove o maneity af 10 yeors with o fised cowpon fare of
4. 45% payeble annually. The Bonk hot redeemed ol of the bonds of foce velie an 27 Apell 2023,

fwit]  The Tier-two copita! bonds iised in March 2019 howe o moturity of 10 yeer, with o fleed coupon rate
of 4.28% poyoble oanwuolly. The Bank hos an oprion (@ redeem port o of @f the bonds o fice vlue
in Morch 2024 if specified redemption condiend o stipwlaled ia the offering documenti were met,
subfect to regulotory approval. These Tier-twa copital bonds have the write-down feohure of o Ter-two
apital instrement and they are quoedifed a5 Tier-fao Capingd instraments in ocrordamce with the NFRA
rEqUirEmIenEs,

fle)  The Tier-two copital bonds isswed in April 2019 howe o moturity of 10 years, with o fived coupon rote
of 430% poyable oanumlly. The Bonk hos on optlon do sedeem part ar of of the bonds ot foce wolue
in Aprid 2024 If specified redempiion conditions of stioulmted a0 the offening  documents were met,
suffect to regulotory approval, These Tierstwo copital bonds fave the weile-down  femture of o Terwo
capltol instrument ord they are guolifed o5 Tierdwo Copltod fnstruments i occordomce with the NFRA
refuremrnts.

fef  The Tiertwo copitod bonds isswed i Aprll 2020 have o matwnity of 10 yeors, with o fixed coupon rote of
1.10% popohle annualp. The Bank bax an optian to redeem port or all af the bands of foce walie in Moy 2005
If spedfied redemp conditions as stipufated in the offering documents were met, subjedt to reguictory
oppravol These Tier-fwo copital bonds have the write-down feature of o Tier-two copital instroment and they
ore gualified as Fiewtwo Copitol estruments dn occordonce with the ARRA requirements.

fmi] The Tier-two copitel bonds isswed in June 2022 bove g motunty of 10 yeors, with o fieed covpor rote of
3.45% popoble annuoly. The Sank foz on option to redeem port or all of the bonds of foce value in fune 2027
If specified redemprion conditiond o stipuiated in the offering docements were mel, fubiect fo reguiaiony
approvol These Tier-fwo copital bonds bawe the wrte-down feature of o Tier-two capital instrovment and they
ave qualified as Tiew-twa Capdml Imiframends i acoordeace with fhe NFRA reqinrementy

jmil]  The Tier-two copital bonds isgued in September 2022 hovwe o molurity of 10 peors, with o fived cowpon
rote of T.03% pawabde easually. The Bank has on aphian 1o redeem port o all af the bonds at face value In
Seprember 2027 if specified redemption conditions @i siipidated i the affering  documents were metL sulject
o reguiatery approvel, Thede Tier-two copitel boads have the weite-down  featwre of o Tier-twe capitol
instrisment ard they ere quolified as Tier-two Capited Instruments dn accardance with the NFRA requirements

{eiii] The Tier-two copital bonds isswed in March 2023 hove a mobuity of 10 yeavs, with @ fized coupon rate
of 348% poyable annuelly, The Boak has an option e redeem port o oll of the bondi of foce vafwe in
March 2028 If soecified redemprion conditions of stipwioted i the offering documents were met, subfect fo
regulatery oppraval. These Tier-fwo copital bonds have the wrile-down feature of @ Tier-twe capital instrument
ond they are guolfied as Tler-hwo Copifol instruments in acoordance with the AFRA regudrements.

[e]  The Tier-twa copital bends issued in Septernber 2023 hove o moturity of 10 pears, with @ fised coupon
rete of 3.25% povoble snpually. The Bank hor on ophion (o redeem gart or alf of the bonds at foce value I
Sepremoer 2028 if specified redemption conditions o5 stipwlated (o the offering docwments were met subect
to regulatory opprosal. These Tier-two copitel bonds howve the write-down  featwre of o Tier-two capitol
instrizment and they cre quelifed oF Tiertwo Capito! instruments in accardonce with the MFRA requircments.

fev]  The Tier-two copited bonds swed w Ogtober 2023 hove o maturity of 10 years, with a flaed coupon rale
of 3458 popable ganuclle. The Bonk hos an option to redeem part or of of the bonds of foce wolue
in October 2028 f specified redemption conditions o stipufafed 0 the offering documents were met,
subfect to regulotory approval. Theze Tier-two copital bonds fave the write.down  feoture of o Terwo
copital instrument ond they are quolifed of Tierdwo Copited fnstruments in occordamce with the NFRA
rEqLETEE,

202 Memneny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1} Bonds issved [Continued)

{mal] The Tier-fwo copite! bonds (ssped in Adovch 2008 hove o moturity of 15 peors, with o fined coupon rote
of 4 53% poyable annuolly. The Bonk kot an opbion o redeem part or ol of Ehe bondi of foce wifue in
March 2003 if specified redempifon conditions o5 stipwlated in the offering docwments were met, subject
to reguiriory eporoval, These Tier-two copital bonds hove the write-down feature of o Ter-wo copita!
irstrvment ond they are quolfied of Tier-two Copital Instruments in eccordance wéth the NFRA requirements.

fowid)  The Tier-two copitel bonds sued in Agril 2019 hove o moturity of 15 pears, with o fised coupon rofe
of 4.63% popoble manuclly. The Barnk hed an option o redeem part or ol of the bonds of foce wolue
in Agri! 2029 if specifed redemplion comditiond o8 sbipuicted @ the offeding documents wene  mel
Subect to reguimtary approvad. Thede Tier-two capilal bonds have the whle-down featire af o Terfwo
caplted mutrument ard (hey ore quedifled o8 Tiertwe Copltl fstruments @ oocordance with the NFRA
RGN TR,

(il The Tier-tweo copital bonds ssued i e 2027 hiree o materlty af 15 pears, with @ Jised couposa Fole
of 658 popoble eoruclly. The Bark hes an opticn (o redeem poart of ol of the bonds of foce walue
i dune 2032 i specified redemption conditions of shpuloted W the offering docueneats were meL
Subject o requdtmiary aporovny. These Tier-fwo capdlal bonds have the weite-down  feature of o Tier-fwo
copire! mstrument ord they are quelified a5 Tiertwo Capital Mstraments i accordoace with the NFRA
requirements,

feiy)  The Tiertwo copital bonds isswed in September 2007 hove o malurity of 15 peavs, with o fived conpon
rete of 3 34% poyable snaually, The Bank has an aprion to redeem part or all af the bonds at foce valee in
Septembaer 2032 if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents wene met, sublect
fr reguwiatory apgroval, These Tior-two copitel bonds have the weite-down  fegture of o Taer-hve copite!
instrvment and they ore qualificd as Tier two Copital Instrevments in oocardonce with the NFEA requirements.

fex)  The Tier-two copited bonds issued in Moveh 2003 hove o moturity of IS5 years, with o fiaed coupon rote
of 3.61% popoble onnually. The Bark hos an optlon to redecm part or ol of the bonds of foce wolue
in harch 2033 if speciffied redempiion conoftors as stipeloted dn the offering documents weee e,
subject to reguilotary opprovod. These Tier-two copital bonds have the wnite-down  feature of o Tler-two
capited mstrument ond they ore quelificd a5 Tlerbwo Copitel instruments i occordonce with the NFRA
requirements,

fil]  The Tier-two copttal bondy isseed in September 2023 have o moturty of I8 weovs, with o fived cowpon
rofe of 3 38% poyoble annrally, The Bank hos on option to redesm part or alf af the bonds ot foce valee in
Septemitaer 2033 if specified redemption conditions as stipwlated # the offering documents wene met, subsect
to reguwlatony aperoval. These Tier-two copilel bonds hove the weite-down fealure of @ Taer-dwo copita!
instriment ard they ane qualificd ai Tiev-fwa Capital Indtremends in accardance with the MERA requirements

oot} The Ter-two copital bonds fssued in Ootober 2023 hove o maturity of 15 years, with o fived coupon note
of 3.55% payohle oanuclly. The Bark hos an option to redeem part or o of the bonds of foce valie
i Oetober 2033 If specified redemption conditions of stipwlated in the offering documents were met
subject to regulotary approve. These Tier-two copital bondy have the weite-down feature of o Tier-two
caplr! mstrument amd they are qualified as Tree-bws Capingd fashruments @ accordaace with the NFRA
FEGUIEmETIS,

Annual Bepart HOIRD
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year endad 31 December 2023
[Armcuims i millicns of Renminks, unises othersise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
{1} Bonds iswed [Continued)

(i) The medinm term motes | “MTAS ] were ssued by the Owerseos Opeotions of the Group and ore measured
of omodtized coif. The detaili of MTNS Ssued were o3 folfows:

31 December 2023
Outstanding
Matwrity dates ranging from Coupan rates (%) Bl
Fixed rate RMVE MTNs March 2024 to September 2.70-2,99 4,584
026
Fixed rote HED MTNs Navember 2025 4.75 11359
Fixed rote USD MTNg Jonuary 2024 te March 2027 0.70-2.25 35400
Floating rate USD MTN:  Apgust 2025 SOFR+50hps 7071
Taral 48,414
31 December 2022
Qutstanding
Maturfty dotes renging from  Coupon rates (%) baipnce
Fixed rate RVB MTNS May 2023 to Aprl 2024 2.60-2.90 2E00
Fixed rote HED MTNs March 2023 to June 2023 0.50-0.66 4,906
Fixed rate UED MTH: July 2023 toMarch 2027 0.70-2.25 46,982
Flaating rate USD MTN:  November 2023 1 months Libor+66 2,089
to BShps
Fixed rare MOP MTNS Augusr 2023 115 H&S
Tatal 51043

fuxte) The fixed rate fineaci! bonas ssceed by ABC In Apell 2020 hove a materity of 3 pears, with a fieed coupon
rohe aof 199N, poyable onmuolli. The Boaoks hawe expined v 21 ApnT 2023,

feey) The fixed rate fineacio! bongs sseed by ABC in April 2021 have a materity of 3 pears, with o fived coupon
rote of 3.38%, poyable anncatly,

{end) The fieed rate finonciel bords fsued by ASC i June 2003 hovwe o matwrity of 3 peors, with o fleed coupon
rte af 2655, poyable arncay,

[endl] Tha fiwed rate finonciel boads lssued by ARC Flnancal Leasing Co., Ltd dn November 2020 howe o matuiny
of 3 yeovs, with o fired coupon rofe of 3 90%, popable amnuolly, The bonds howe expired on 26 November
-t R

(mnw] The fixed rate financial bonds Bsved by ASC Finoncio! Leosing Co., Led. # August 2021 howe o matweity af
¥ years, with a fixed coupon rote of 3068, poyoble annuoily.

(o) The faed dote fineoood boods dssued by ABC Fnanool Leasing Co. Ltdl in Movernber 2023 howve 0 moturthy
of ¥ years, with o fixed coupen rofe of 250%, povable onnuoliy.

(o) The fired note finanoal bonds ssuved by ABC Finongiol Asset investment Co., Lid, in Morch 2028 hove o
muaoturity of 3 pears, with o fioed covpon rotr of 268% poyoble oonuclly. The bonds howe expired on
16 March 7023,

(mm) The fwed rote finanool bonds issued by ASC Foonciol Asset Investment o, Lid in September 2019 have o
maturity &f 5 weavs, with o fived cowpon rafe of 340, peyable aamrally
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2003
(Ampunts in milhona of Rermini, unles atherwisestated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
(1] Bondsissued [Continued)

[xecwii] The fived rofe finoncial bords issued by ABC Finamcial Asset dnvestment Co, Lid (n Morch 2020 hove o
matutity of 5 yeors. with o faed coupon rate of 2.75%, papmble anninaily,

[xuniil] The fixed rate fiapnciol bonds iiued by ABCT Investment Suthou Corporation Limied in Juae 2020 bave
o matunty of 5 yeors. with o fised coupan rote of 3.80% payeble annuoly. ABCI invesiment Surhou
Corporation Limited has redeemed off of the bonds of fece value on 30 June 2023,

(raxty) Thir fived rote finmociol bonds ksued by ABCT Investovent Suzhou Corporation Limited in Aped 2071 have o
muturity of 5 yeors, with o fued coupan rate of 4.10%, payobie enawally,

(memw) The fived rare finonoal bomds ssued by ASCT Ching favestmear Corporofaan [imited 0 Ame 2021 hove o
maturity af 5 yeovs, with o feed coupon rate of 2.80%, payeble el

(o] The foeed rote capitm! replenishment bonds dssurd by ARC Life bnsurnnee in March 5008 hawe a mahurity of

10 years, with o flved coupan rote of 5.55%, payoble mnunally. ABC Life insurpnce hos redesmed aff of the
tonds at foce volue an 5 March 2023

{monwk] The fived rote copdtal replenishment bonds isswed by ASC Life insurance in Morch 2020 howe o maturityaf 10
yewrs, with a flecd cowpon rate of 3.60%, poyobie onmnuelly. ASC Life Inswranoe fas ae option to redeem ol of
the Bonds ot foce wailee in March X025 If ABC Life insurance does not exercice this option, the coupon  rate of
thee Bands sweould increase 1o £.60% ped annum from 30 Maorch 2025 enwards,

et} The fived note capita reptenishment bonds fsued by ABC Life Inswnance in March 2023 bave o maturity
of 10 years, with o fived coupon rote of 3.65%, poyvable onnually, ABC Life inspronoe has on oplian to
redeem oll of the bonds of foce value in March 2028 if ABE Life Insvronde doed nat exercise the option, the
coupan  rale af the bands would increade fa J6TR per MII\"‘I‘}‘MM ¥ Mavek 2028 anwardls

(2] As at 31 December 2023, the certificates of deposit were isswed by the Owverseas Operations of
the Group amd were measured at amortized cost. The terms of the cerificates of deposit ranged
fram seven days to fhee years, with interest rates ranging from D.00% 1o 6.06% per annum. (Ac @
31 December 2022, the terms of the certificates of deposit ranged from seven days to five years, with
interest rates ranging fram 0.00% ta 5.B5% per anmum.)

(3] Other debt securitles issued by the Group are commercial papers and interbank certificates of deposit.

fil A ot 31 December 2023, the commereinl papers were Bsued by the Overseas Operations af the
Group ond were megsured at amortized cost. The terms of the commerciol papers ranged from
one manth to eight months, with interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 584% per ammunm, [As
at 31 Decernber 2022, the terms of the commerciol popers ronged from twe months o one
year, with Interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 3 37% per annum )

fil  As ot 31 December 2023, the interbank certificotes of deposit were isued by the Bonk’s Head
Office. The torms of the interbonk cortificotes of deposit ranged from one month to one yoar,
with fnterest rates ranging from 2.18% fo 2.75% per onnum. (As of 31 December 2032, the
termis of the interbank certificates of depasit ranged from two months (o one year, with interest
rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.81% per annuim. )

Ayl Rag 7025 2?1
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES

1 Pecember

Notes 2023 2022
Insurance liabllities 149,169 123,978
Clearing and setthement 96,067 112,572
Staff costs payable 11} 78,601 71,469
Income taxes payable 39533 47,716
Pravision {2} 43,674 40,788
Lease liabilities 13) 11,699 10,918
VAT and other taxwes payakle 9,752 8418
Amount payable to the MOF Elir 1,732
Dthers 458,141 50,635
Total 477,928 ATE, 236

1) Staff costs payable

Motes 2023 2022
Shart-term employee benefits [1i] 76,127 GE,B20
Defined contribution benefits [y 1,937 1,801
Earby retirerment benefits {1l 537 758
Total TE601 71,469
{1} Short-term employee benefits
23
Note 1 Janyary Increase Cecroase 31 Decembar
Salarbes, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies {a) 51,935 102,184 95, 964) 58,165
Housing funds {a) i 10,326 [10,383) 10
Soclal insurance including: {a) 338 6,463 [6.440) 31
= hedical insurance 30 6,100 {6,118) 194
— Maternity insurance 15 188 [1ag) 15
= Employmient iinjuny insurance 13 174 [175) 12
Labor unign fees and staff
education expenses 10,698 3,885 [3,460) 11,113
Orthers 5622 10572 9.796) B398
Total 68,820 133,390 [126,083) 76,127

272 @runeny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2003
(AmaunLs in milon of Rermindl, unless othoraice stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES ﬂEnntinued}
(1) Steff costs payable (Continued)

{i}  Short-term employee benefits {Continued)

20232

N o Mote 1 January Increase Decrease 31 December
Salaries, bonuses, allowances

an subnidies {a) 41,785 96,704 |87 304} 51,985
Haousing funds {a) 137 9811 {2,781} 177
Social insurance including: {a) 146 6,083 R L] 338

— Medical insurance 418 5,735 {5,B43) 310

— Maternity inwirgnoe 14 182 {181) 15

= Employment injury insurance 14 166 {167} 13
Labar unscn fees and stafl

education expensas 9,145 4,312 {2,755} 10,658
Others 4,749 11,392 {10,519} 5,622
Total 57,762 128,317 {116,754} 68 B20

fml  Salaries, B 5, i w% ond subsicles, houring funds ond sockal inseronce ane timely distribured

and pod in accordance with refevant laws and reguiotions end the Growp's policy.
{ii} Defired contribution berefits

2013
o . 1lanuary lierease Decrease 31 December
Basic pensions BB 11,573 11,994) Lok
Unemplayment insurance B4 41% [a34) 45
Annuity Sehama 1,109 8,051 {7,065) 1,285
Total 1,891 20,439 [20,393) 1,937
2022
1 January Increass Decrexse 31 December
Basic pansions 534 11,283 [11,345) 623
Unemplaymisnt insurance Lhi] 366 1342} B4
Annuity Schame B52 7620 17,073} 1,199
Total 1,386 19,269 (18,764} 1,891

The defined contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations and the Group's policy. There was no forfeited contribution awailable to
reduce the contribution payable by the Group under the above schemes,

Anniisl Ragar BIIITE
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amoums i millices of Renminbd, unleas ctherssse saced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES [Cr:l ntinued)
{1} Staff costs payoble (Contimed)

fiii} Early retirament benafits

2023 — —
1 Janunry Incraase Decrease 31 December
E:rirrﬂirnnwnl. benefits 18 ﬁ-l-? i Ii‘-iﬂ-] 837
2022
1 lanuary Increass Decrease 31 December
Early retirement benefits 1,088 35 [358) 758

Thi principal assumptions used for the purpase of the actuarial valuathons wane a5 follows:

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Discount rate 2.39% 2.50%

Annual average medical expense growth rate 8.00% B.00%

Annual subsidies growth rate B.00% B.00%
Mormal retirement age

= Male 60 &0

= Female 55 55

Assumptions regarding luture mortality experience are based on the China Life Inswrance
Martality Table [published historical statistics n China).

Aoy difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect the amount
of expense recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

{2} Provision
As at 31 Decermber

Mate 2023 2022

Loan commitments and financial
BUarantes contracts 1] 27,485 28,051
Litigation provision 5529 5,317
Dthers 10,560 7420
Total 43,6749 A0,788

202 Memeeny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decomber 2003
{AmpunLs in mallons of Renmindl, unkess athonsisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES [Continued)
{2) Provision (Continued)

(i) Analyzed by movements in loss allowance for loan commitments and financial
guarantee comtracts

¥Yoor ended 31 December 2023
Stage | Stage | Stage 1|
12 months
Hote ECL Liferime ECL Total
1 January 2023 25,637 1,061 1,353 28,051
Transfen
Stage | transfer to Stage 11 {187} 187 - -
Stage Il transder to Stage 11l - {139) 139 -
Stage Il trandfier 1o Stage | 121 1121} = -
Stage I transfer to Stage 0l - 564 {564 -
Incriase [E1] 17,703 - - 17,703
Remeasurement {4,532) 9317 215 {3.480)
Decrease {a) {13,430} [650) {70a) {14,783}
31 Decemmber 2023 25,212 1,839 A3a 27,485
Year ended 31 December 2023
Stage |, Hage |t Stape I
12 months
Nete ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 January 2022 18,333 631 1287 20,271
Transfer
Stage | transfer to Stage 11 [113] 113 - -
stage Il transfer to Stage Ml - {133} 133 -
Stage |l transfer 1o Stage | 122 [422] - -
Stage I transler to Stage 0| - 97 [ar) -
Incraase {a) 11,600 & = 11,600
ARemeasurement 4,045 1,294 479 5E1E
Decrease {a) {8,350) {839 [daa) {9.638)
31 Decemnber 2022 25,637 1,061 1,353 ZB,051

(@) The impoct of loss alfowance driven by new loon comantarents and [inonciol guordalee  controcts
sigaed iy 2023 and 2022 & disclosed o “Incrediet. The wipoel of lods  olowamnde  deven By
withaiowels, odvinoes or expiglon of loan commitments ond frondel gueronlee centrools in
2023 and JOF2 ore disglosed o5 “Decriase”, The changes of losi alowonce for loan commitments
and firancial guarsaies contraols in 2023 are maindy driven by (he deorease of rosrEon nrifo. The
chmages 4f loss afowonce for Jan commitments and fironcial guarmates conlrocts i 2022 are mainly
driven by the aet increose w the expoiure of loon commitments and financiol guaranter controcts and
the increase of provision retio.

Annusl Bepart HIIIIS
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year endad 31 December JO23
[Ammcuims i millicns of Renminks, unlses othereise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)

(3] Leose lobilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysls of lease labilities:

As at 31 December
2023 2022
Legs than 1 year 1,995 3,710
1-5 years 7174 6,931
Cher 5 years 1,250 1070
Total undscounted lease Nabilities 12,460 11,711
Lease liabdlitkes 11,699 10,918

32 ORDINARY SHARES

31 December 2023

Mumber
of shares Maminal
{millions) value
Domestic isted A shares, par value
REMAB1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
Crewsrseas listed H shares, par value
RMEB1.00 per share 30,739 30,739
Total 345,983 349,983

Number
ol shares Narminal
{rmllligns) value
Domestic listed A shares, par value
RMAB1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
Crverseas listed H shares, par value
RMB1.00 per share 30,739 30,739
Total 349,933 349,983

i

2

202 Memaeny

A shares refer to the ordingry shares lited fo the Chinese malnlond, They ooe affered and traded i AME. H shores
refer to the ordinovy shares figled jn Homg Koag SAR Their por value it denaminated in AMB when they were

initigly affered and ave currently traded in HED,

Ar ot 31 December 2023, the Bark's A Shares and H Shoves were sof fubject to fock-up sedtriction, As of
31 December 2022, the Bank’s A Shores and H Shares were not subject to lock-up restriction. eecept for the
RAMEIS 560 mior ardinary shores (A shores) Gsved through the private plocement in fune 2018 As ot 3 Jwly
H023, the obove ANMBIS.960 mildon ordimory shones beld subject fo restrictions o0 safes become tradohie in the

market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yead ended 31 Decamber 2033
{Ampumns in millons of Renmindi, unbess othorsiuestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Ted
numiber naminal
Firancial Divicend rate) Iswedprice  of shares value
IPtiiments outstanding  Imterest rate (FMByuan)  [milbons]  dmillions|  Mafuiity dale  Comersion
Preference thares BLO0% pes anuen o the first 5 pears 100 0 40000 Womatritpdate M coverson
— fit tranghe® whes msuance, and re-priced every dusisg e
5 years & stated below penod
Prederencs ihares 5 501 per annm o the first 5 years 00 Lol 40000  Nomshritydate  Nocomverson
= sapond tranche'! afler msuance, and re-griced every dwring e
5 yoars s sbabod below period
Pepetisl  Undsediier] 4.39% pes anmem dor the fimt 5 years 100 B0 BR000 Mo maturity daie Mfa
bands capitalbonds aflerissuance, and re-priced eeery
In 2015 5 year 26 staled balow
= first
trasche
Undated tier 1 £.20% per anrum don the first 5 years i) 0 000 Ko maturity date LT
apital bonds  afied issuance, and re-prced ivery
in 2049 5 yeaty i stated below
_w
tranche
Undated ter 1 348% pes annem for the first 5 years 100 k54 85,000 Mo maurity date LT
capital bonds  #flerissuance, and re-priced every
In 2020 5 woas s statod below
= first
tranche™
Undated tier | & 50% pes anrum tor 1he firt 5 vears k] £ 000 Mo saterity date Nia
epital bands.  ahaf duance, and re-riced every
In 2020 5yt stated beelow
~ sexend
tranche™
Undated tier 1 3.76% per anrem for the first 5 yeary 1] a0 0000 Ko maburity date A
pitalbonds  afipr ssuance, and re-priced eviry
in 2031 5 yan i stabed below
~ finsl
tranche®
Undated tier 1 3.49% pes anrem dof the fist 5 yesrs 100 e 50000 Mo sabutty date LT
capital honds:  afterissuance, and re-griced ewery
In 2022 5 years a5 stated below
= first
tranche™
Undated tier 1 3.17% pes anrum dof the fimt 5 years 100 i 003 Mo saberity date N
tapitalbonds.  afier Msuance, and re-priced eviry
in 2022 5 yeur m stated below
— giond
tringhe
Undated tier 1 - 3.71% per ansum for e first Syears 100 4 40000 K saturty date Mfa

apitalbores  afver fssuanie, and reprived every
In 2023 5 yoan s statoed below

= first

e
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembes 3023
[Ameums in millions of Renminbs, unless otheraise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{1} The Bank was authorized to issue no more than 8300 million preference shares of RMBI 00
each, purswant to the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant regulatory
authgriries,

The first tranche of 400 million preference shares was ssued at par in November 2014, The first tranche
of preferance shares bears a dividend rate of 6.00% per annum; dividends are non-cumulative and
whare payabbe, ame paid annually, for the first five years from Bsuance, The dividend rate will be re-
priced ewery five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a fined
premium of 2,.29%, The first five-year dividend pariod expired on 1 November 2018, During the socond
dividend period beginning from § November 2019, the base rate and fixed premium s 3.03% and
2.¥9%, respectively, and the coupon rate is 5.32%. The dividend is paid annually,

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares was Bsued at par in March 2015, The second
tranche of preference shares bears a dividend rate of 5.50% per annum; dividends are non-cumulative
and whore payable, are paid annually, for the first five years fram issuance. The dividend rate will be re
priced ewery five years thereafter with refarence to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yvield plus a finad
premium of 2,24%, The first five-year dividend pariod espired on & March 2020, During the second
dividend peried beginning from 11 March 2020, the base rate and fed premium is 2.60% and 2.24'%,
respisctively, and the coupon rate is 4,84%. The dividend is paid annuwally,

As autharized by the ardinary equity halders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has
the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividend: on preference shares. The Bank shall not distribute
any dividends to its ordinary equity holders before it declares such dividends to preference tharshalders
far the relevant period, The distribution of preference shares dividend is a1 the Bank's discretion and 4
nan-cumulitive, Preference sharchelders are net entitled to participate i the distribution of retained
garnings except for (he dividends stated above,

The Bank has a redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents are
met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to reguest the Bank
o recdipm the preference sharnsg,

Upon liguidation, the claims of preference shareholders have priority over ordinary equity holders on
the residual assets af the Bank, but are subordinated to those of depositors, general eraditors, Tier-twa
Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt holders with equivalent rights.

Upon oceurrente of the triggerng cvents as stipulated in paragraph 2{1} of the Guldance of the
NFRA on Amendments 1o Commercial Banks' Innovation an Capital Instruments (NFRA No. 42 [2019])
and subject 1o regullatory approval, the first ranche of preference shares and the second tranche of
preference shares shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the comversion
price agreed, partially or entirely. The initial conversion price of the preference shares ssued by the Bank
was RMB2.43 per share. In June 2018, the Bank has issoed 25,189 million ordinary A shares te specific
Investors, The comersion price of the preference shares will be adjusted where certain events occour
Including bonus issues, rights Hsuve, capitalization of reserves and new ssuances of ordinary shares,
subbject to terms and formulas provided in the offering documents, (o maintain the relative interests
between preference shareholders and ordinary equity holders, Upon completion  of  the  private
placement of ardinary shares by the Bank, the mandatory conversion price of the first tranche  of
preference shares and the second tranche of preference shares isved by the Bank will be adjusted from
RMBZ.43 per share to RMEB2.46 per share.
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Far the yeae ended 31 Decomber 2023
{Ampunts in mallons of Benmindl, unless othonsdsestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(1) The Bank was authorized to issue no more thar 800 million preference shares of RMB! 00
each, pursuant to the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant regulatory
awuthorities. {Contiued)

These preference shares are elmssified as equity instruments, and presented as equity in  the
consalidated statement of financial position, and are gualiied as Adddional  Tierone Capital
Instruments in accordance with the NFRA requirements.

The carrying amount of the preference shares issued by the Bank, net of direct Bsuance expenses, was
RMEBTS.899 million as at 31 Decembar 2023 (31 Docembor 2022; RMBTS, 899 million].

{2} Perpetual bonds, as shown in the balance sheet, are capital bonds with no fixed maturity
isswed by the Bank.

With the approval from the annual genaral meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank was permitted
1 issue wndated additional tier 1 capitad bongs ("Perpetual bonds” or the "Bonds”] of an amount ng
mose than AMB120 billion in 2019,

The Bank issued undated additional ter 1 capital bonds (first tranche] with the amount of RMBES billian
in the pational interbank bond market on 16 August 2019, and the Bsuance was comploted on
20 August 2019, The denomination of the Bonds is RMB100 each. The Bonds do not have any step-up
maechanism or any other intentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
defined intervals and determined by @ benchmark rate plus a fized spread, with a distribution rate
adjustrment perlad every 5 years, and the annual coupen rate for the first fhve years is 4,393

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds [second tranche) with the amount of
AMBA5 hillion in the national interbank bond market on 3 September 2019, and the ksuance was
completed on 5 September 2019, The denominatien of the Bonds is RMBLOD each, The Bonds do not
hawe any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeemn, The distribution rate of the Bonds will be
adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a distribution
rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five yoars is 4. 2308%.

With the appreval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank was granted
to Bsue undated additional tier 1 capital bands of an amount no mare than AMBL120 billion in 2020,

The Bank issued undated additional ther 1 capital bonds [first tranche) with the amount of
AMBAS billion in the national interbank bond market on 8 May 2020, and the suance was
completed on 12 May 2020. The denomination of the Bonds Is RMBIO0 each. The Bonds do not
have any step-up méchanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
willl be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a banchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the anmial coupon rate for the first five years
is 3.48%,

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche} with the amount of
AMBAS billipn in the national interbank bond market on 20 August 2020, and the issuance was
completed on 24 August 2020, The denomination of the Bonds & RMB100 each. The Bonds do not
have any step-up mechanism of any other ineentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the Tirst live years
s 4.50%,

With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank was granted
16 Baue undated additional ter 1 eapital bonds of an amount no more than AMBL20 billien 2021
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

(2} Perpetual bonds, as shown in the balarce sheet, are capital bonds with no fixed maturity
issued by the Bank. (Continved)

The Bank issued undated additional ther 1 capital bonds {first ranche] with the amount of RMBA0 billion
in the national interbank bond market on 12 Movember 2021, and the issuance was completed on
16 November 2021, The denemination of the Bonds is RMB100 each, The Bonds do not have any stap-
up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
delined intervals and determined by &4 benchmark rite plus a fized spread, with a distribution rate
adjustrment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years s 3,76%.

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bands (first tranche) with the amount af AMBSO
billign in the national interbank bond market on 18 February 2022, and the issuance was completed on
22 February 2022. The denomination of the Bonds is RMB100 each, The Bonds da not  have any step-up
mochanism or any ather incentive to redesm, The distribution rate of the Bands will be adjusted at
defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fizsed spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupan rate Tor the first Tive years is 3,49%,

The Bank isswed undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche] with the amoumt of
AMEB3D billlon in the national interbank bond market on 1 September 2022, and the ksuance was
completad on 5 September 2022, The denomination of the Bonds s RMBLIOD each, The Bonds do
not have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem, The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fized spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years. and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is
3.A7%

With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authosities, the Bank was granted
ta issue undated additional tier 1 capital bonds of an amount no more than RMB200 billion in 2023,

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of RMBAD
billien in the national interbank bond market on 24 Auguit 2023, and the Bsuanee was compleled on 28
August 2023, The denomination of the Bonds is RMBI00 each. The Bonds do nat have any step-up
rmechanism or any other incentive 1o redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
dofined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fined spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first flve years is 3.21%.

The duration of the Perpetual bonds is the spme as the continuing operation of the Bank. Subject to the
satisfaction of the redemption conditions and having obtained the prior approval of the NFRA, the Bank
may redeem the Bonds in whole or in part on each distribution payment date froam the fifth anniversary
since the suance date of the Bonds, Upan the occurrance of a trigger event for write-downs, with the
approval of the MFRA and without the need for the consent of the holders of the Bonds, the Bank has
thee right to write down all or part of the aggregate amount of the Bonds then Bseed and outstanding,
The clalms of the holders of the Bonds will be subordinated to the clabms of depositors, general
creditors and subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior to the Bonds; and chall rank in priarity to all
classes of shares held by shareholders and will rank pari passu with the claims in respect of any other
additional tier I capital instruments of the Bank that rank pari passu with the Bonds.

Tha distributions on the Perpsiual bonds are non-cumulative. The Bank shall have the right to cancal
distributions on the Bonds in whole or in part and any such cancellation shall not constitute an
event al default, The Bank may a1 s discretion wse the proceeds from the cancelled distribution
to meet other cbligations as they fall due. But the Bank shall not make any distribution to ordinary
shareholders wntil its decision to resurne the distribution payments in whole to the holders of the
Baonds,
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Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2003
(Ampunts in milhona of Rermini, unles atherwisestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{2} Perpetual bonds, as shown in the balance sheet, are capital bonds with no fixed maturity
issued by the Bank. [Continued)

The net proceeds from the ssuance af the Perpetual bonds were wsed to replensh  the Bank's
additional tier 1 capital.

The carrying amount of the undated additional tier 1 capital bonds issued by the Bank, net of
direet issuanee edpenses, was RMB399,968 milllan 2s at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMBI58,970 million).

34 CAPITAL RESERVE
The capital reserve mainly represents the premium related to ordinary shares publicly issued by the Bank
in 2010 and private placement of ordinary shares to the specific shareholders in 2013. Share premium
was recorded in the capital reserve aftor deducting direct issuance expenses, which consisted primarily of
underwriting fees and professional fees.

35 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023
Gross carmying
amount Tax effect Net effect
31 December 2022 47 542 {11,655} ELE
Changes in accounting policies BES {157} 504
1 January 2023 43207 {11,812) 26,395
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair value
thraugh ather comprehensive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in other
camprehensive incame 16,153 (4,117} 12,036
= Amount removed from other comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss [521) 130 {391}

Logs allowance on debt instruments at fair walue

through other comprehensive income [B,821) 2,488 (6,333}
Fair value changes on other equity investments

at falr value through other comprehensive incoms:

= Amount of gains recognized directly in other

comprehensive income E12 [167) 445
— Transferred to retained earnings (1) - [#1]
Foreign eurrency translation reserne TEE = TEE
Dthers [1.B81) 470 {1,811)
31 December 2023 54,514 113,008) 41,506
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

2022
Gross carrying
amount Tax effect Net ethect
31 December 2021 44,313 [11.482) 3831
Changes In accounting policles {1,169) 292 [B77)
1 lanmuary 2022 43,144 (11,190} 11,954
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair value
through other eamarehansive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in ather
comprehensive income {15,523} 3,749 111,774)
— Amount removed from other comprehunsive
incame and recognized in profit or lass {434) 109 [325)
Loss allowance on debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive incoma 16,838 (4.407) 12431
Fair value ehanges on other equity investmeants
at falr value through other comprehensive income;
= Amount of gains recognized directly in ather
comprehensive incoma 128 {33] 65
Foreign currency translation reserve 3,857 - 3,857
Others [ELE] 117 [351)
31 December 2022 47,542 |11,655] 35,887

36 SURPLUS RESERVE

Undar PAC Law, the Bank |5 requirad to transfer 10% of its net profit determined under the PRC GAAP to a non-
distributabdle statutary surplus reserve. Appropriation to the statutary surplus reserve may cease when the
balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital. Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors’
Meeting held on 28 March 2024, an appropriation of 10% of the profit for the corrent year, determined
under the generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve, in the amount
af RMB26,240 million (2022: RME25,309 million] was approved. In addition, eertain subsidiaries and everseas
branches also appropristed surplus reserves in accordance with local requirements.

Subject to the approval of the ordinary equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for replenishing
accumulated losses or increasing the Bank’s ordinary share capital. The statutary surplus reserves amount used
toincrease the ordingry share capital is limited to a level where the balance of the statulory surplus reserves after

such capitalization ks not less than 25% of the ordinary share eapital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2003
(AmaunLs in milon of Rermindl, unless othoraice stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37 GEMERAL RESERVE

Purswant o Caijin [2012] Ne, 20 “Reguirements on Impalment Allowance for Financial Institutions™ (the
“Requirement”) issued by the MOF, effective on 1 July 2012, in addition to mpairment allowance, the Dank
catablishes a general reserce within ordinary equity holders’ equity through the appropristion of profit to address
unidentified potential losses, The general resene should not be less than 1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk
assets as defined by the Reguirement. The general reserve indudes regulatory reserve approgeiated by the Bank's
oversias branches pursuant 1o local regulatary requirements.

Pursuant to relevant PRC domestic regulatory requirements, some domestic subsidiaries of the Bank are required
to appropriste certain amounts of their net profit as peneral reserves,

During the wear ended 31 December 2023, the Group tramsferred RMBGET7,B00 million (2022
RMBIE, 9B million) 1o the General Reserve pursuant o the regulatory requirements in the PRC and overseas
jurisdictions. Of this amount, RMBET,557 million (2022: RMBE3IZ 221 million) related to the appropriation
preposed for the year ended 31 December 2022 which was approved in the annual general meeting held an
29 June 2023,

On 28 March 2024, the Board of Directors’ meeting approved a proposal of appropriation of RMBT75,629 millian
to general reserve. Such appropriation will be recognized in the Group’s consobdated financial statements after
approval by ordinary equity hodders In the forthcoming annual general meeting.

38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
following balances with an original maturity of thrae months or less:

fAs at 31 December

2023 2022
Cash 71,140 &7, 1RO
Balance with central banks 338,123 169,295
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 156,452 145,374
Pacements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutions 143,220 172,663
Financial assets held undes resale agroements 1,803,790 1,151,121
Tatal 2,512,725 1,706,633

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are identified on the basik of intermal organizational structure,  management
requirements and mtemal managemen? repoarting rules of the Group that are regularly  reviewed by the
Board and relevant management committees, which constitute the chiel operating decision makers, for the
purposes of allocating resources (o segments and assessing their performance. The Group's chiel operating
deciskon makers review three different sets of financal inforrmation based on (i) geographical locations, (i)
business activities and (1) County Area and Urban Area banking business,
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For the year ended 31 December 3023
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

The measurement of segment assets and labilivies, as well as segment revenue, expense and resufts are
based an the Group's aceounting policies. There i no difference between the asccounting policies used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial staterments and those used in preporing the operating
segment infarmation.

Trantaction: between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions. Internal
charges and transfer pricing are determined with reference to market rates and have been reflected In the
performance of each segment.

Segment revenwee, results, assets and labilities include iftems directly atiributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on & reasonable basis.

Geogrophical operating segments

The details of the grographical operating segments are as follows:

Head Office

Yangtze River Dela: Shanghail, llangsu, Mejlang, Ningbo

Pearl River Defta: Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujlan, Xlamen

Bohal Rim: Beljing. Tianfin, Hebed, Shandong, Qingdao

Central China: Shanxl, Hubel, Henan, Hunan, llangsi, Hainan, Anhul

Waestern China: Chongging. Sichuan, Guirhouw, Yunnan, Shaarwl, Gansu, Qinghal, Mingxia,
Zinjlang [including Xinjlang Production and Constructlon Corps  Branch),
Tibet, Inner Mangokia, Guangxi

Wartheastern China: Liaoning, Heilongiiang, Jlin, Dalian

Overseas and Others: Subsidiaries and overseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

389 OPERATING SEGMENTS [Continued)

Geogrophical operating segments (Conbinued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographicel operating segments (Continued)
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imtangihir assets and other lang-ferm ossets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the yeae ended 31 Decomber 2023
{Ampunts in mallons of Benmindl, unless othonsdsestated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS [(Continued)
Business operating segments
The details of the business aperating segments are 25 follows:

Corporate banking

The corporate banking segment provides financial products and sendices to cofporations, govesnment
agencies and Tinancial institutions. The range of products and services includes corporate loans and
advances, trade finance, deposit products, corporate wealth management serviees and other types of

corporate intermediary services.

Personal banking

The personal banking segment provides financial products and services to individual customers. The
range of products and serdees includes personal loans, personal depasit, card business, personal wealth

management services ond other types of perconal intermediary services,

Treasury operations

The Group's treaswry operations conduct meney market and repurchase transactions, debt Instruments
imeestrments, precious metal transactions and derivative transactions for its own accounts or on behalf of

CUSHTMAETS,

Others

Others comprise components of the Group that are not attributable to any of the above segments, along
with certain assets, Habllities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could mot be allocated on a

reasonable basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business operating segments (Conbinued)

Carporate Perssnal Treasury Corsalidated
banking banking pperaikoms Dihers total
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Extarnal ingerest income 473,568 334,186 40737 B 150 5123698
External interest experme (207,604) {270,601) (158,505) 5.23%} [650.948)
Insar-gegment el interest joxpensefincome |36,2R71 176,058 (238,171) - -
Mot inferestincome 19,387 333,843 9594 2912 571,750
Fee and commission income 59,445 31,114 w493 3458 54,710
Fog and commisghon pspanse (6,273) {7,.261] |42) [43%) {14,617}
Ml lee and commBsion Income 12,572 LR LA a8 3019 80,058
Mert trading gain - - 23,688 (564} 23,124
Mot (o] fgain on finanol sy estmenly [1,2a3) #1] K5 T 9,172 16,764
Mt gain on derecognition of financlal assets
meassred at amorticed cost - - 1,019 15 1,008
e a8 Az (556 S35 HE
Diperating mcome 171,504 364,837 15,214 18,293 555,458
Dparating expenses |81,5675] |130,482) 129,2648) (108800 [252,30%)
Credit impairment (lonses)frevenal {100,515) [41,347] & 1R & [135,707)
Impainment lessas on other assets (181} E]] = 142) 226)
Diperatieg prodieloss) 83,053 193,005 16,134 303 aov.230
Shase of results of associates and joint ventures - - - 153 189
Profi{lows) belore tax 29,053 193,005 1E,134 9,227 aor.a13
[GH-D R — (3rsog)
Prafit for the year 265,820
Bepreciation and amortization induded
Inpperating expenses 5521 11,54% 4,230 3 2L621
Capital pxpenditure 4,402 11,484 4,902 44619 15,457
A3 st 31 December 2023
Segment aLsets 13,558,720 B8,025832 17,257,302 470,376 38,712.239
Inthadirg: Investnnent in aisociates and
Jost ventured - - - 8,386 8,386
Umallocated st IEES_H_
Tetal sidets 5, A72.088
Segrment [abilithes B (11,715,830}  [17.803,059] (7,042,912) [374.994)  {36,936,585]
Lnallecated kabilities (39,537}
Tital llatailities. (36,076,122]
Loan commitmints and financial
uarantes cortracts 1,946,077 508, EHE - - 1,855,765
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business operating segments (Continued)

Corparate Personal Treasury Conaodidated
banking nanking nparations Cikars tonal
Far the year arded 31 Decomber 2032
External intenest income 417,689 33674 359,641 1460 1,108,464
Entarnslintamel axpadiis (160858 (239.484) (195,219} 13,053 [518.581)
Ivier-sEgrnent nEL inbenes |eapentelincome |29, 880} 224,630 | 194, 7504 - -
Met intorest income 126,591 323823 29,672 4,397 SB9.883
Fee andcommission ingome 57633 256 M5 4,74 95,518
Fi andcemmission Bipense [FAmMa) 16,466 (&4} 12551 (14,236}
_Met fee andica ion ncomse 40,163 25,190 Bl 4,468 B, 2E2
Nt trading gain/Tloss) = = 6,107 (5,54 5519
Met [baii]figadn on finsncial investments (T4} {254) (] L5878 5905
Met galn on derecognition of financial assets
measured 3t amortized cost - - 154 & =]
Qther cperating income 1131 589 5,716 4,53 12,53
Operating income 177544 355,348 44,436 17.555 605,283
Opersting taperies (BE06E] (123,520 |34, 228} |%,737) (243,571}
Creds Impaiement (losses) freversal [100.9L7T] (45,775) 2,514 [355] [145,266)
Imphifment laisds of ather assets 147} - - 183] 59)
Operating profit #9514 185,053 23,002 7,815 306,387
Share of results of associates and joint vestures - - - (] ()
Profit belare tax B9,514 186,053 13,0002 T.884 306,453
Imuoime Lax enperns 147537
Profit for the year L
Depreciation and amartization included
iMOPeraling eapentes 5,707 0987 3,662 = 1) 0,745
Capnal expenditune 4835 11204 4,418 1405 22,5862
Az at 11 Pecember F22
Segment assels 11,695117 7512287 14,162,923 ans,231 33,775,558
Inchading: InvesEment in sdodiates snd
ot ventures - - - 8053 [Tz
Unalloated asiets. lasyin
Total asets 331 43C 454
Segmant liabilities 13,945,578 (154518759 [5.463.192) (3368551  (31.204,003)
Unallocated Kabilities {47725
Tatal labilities [31,2%1,724)
Loan commitments and financial
Auaranter contracks 2308207 104,186 = = 2417393

Annual Bepart HOERD

428/524



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembsers 7023
[Ameoums in millions of Renminbi, unless cthersise saed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
319 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's eperating segments arganized by County Area and Urban Arca banking business are set out as
follows:

County Area banking business

The Groug's Countly Area banking business prowides a broad range of financial products and services to
customers in designated County Area, through its operating branches in the countles or county-level cities
throughout the PRC. The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits, bank cards, and other
types of intermediary services.

Urban Area banking business

The Group's Urban Area banking business eomprises all banking activities outside of the County Area banking
business, overceas branches and subsidiaries.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
38 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segrmenis (Continued)

County Area  Urban Area

banking banking Contalidated
bussiness business  Eliminations total
For the year ended 31 December 2023
External interedt inoorme 316,890 905,808 - 1,123 598
External interest expense {|196,647) [a55,301] - (651,948]
_Inter-sepment net interest income {expense) A7az1s  [174.218) = =
.NEI' ?1131'_&:_: Em IE._‘H 277 285 - 571,750
Fésg and commission inooma 38,726 55,984 - 4,710
Fer and commisslon expense {6,051) [8.566] = {14.627]
Met fee and commission income 31,675 47418 - BOLO93
Net trading (Joss]/gain {648} 23,771 - 13,10
Met {lawi)fgain an financial inveitmentis I51) 16,815 - 16,764
Met gainon derecognition of financial asheis
measured at amortized cost = 1,038 = 1038
Other operating income/|expenie) 5174 [2,475) - 2,699
Operating incamie 331,611 363,857 = 695 458
Operating expenses (117,156) [135,108] - [252,305])
Cradit impairment [osses [61,821) {73,856) - {135,707}
Impairmint kasses an other assets [45]) [181] = [226]
Ciparating profit 152,549 154 631 - 307,230
Share of results of assaciates and joint venhuwres = 188 = 183
Profit before tax 152,549 154,870 - 307419
Incame tax expense [37.599)
Profit for the year — -
Depreciation and amortization ncluded
in operaling expenses 8.B0S 12,816 - 1,621
Capital expenditurs 4,655 20,832 - 25487
As at 31 December 2023
Segmont Aot 13,702,772 3617R 12T [168,660] 39,712,239
Ineluding: Investment in assodiates and joint vertures - B, 3B6 - BI85
Urallocated assets 160,750
Total assets — 19872989
Segment Eabllities (12,735,050)  [24370,188) 168,660 [36,535,505)
Urallocated Fabiities 139,537}
Todal labilities = LR ]
Loam commitments amd financial guarantee contracts 1,016,655 1,839,110 - 1,855 765

Anryal Rag 7025 291
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Contimued)

County Area Urban Area

banking banking Consalidated
busingss business Eliminaticns total
For the year ended 31 Decomnber 2022
Extarmal interedt income 291,067 817,397 - 1,108 464
Externalintersst expanse | 165, 864] (35217 - |518,581)
Inter-segment net intaresl mcome/[eapense) 158,544 [158,544) - -
_Natinterest income %147 305136 — )
Fee and commission income s 5739 - 45,518
Few and commission capens {5,3865] [8,250) - {14, 236)
Met fee andcommission incomie 31,793 45,489 - #1282
Het trading {loss/gain 11.990) Tabe - 5,519
Net {loss)fgain onfinanclal investments {211} 6,120 - 5,909
Net gain on derecognition of financial assets
measired at amortized cost - 160 - 160
Caher apesating income 4,441 B.OED - 12.530
Ogperating incosme 317,780 377,503 = 605,283
Oparating expen ies 1115,112) [128.458) - [#43,571)
Credit impairment lossas [71.334) {73.932) - |145,266)
Impalrment losses on other assets (17 [42) - 159)
Operating profit 131,317 175.000 - 306,387
Sl'lﬂ'eﬂrfesﬂllﬂfﬂﬁﬂhlﬁalﬂIDll'lI'ltl'fI-IJl‘ﬂ- - BB - BB
Profit before tax 131,317 175,136 = 306,453
Ingemi B axpense ___ \47.5ET)
Prafit far the yeas — 258866
Depredation and amortization included
in operating expanses 8,291 12,454 - 20,745
Capital expendtune 6,012 16,650 - 22863
As at 31 December 2022
Segment adiets 12,003,909 22.157,E16 |386,167| 33,775,558
Jrichading wesirie it I ajpociatis snd jolnt venbures - e - i
Unaliocaled ansets 149,930
Tatal assots —3.35.935
Segment liabilities (11,093, 7000  {20,456.470) 386,067 (31,204,003)
Unallecated liabilities 147,725)
Tatal liabilities [31.251, 728}
Loan commigments and finangial puarantes oontracts B15,000 1,597,393 - 2412393
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS
(1] The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2023, the MOF directly owned 3529% (31 December 2022 35.29%] of the
ordinary shares of the Bank.

The MOF iz & Chinéte governmient mindty, prmarily respansible for managing state fiseal Fevenve
and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies, It reports to the Chinese State
Council,.

The Group enters inte transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business under normal
eammercial terms. Details of the major balanees and transactions are as follaws:

Ratho ta Ratio o
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Asiale
Treasury bonds and special government
bkond 1,345,831 12.00% 913,436 9.58%
Receivable from the MOF 340,595 3.04% 333.078 3.45%
Liabilities
Due to customers 2,935 0.01% 4,377 0.02 %
Qther liabilities
— Redemption of treasury bonds on
behalf of the MOF 4 0,00, 4 0.00%
= Amount payable to the MOF oz 0.06% 1,732 0.36%
Year ended 31 December
1023 2022
Ratio o Ratio o
sirmilar similar
Amount transactions Amount tramsacticnd.
Interest income 44,768 3.66% 32,424 2.93%
Interest expense [338) 0.05% |58} 0.01%
Fee and commission income 1,707 1.80% 1,382 1.45%
Met trading gain 143 0.62% 103 1.87%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year are as follows:

__¥ear ended 31 Decombar
1023 2022
k) ¥
Treasury bonds and receivable from the MOF 0,00~-5,00 0.00~-9.00
Due to customers 0.0001-5.49 0.0001-4.43

The Group's redemption commitment for treasury bonds underwriting is disclosed in Note IV 42
Contingent liabilities and commitments.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [Continued)

1)

202 Mraneny

The Group and Huifin

Central Huijin Investment Led. (“Huiin®) s a wholly state-owned company through state investment
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, which s incorporated with authorized copital
of RMBEZE 209 million in Beijing, PRC. The State Council has authorired Huijin to make equity
IFvstInEnts in major state-ownad financial inslitutions ta preserve and merease the vilue of these state-
owied financisl assets, Huijin can exercise rights and shall assume obligations on major state-owned
financial institutions a3 an investor on behall of the state to the extent of its capital contribution. Huijin
does not engage in other commercial activities nor intérvene in the normal operations af major state-

owned financial institutions which are contralled by Huijin.

As a1 31 December 2023, Huljin directly owned 40014% (31 December 2022: 40003%) of the

ordinary shares of the Bank.

Transactions with Huijin

The Group enters Into transactions with Huljin in its erdinary course of business. These balances and
transactions are priced based on market prices and conducted under normal commercial terms. Details

of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

31 December 2023 3] December 2022
Ratlo 1o Ratio to
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Assots
Loans and advances to customers 12,009 0.06% 14,012 0.07%
Financlal investments. 16,044 0,32% 31,747 0.33%
Liabilities
Due to customers 14,166 0.05% 11,745 0.05%
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
Ratio to Ratio to
similar similar
Amount_transactions __ Amount _ transactions
Interest incamie 1,218 0. 10% 1,077 0.10%
Intorest expense {138) 0.02% {395) 0.08%
Nat trading gain E ] 0.01% 3 0.05%
Intarest rate ranges lor transactions with Huijin duting the year are a4 fallows:
—Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
%6 ]
Loans and advances to customers .70 3.65
Financlal investments 2.28-4.23 2.15-5.15
Due to customers 1.40=1.90 0.45=-2.10
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Heifin {Continued)
Transactions with companies wnder Huijin
Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the direction af the
Central Government. The Group enters into transactions with these banks and fBinancial institutions

ini the ordinary course of business, These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices
and conducted under normal commercial terms, Details of the major balances and transsctions are as

follows:
31 Docamber 2023 31 Docombar2022
Ratio to Ratio 1o
similar similar
Balance transactlons Balance  lransaclions
Assets
Deposits with banks and other financial
institutions 381,644 35.33% 120,662 19.13%
Placements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutions 90,166 17.47% E61.552 12.30%
Derivative linancial assets 3,964 15.94% 6,045 19.69%
Financial assets held under resals agreements TB.375 a.33% 46,008 3.92%
Loans and sdvances 1o ustomers 27,397 0135 31468 0A7%
Financial investrents 1,072,258 9.56% EB51,275 B.93%
Liabilithes
Deposits fram banks and other financial
imstitutions 169,162 4.63% 122,269 4.97%
Placements from banks and other financial
institutions 120,656 31.56% 91.971 27.56%
Defivative financlal llabilites 5,040 18.12% 5,604 18.08%
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 5,902 5.87% 6,155 14.06%
Due to customers 473 0.00%, 3,032 0.01%
Equity
Other eguity instruments 2,000 0.42% 2000  0.45%
OH-balance sheet Hem
Letters of guarantes and guaraniees 444 0.12% 1,233 O.38%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [Continued)
(2] The Growp ond Huifin (Continued)

Transactions with companias umder Huijin (Continwed)

Year ended 311 December

2013 2022
Ratlo o Ratio to
sirmilar simillar
Amountl transactions Amaunt Lramsachsng
Interest incame 15,810 1.29% 20,3549 LB84%
Interest expensa [1,878) 0.29% (2.918] 0.56%
Net trading [Ioss]/gain (1,077) NfAa L] 12.67%
Net gain on financial mvestments 1,352 14.03% 4,194 T0.98%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with companies under Huijin during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

023 2022
il Y
Deposits with banks and other financial instiutions -0.60-4.23 -0.90-2.50
Placements with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions -.155.58 -0.25-9.50
Derivative linancial adsets -0.004-5.00 000715
Financial assets held under resale agreemants 1.75-4.60 265440
Loans and advances Lo CUSIOMEers 0.00-4.90 0.00-6.15
Financial investments 0.00-8.75 0.00-5.98
Depasits from banks and other finandal institutions 0.00-6.10 0.00-3.99
Placernents from banks and ather financial instituthens 2.75-6.02 -0.20-6.03
Derivative financial liabilities 0.02-5.50 0.00-6.26
Financial assets sobd under repurchase agreements 1.81~5.87 2.00-4.23
Due to customers 0.05~-1.55 0.0001-3.99
Other equity Instruments 4.84 4.84
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{3) The Group and National Council for Sociel Security Fund of the People's Republic of China

As ot 31 December 2023, the Bank's shares held by Mational Couneil for Social Seeurity Fund of
the People's Republic of China (the “S5F%) accounted for 6.72% of the Bank's total share capital
{31 December 2022: 6.72%). The Group enters into transactions with the 55F in the ardinary course
of Buminess. These bolantes and tranisetions are priced based on market prices and conducted under
normal commercial terms, Details of the major balances and transactions are as fallows:

31 Dgcember 3023 31 December 2022

Ratio to Ratio o
similar shmilar
Balance transactlons Balance  transactions
rrr - — - i
Financial assets held under resale agreements 35,114 2.00% 41,549 A.54%
Liabilithes
Due to customers 129,383 0.45% 78,773 0.31%
Equity
Other equity instruments 1,250 0.26% 1.250 0.28%
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
Ratio to Ratio 1o
similar similar
Amaunt transactions Amount  transactions
Intesest income 31 0.00% 23 0.00%
Interest expene [4,518) 0.69%. (2, 798) 0.54%.

Interest rate rangos for transactions with S5F during the yaar are a5 follows:

3 r
2023 2022
e ¥
Financial assets held under resale agreements 2.50-4.50 2.45-4_30
Due to customens 0,40-4.26 0.45-4.26
Other equity instruments 4.84 4.84

Annusl Bepart HOIFP

436/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023
[Amounts im millions of Renmink, unless otheraise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (Continued)

{4} The Group and other government related entities

Other than disclosed abowe, o significant portion of the Group's bonking transactions are entered into
with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and ather State contralled entities. Thews transactions
are entered into under nofmal commerdial terms and conditions and  mainly  include provision of
eredit and guarantee, deposits, foreign  exchange  tromsactions, derivative  transactions, agency
services, undenwriting and distribution of Bands issued by government agencies, purchase, sales ard
redemption of investment securities issued by government agencies.

Management considers thal these transactions are activities conducted in the ordinary course of
business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and those entities are government related. The Group has also established pricing
pelicies for products and services amd such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the
customers are government authorities, agencies, affiliotes and other State controlled entities,

(5] The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Dank had the following balances and tramsactions with [ts subsidiaries in its ordinary course of
business, These balances ond transactions are priced based on morket prices ond conducted under
nermal commercial terms, Detalls of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Ratio to Ratio to
slmilar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
ASSELS
Plaeements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutians 84,612 16.39% 83,895 16.77%
Financial imestments 1,218 0.01% 601 0.01%
Other assots 354 0.18% 188 0.21%
Liatsilizies
Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 5,901 0.168% 15,881 D.G5%
Placements from banks and ather
financial institutions 952 0.25% 798 0.24%
Due to customers 2,025 0.01% 2,247 0.01%
Dther liabilitied a4 0.01% 15 0.00%
Off-balance sheet [tems
Letters of guarantee and guarantess BED 0.24% 2 BEG 0.B7%
Non-principal guaranteed wealth
management products issued by the Group = - 10 0.00%
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CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{5) The Bank and its subsidiaries {Continued)

Year ended 31 Decembaer

2033 2032
Ratle ta Ratio to
simllar simiar
Amount transactions Amount  transactions
Interest income 1,625 0.13% 1484 0.13%
Met gain on financial investments 17 0.10% 198 3.35%
Fee and commission income 2,006 212% 1,941 2.03%
Cther operating incoma 156 T.26% 150 1.20%
Interest expense [174) 0.03% [51%)] 0,10%
Fei and commission expense [101) 0.69% {1.655] 11.63%
ﬂ'D']'J'iIiI'IE ERpErT [335) 0.13% [254] 0.15%

Inferest rate ranges Tor transactions with its subsidiaries during the wear arg as follows:

Year ended 31 December

023 2022
H W

Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 1.62-7.40 0,30-6.68
Financial imvgstments 0.00-2.80 0.00
Depaosits from banks and other financial institutions 0.00-5.30 0.00-48.13
Placements from banks and other linancial mstitutions 1.62-5.90 1.25
Due to cutlamers 0.01-3.10 0.01-1.8B5

(6) The Group and lts essoclates and joint ventures

The Group had the following balances and transactions with its associates and joint ventures In its
ordnary course of business. These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices and
conducted under normal commercial terms. Details of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

— 3 Pecember 2023 31 December 2032

Ratio to Ratio 1o
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Assots
Loans and advances to customers 986 0.00% 1,043 0.01%
Liabilithes
Deposits from banks and other
limaneial institutions a7 0.00%: 24 0.00%:
Due to customers BE 0.00% 2664 0.01%
Off-balanee sheet tem
MNon-principal guaranteed wealth
management products issued by the Group - = a 0.00%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (Continued)
{6) The Group and its associates and foint ventures (Continued)

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

Ratlo to Ratio to

similar similar

Amount transactions Amount  transactions

Interest income EL 0.00% z1 0.00%
Interest espense (1) 0.00% [9) 0.00%

Interest rate ranges for ransactions with its associaves and joint ventures during the year are as follows

—Yaar anded 31 Decgmbar
2023 2022
Loans and advances 1o cuslomens EN:L] 3.65-4.60
Deposits fram banks and ether finandial institutions 0.00-1.55 0,00-1.65
Due to cuttamers 0.20-1.75 0.25-1.E5

{7} Key manogement personnel and related natural persens transoctions

Eey management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan,
direct amd control the activities of the Growp, Key management personnel of the Group, their close
relatives, and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by either the
key management personnel of the Group or their close relatives, are considered as related parties
of the Group. The Group enters into banking transactions with above related parties in the normal
course of business. 4s at 31 December 2023, the balance of lnans and advances to the above related
parties is RMBT.40 million (31 December 2022: AMBS.57 mullion).

The Bark bsued loans and credit card business to related natural persens (a5 defined in the
Administrative Measures on Information Disclosure of Listed Companies issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (the “C5RCT)). As at 31 December 2023, the balance of such loans amounted
to AMB12.56 million (31 December 2022 RMBLT7.66 million),

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key managemaent during the years was as follows:

¥ nd; 1 Dec
2023 202} |Restated)
(millions) {millicens)
Salaries, bonutes and stal wellans 10.E6 15.69

According 1o the regulations of the relevant authorities |n the PRC, the key management persannel’s
fina! emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023 have not besn finalized. Management of the
Group believes that the difference between the final emaluments and that disclosed above will not
hawe significant impact on the conselidated financial staterments af the Groug. The final compensation
will be disclosed in a separate announcement when determined.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2022 was nol
decided at the time when the Group™s 2022 consalidated financial staterments were released ond the
amount of remuneration of key management personnel recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or boss for the year of 3022 was AMB11.84 million. Supplementary announcement on final
compensation of AMA15.69 million was released by the Bank on 29 August 2023. The comparative
figures for the year of 2022 have been restated accordingly.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(8] Related party transactions defined by NFRA

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's boalance of eredit related transactions to the related partics as
defined in the Rules on Related-Party Transactions of Banking and Insurance Institutions by the NFRA
totalled RMB206,272 million, and the amount of non-credit transaction totalled RMBA4,692 million,
As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's balance of credit related transactions to the related parties as
defined in the Rules on Related-Party Transactions of Banking and Insurance Institutions by the NFRA
totalled RMBAS,327 million, and the amount of non-credit transaction totalled RMB1Z, 752 million.

(%) The Group and the Annulty Scheme

The Group had the following balances and tronsactions with the Annuity Schems et up by the Bank
apart from the obligation for defined contributkon to the Annuity Schems:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Ratia to Ratio o
similar simalar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Liabilitias
Deposits from Annulty Scheme 7,290 0.03% 7.342 0.03%
Equity
Other equity Instruments 7,500 1.56% 7,500 1.70%
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
Ratio to Ratia to
zimilar similar
= Amount transactons  Amount teasactions
Interast expense (298} 0.05% [279) 0.05%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with the Annulty Scheme during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
£l _#9

‘Deposits fram Annuity Scheme 0.00-5.00 0.00-5.00
Qthar cquity Instrumaents 4.84-5.32 4,84-5.32
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{10) Proportion of transactions with major reloted porties
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Related party transactions with subsidiaries have been offset in the process of preparing consolidated
financial statements. When calculating the proportion of related party transactions, related party

ransactions do not include related party transactions with subsidiaries.

) Tranmsaction balance

s ; 3] Degambar 3033
Related Relatod
party party
transactions  Proportion transactions Propartion
Deposits with banks and other
financlal institutions 381,644 35.33% 120,662 19.13%
Macements with and
loans to banks and
other financial institutions 90,166 17.47% 61,552 1230
Derkatve financial assats 3,264 15.94% 6,049 19.69%
Financial assets held under
resale agreements 114,489 6.33% 87,557 7 ATH
Loans and
advances to custamers 40,402 0.19% 46,523 0.25%
Financial investments 2,794,728 24.92% 2,129,536 22.35%
Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions 169,209 4.63% 122,293 4.97%
Flacements from banks and
other finencial institutions 120,656 31.56% 91,971 27.56%
Darivative financial liabilitios 5,040 18.12% 5,604 18.08%
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 5,902 S.8T% 6,155 14.06%
Due o customiers 154,313 0.53% 107,933 0.43%
Crther liabilities 306 0.06% 1,736 0.36%
Other equity instruments 10,750 2.24% 10,750 2.44%
Letters of guarantee and
gusrantmes [EE] 0.12% 1,239 0.38%
Hon-principal guaranteed wealth
management products
lssued by the Group - - 4 0.00%
{ii} Transaction amounl
Year ended 31 Decomber
2023 2023
Related Related
party party
transactions Proportion trardactons Proporton
Interest income 61,876 5.06% 53,910 4.86%
Interest exponse (7.171) 1.10% [6,457) 1.25%
Het trading {loss)/gain [231) N/A 805 14.59%
Met gain on financial investments 2352 14.03% 4,194 70.98%
Fee and commission incoma 1,707 1.80% 1,382 1.45%
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Consolidoted structured entities

Structured entitics consolidated by the Group include certain ascet managernent plans, funds and
securitization products Bswed, managed andfor invested by the Group. The Group contrals  these
entities because the Group had power over, s exposed 1o, or has rights 1o, variable returns from its
imvoheement with these entities and has the ability to use its power aver these entities ta affect the
amount of the Group's returns,

{2) Unconselidated structured entities
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group maknly Include non-principal
guarantesd WMPs, which are not subject to any guaraniee by the Group of the principal invested or
interest to be paid. The WMPs invest in a range of assets, most typically money market Instruments,
debt securities and non-standardized debt assets. As the manager of these WMPs, the Group,
on behalf of the investors In these WHPs, Invests the funds raised from investors to the assets as
deseribed in the investrment plan related 1o each WMP and distributes profits to iwvestors based on
product performance.

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets invested by these non-principal guaranteed \WHPs
amounted to RMBLT74.790 millon (31 December 2022: AMB2,004,687 miilion) and the
corresponding outstanding WMPs  ssued by the Group amounted te AMB1,685,287 milllon
(31 December 2022 RMB1,933,155 milllon). During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
Imtarest |n these WMPs included net fee and commission income of AMB3.440 million (2022
RMEBS, 742 milllon], and net interest Income related to repo transactions enter by the Group with
these WP of RMB 84.2 thowand (2022: RMBO). The Group enters into repo transactions at market
Interest rates with these WhkiPs, and the outstanding balance of these tramsactions was represented
the Group's masimum exgosure to the WMPs, During the year ended 31 December 2023, the average
exposure and the weighted awerage maturity period for the above-mentioned transactions were
AMB4,105.5 thousand and 3 days respectively [2022: Did not occur). And there was no outstanding
balance for the above-mentioned transactions at 31 December 2023 and 31 Decemnber 2022, The Group
was under no obligation to enter into these transactions.

There ware no contractual liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments between the
Group and any third parties that could increase the level of the Group’s risk from WhPs disclosed
above during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, The Group was not
required to absorb any losses incurred by WhPs,

In addition, other unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group included
funds, assot managemant plans and asset-backed securities, As at 31 Decomber 2023, tho total assets
of these products amounted to RMBI086E43 million (31 December 2022 RMB423,668 million).
During the yoar ended 31 December 3073, the Group’s interest in these products mainly included net
fee and commission income of AMB1.166 milion (2022: RMEL 556 millsan].
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

{2) Uneonsolidated structured entities (Continwed)

Other unconsolidated structured entities held by the Croup

The Group invests in other unconsodidated structured entities which are sponsored and mannged
by other entities for investment return, and records trading gaing of lowsed and interesl income
thefefrom, These unconsolidated structured entities primarily include asset managerment plans, WWPs,
fumds, trust plans, asset-backed securities and debt investment plans, etc. As at 31 December 3023,
the related carryving amount of investments and the maximum exposure by the Group to these other
unconsolidated structured entities was AMBE0,049 million (31 December 2022: AMBT3,497 million),
included under the financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss, debt instrument investrments
at amarteed cost and other debt instrument and ather squity investments at fair value through ather
comprehensive income categories in the consolidated stavement of financial position, The information
on Uhe side of tolil assets af these unconsalidated structured entitlies was fol re=adily available in the
public damain.

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and s subsidiaries are involved as demandants/defendants in certain lawsults arising frem their
normal business operations. As ot 31 December 2023, provisions of AMBS,629 million were made by the
Group (31 December 2022: AMBS5,317 million) based on court judgments or advice of legal counsel, and
included n Mote Iv 31 Other liabilities. Management of the Group belleves that the final result of these
lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group,

Capital commitments
As at 31 December
2023 2022
Contracted but nnl:pmulddqld far 4914 1,929
Loan commitments and financiol guarantee contracts
2023 2022
Loan commitments.
= With an original maturity of less than 1 year &6, 608 35,744
— With an original maturity of 1 year ar abave 299,239 383,897
Subnotal 365,847 415,641
Bank acceptances 1,024,150 T02.237
Credit card commitments 873,029 797,219
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 373,915 339,420
Letters of credit 218,824 167,876
Total 1,855,765 2,412,393

Loan commitments and financial guaramtee contracts represent eredit cards and general eredit facility limits
grantad to customers. These general credit facilities may be drawn in the form of loans or through the
issuance of letters of credit, letters of guarantee and guarantees or bank acceptances.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk weighted amount for eredit cermmitmenis

Credit risk weighted amount for eredit commitments represents the counterparty credit risk associated
with credit commitments and is caleulated in sccordance with the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
{Prowisional)” ssued by the NFRA which was effective on 1 January 2013 and is dependent on, among
ather factors, ereditwarthiness of counterparties and maturity characteristics of eéach type of contrset As
at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments was
measured under the Internsl Ratings-Based approach.

As at 31 December
2023 2022
Credit risk w\eiﬂhted amount for credit commitments 1,155,402 1,186,585

Collateral
Assets as collateral

At the end of each reporting peried, the carrying amouwnts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase
agreemants ara as lollows:

2023 2022
Debt securities 103,516 44,352
Bills 3,623 3,565
Total 107,139 47,917

Az at 31 December 2023, the financial assets sold wnder ropurchase agreomaents [disclosed in Note IV 28
Financial atsets tald under repurchase agresments) by the Group amounted to RMBID0,521 million (31
December 2022 AMB43, 779 million), Repurchase agreements are primarily due within 1 year from the
effective dates of these agreements,

Fimancial asiets sold under repurchase agreements include certain transactions under which, title of the
pledged secuwritied has boen tranclerred to countérpartiel. These transactions have been discloded in Note IV 43
Trangferred financial assots,

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged in accordance
with regulatory regquirements as collateral for derivative Lransactions or barrowings fram central banks elc.
by the Group as at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB1,558.063 million in total [31 December 2022:
RMB1 21E.412 l'nill'l:ln:..

Collateral accepted
The Group received debl securities and bills as collateral in connection with the securities lending
transaclions and the purchase of asiets uvnder resale agreements (Mote IV 16 Financial assets held

under resale agreements). The Group did not hald any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31
December 2023 and 31 Decomber 2022,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued]

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF 1o underwrite certain treasury bonds. The investars of these treasury
bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at any time prior to maturity and the Group i committed to
hanar such redemplion requests. The redemption price is caleulated as the nominal value of the band plus
payable interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption arFangement.

As at 31 December 2023, the nominal valee of treasury bonds the Group was obligated to redeem priar o
maburity was AMBAE, 73 million (31 December 2022: RMBS1,367 million). The original maturities of these
bonds vary from 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group expects the amount of redemption before the
maturity dates af thesa bonds will not be material.

Commitment on securlty underwriting

As at 31 Decernber 2023, the Group did not have unexpired securities underwriting obligations
(31 December 2022: Nil),

43 TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into Wransactions in the normal course of business whereby it transfers recogniced
financial assets to third parties or to structured entities. In some cases these bransfers may give rise to full
or partial derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do
not qualify for derecognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the
Group continues to recognize the transferred assets.

Securitiration transoctions

The Group enters into securitization transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers
loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors, The Group assessed, among
other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it
retaing the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquishaed it control over these assets
based on the criteria as detailed in Note |l 8.7 Derecognition of financial assets and MNote i1l 6 Derecognition
of fimancial assets transferred,

As at 31 December 2023, the total amount of unexpired  asset-backed securities included  accumulative
loans transferred by the Group befare impairment allowance wai RMB116,040 milion (31 December 2022:
RMBI0L, 538 million), RMBEZ24.238 million of this balance (31 Decomber 2027 RMBI.736 miflion] was in
respect of nen-performing foans and the Group concluded that these loans transferred were qualified for
full derecognition. The remaining balance of RMB91,B02 million (31 December 2022: RMBOL,802 million)
was in respect of perfarming loans and the Group concluded that it had continuing involement
in these assets. As at 31 December 2023, the Group continued to recognize assets of RMBES519
million [31 December 2022: RMBE,B50 million) under loans and adwances to custormers, The Group also
recognized other assets and other iabilities of the same amount arsing from such continuing involvement.

Tronsfer of non-performing loans

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Growp tansferred non-performing loans through disposal
to third partics of issuing asseot-boek securities, with gross loan balance of RMBLESL6 million (2022:
RMB1LEES millkon). The Group carried out an assessment based on the criterls as detailed i Note 1| B.7
and Mote |l 6 and concleded that these transferred assets were gualified Tor full derecognition.

Financial assets sold under repurchose agreements

The Group did not derecognize financlal assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase
agreemants, As at 31 December 2023, book valee of these collateral pledged disclosed in Note IV

42 Contingent liabllities and commitments — Collateral, AMB45,884 million (31 December 2022:
RMBL, 76% million] reprasented dobt securities whereby logal tithe has been transferred to counterpartios.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43 TRAMSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Securitics lending transactions

For debt securities lent to counterparties under securities lending agreements, the counterparties are
allowed to sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an obligation
to return the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Group has determined thalt it retaing
substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized thom., As at
31 December 2023, the carrying amount of debt securities lent to counterparties was RMB26,400 million
(31 Decemiber 2022: RMB25,000 million),

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

The Group's primary risk management objective is to meet the reguirements of stable operation from
regulatars, depositors and other stakeholders, as well as to maximize return fer investors within  an
acceptable level of risk

The Group has designed risk management policies, which address, among other things, the establishment
of risk limits and controls to |dentify, analyze, monktor and report risks. Relevant and timely information
used to conduct these risk management activities is provided through information systems maintained by
the Growp. The Group regularly reviews s risk management policies and systems to address changes in
markets, products and emerging best practices.

The most significant types of risk to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, market risk and liguidity
risk, Market risk includes forelgn exchange rate risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk,

Risk management framewark

The Board of Dircctors of the Group is responsible for formulating the Group's overall risk  appetite,
reviewing and approving the Group's major risk management policies and proceduras.

Senior Management of the Group s responsible for the Implementation of risk management, Induding
implemanting risk appeltite and risk manogerment strategies, formulating risk management policies and
procedures, and establishing & risk management organizational structure 1o manage the Group's major risks.

44.1 Credit risk
Credit risk managemeant

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to meet
its obligations when due. Credit risk can also arise from operational fallures that result in an unauthorized
or inappropriate loans and advances, commitment or investment. The Group's major credit risks arise
frorm loans and advances, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related credit risk exposures,

The Group's credil risk managemant and BovErnance strutlure comprse the Board of Directors and its
Risk Management and Consumer Protection Committes, Sonior Management and its Risk Managomeont
and Internal Control Committer, Credit Approval Committes and Asset Disposal Committes, Credit
hanagement Department, Credit Approval Department and related front-office customer departments.
The Group's credit risk management function operabtes under centralized management and authorization
under a range of specified limits.

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, including credit dee difigence and
proposal submission, credit undenwriting review, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring and non-
performing loan management. The Group enhances its credit risk management by strictly complying with
its credit managemeant procedures; strengthening customer investigation, credit rating, lending approval
and post-lending menitaring measures; enhanding risk mitigatien effect aof loans through collateral;
accelerating  disposal process of noncperforming loans and continuously upgrading the credit
managemant systemn,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuved)
Credit risk management {Continued)

The Growp writes off financial assets, im whaole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery
efforts and has concluded there is no rexsonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reagsonable expectation of recovery include: (1) ceasing enforcement activity and (2] where the
Group's recovery mothod is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that therg
Is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full

During the reparting period, the Group continued to improwve the comprehemndive risk management
system to ensure effective risk management. The Group strengthened credit risk management In key
areas and asset quality control and accelerated the disposal of non-performing loans to ensure the
stabelity of assets quality,

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, the credit risk arising from treasury
operation business Iz managed by selacting counterparties with acceptable cradit quality, balancing
credit risk and seturn, referencing to bath internal and external credit rating  information  where
avallable and applying appropriate limits subject to different level of management authority, and
timely reviewing and adjusting those limits in credit system, In addition, the Group also provides
lcan commitmants and financial guarantee services to customers which may require the Group to
rmake payments on behalf of eustomers upon their failure to parform under the terms of the related
contract, Risks arising from loan commitments and financial guarantees are similar to those assoclated
with loans and advances, These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same risk  management
plicies and procodures,

Measwrement of ECL

The Group applies the CCL model to calculate loss allowances for its debt financial instruments measured
at amaortized cost and FYOCI, as well as loan commitments and financlal guarantee contracts.

Methods applied by the Group in assessing the expected credit bosses of its financial assets include risk
parameters madel and the discounted cash flow [“DCF®) model. Retall credit assets and Stage | and
Stage 1l whobesale eredit assets are assessed uding risk pararmeters, while Stage Il wholesale eredit pssets
are subject to the dscounted cash flow method,

The Group assesses ECL im light of forward-looking information and uses models and assumptions in
calculating the expected credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ ereditworthiness {e.g., the likelihoed of default by customers and the
carresponding lossas), In assessing the expacted credit risks in accondance with accounting standasds, the
Group uses the judgements, assumptions and estimates where appropriate, incleding:

—  Portfolio segmentation of crodit risk exposures

= Parameters for measuring ECL

= Criteria for significant increase in credit risk and default definition

—  Definition of credit-impaired financial asseis

—  Foerward-looking infarmation

—  Estimation of futire cash Plovws for Stage Il wholesale ereddt asiets
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Portfolio segmentation of credit risk expotures

For measuremnent of ECL, portfolio segrmentation is based on simiar credit risk  charscteristics, In
performing the portfolio segrmentation of credit assets, the Group considers product types, custormer
types, industry, cusiomer size, rsk mitigation method and market distribution, The Group retests and
rewises the rationality of partfolio segmentation of eredit risk exposures every year.

Parameters far measuring ECL

Accoiding to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and whether a financial asset has
become credit-impaired, the Group recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit
loss for the next 12 months or the entire lfetime of the financial asset. The relevant parameters of
ECL measurement include probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default
{EAD). The Group establishes its PD moedels, LGD models and EAD models based on the internal rating
based system as currently used for its risk management purpose, in accordance with the requirements
of FAS &, In light of guantitative analysis of historical statistics {such as  counterparty ratings,
guarantee methods and collateral types, repayment methods, etc.) end forward-looking infermation.

The parameters are defined as follows:

= PO represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over
the next 12 months (“12 months PD"], or over the remaining lifetime [“Lifetime FD") of the
obligation;

= EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to ke owed at the time of default, over the
next 12 months ["12 months EAD™) or over the remaining lifetime ("Lifetime EAD™);

= LG represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted exposwre. |t waries
depending on the type of counterparty, method of recourse and priority, and the availability of
collateral or other credit support. LGD s expressed as 8 percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default.

Criterin for significant increase in credit risk (“S/CR") and defawlt definitton

The Group assesses whether the oredit risk of the relevant financial instruments has  Increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each reporting date. For the purpose of staging
assessmont of its financial assets, tho Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable
information that may refloct whether thare has been a significant change in thelr credit risk, including
forward-looking information. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating enwironments,
internal and external credit ratings. solvency, viability as a going concemn, terms of loan contracts,
repayment behaviors, among others. Based on the single financial instrument or the combination of
financhal instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
of financial instruments on the reporting date with that on the initial recognition date in order to
figure out the changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments. The definition  of
default refers to the fallure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract, or other viclations of the dabt
contract and have a significant impact on the normal debt repayment
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)]
Measurament of ECL (Continwed)
Criterip for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") aond default definition (Continued)

The Growp sets quantitative and qualitatneg criteria to detérming whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased :.Igni'l'i::lnlhr simcE s initial recognition. The oitera includes changes in its
credit risk classification, changes in the borrower's PD, overdue status and other factars, In particular,
when the credit risk classification changes from Mormal upon initial recogrition to Special Mention,
there has been SICR. When the wholesale clients’ PD rises to a certain lovel, there has been a SICR,
Criteria to determine SICR waried hased on the ariginal PD upon initial recognition. If the borrower's
ariginal PD s relatively low (for example, lower than 3%), there has been SICR when the credit grade
falls at least 5 nolches. When retail clients’ PD excesds & corlain level, there has been SICR. According
to IFAS 9, a backstop i applied and the financial instrument is considered to have experienced SICR if
the borrower (s maore than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.

The Group assumes that the eredit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition It the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. The Group recognizes & financial instrument as having low credit risk f s internal rating is
consistent with the globally accepted definition for low credit risk [eg. external "investment grade”
rating).

Definition af credit-impaired financlal assers

The criteria adopted by the Group to determine whether a credit Impalement occurs under IFRS 9 is
cansistent with the inmternal credit risk management objectives for relevant financial instrumants, in
addition to consideration of guantitative and qualitative indicators. In assessing whether a borrower
has become credit-impaired, the Group mainly considers the following fectors:

= Significant financial difficutty of the lssuer or the Borrower;

= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event In refation to interest or principal
payment;

—  The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating 1o the borfower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

— It s becoming probable that the borrower wall enter bankreptey o other  financial
reofganization;

= The disappearance of an active market for that financlal asset because of financial difficulties;

= The puwrchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit ksses:

—  The borrower is averdue for mare than 90 days in any principal, advances, Interest o investmant
in bonds due to the Group.

The credit Impairment of a finencial asset may be caused by the combined effect of multiple events
rather than any single discrete event,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Contineed)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Forward-foaking infarmation

The assessment of whether there has been a significant Incroase In credit risk and the calculation
of ECL both wwvalve farward-leoking infarmation. Through the analysis of historical data, the Group
Identifies the forward-looking information that affect the credit risk and ECL of warious portfolio.
Forward-looking Information inclede Gross Domestic Product [GDF), Consumer Price Index [CP1) and
Producer Price Index (PPI), ete,

Tha impact of these forward logking information on the PDs and the LGDs varies from ane perifolio
to another. The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and
statistical analysis 1o determine the correlation between these forward-looking infarmation and the
PDs and LGDs, The Group assesses and forecasts these forward-looking Information at least every six
months, calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews and assedises rosults,

Az at 31 December 2023, the Group has assessed and forecasted the relevant forwand-lopking
information for 2024, of which the forecast value of 2024 GDP growth rale under each scenario is
ai follows: 5.00% under bate seenario, 5.50% under upside scenario, and 4.40% under downside
scenario,

Based on statistical analysis and expert judgements, the Group determines the welghtings of multiple
scenarios and the corresponding forward-looking information forecast under pach secenario, The
waighting of base scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the other two scenarios. At
31 December 2023, the weightings of the Group's base, upside and downside scenarios have not
changed from 31 December 3022, The Group uses the weighted 12 months ECL (Stage 1) or weighted
lifetime ECL (Stage || and Stage 1] to measure relevant impalrment allowances. These weighted credit
logses are calculated by multiplying the oxpected crodit loss under each sconario by the assigned
scenario weighting.

A sensitivity anabysis is performed on scenario and indicators used in forward-looking measurement.
Whaen the assigned weightings of upside scenario and downside scenario change by 10% or major
Indicators change by 10% under base scemario, the impact on the allowance of expected credit loss is
less than 5.

Estimation af futwee cash flows for Stoge I whelssole credit ossers

The Group measures the ECL for Stage Nl wholesale credit assets using DCF method. Under DCF
method, the loss allowance i calevlated based on the estimation of future eash flows. At each
measurement date, the Group projects the fulure cash inflows of relevant assets under ditferent
scemarios to estimate the probabélity welghted cash flow of each future period. The cash flows are
discounted and aggregated to get the present value of the assets’ future cash flows.

Maximum exposure to credit risk withowt taking account of any collateral held or ether credit
enhancements

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the worst credit risk exposure at the end of each
reporting period, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements. The
credit risk exposure to the Group at the end of each reporting period primarily arses from credit
and treasury aperations. In addition, off-balance sheet iterms such as loan commitments, credit card
commitments, bank acceptances, letters of guarantee and guarantees and letters of credit also include
credit risks.
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Maximum exposure (o credit risk without taking account of any collateral held or ather credit

enhancements (Contiied)

A summary of the maximum cxposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 be
Motes 2023 2022
Balances with central banks 2,850,907 2,481,950
Depodits with banks and ather financial institutians 1,080,076 630,885
Flacements with and loans to banks and
gther finangial institutions 516,181 500,330
Derivative financial assets 24,873 30,715
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,808,559 1,172,187
Loans and advances to customers 0} 21,731,766 18,930,973
Financial investrments
FHnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss 392,939 383,048
Drebt instrument investments at pmaonized cost i} 8,463,255 7,306,000
Other debt instrumaent meestmaents at Fair value
through other comprehensive income i 2,195,685 1,687 405
v firanetal asets s 87,386,
Subtotal 39,208,904 33,270,889
Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts [iv] 2,828,200 2,384,342
Total 42,037,184 45,655,231

[i} Miaximurm expasure o credit ritk for loans and advances discloted in credit ridk levals

The Growp classilied the credit risk levels of linancial assets measured by ECL into “Low”

[eradit risk in good condition), “Medium®™ (increased eredit risk), and “"High® (credit risk in
severe candition], based on the quality of sssets, The credit risk level i used for the purpose of

the Group's internal credit risk management. “Low” refers to assets with good eredit  guality.
There 14 no sulficient readon to doubt that the adsets are not éxpected to lulfill its contractual
obligation to repay of if there i any other behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would

significantly impact the repayment of debt according to contract terms. “Medium® refers

to assels 'Fadng obviows negative factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-

repayment behaviors. “High® refors (o non-repaymant according to the debt contract torms, or
othar behaviors broaching the dobt contracts er having significant impact on the repayment of

debt according to contract terms,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT |(Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuved)

Maximum exposure to credil Fisk without taking account of any collateral held or other credit

enhancements [Continued)
{ly  Mamimum exposure to credit risk for loans and advances disclosed in credit risk levels
[Continued)
Corporate loans and advances As at 31 Decembar 2023
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage
12 months ECL  Lifetime ECL Total
Cradit risk grade
Low 13,977,606 61,293 14,028,898
Medium - 245,659 245,659
High - 241,556 241,556
Gross Carrying amaount 13,977,605 538,508 14,516,113
Allpwance for impairmient lodses fﬂ?,“ﬂi 121 5.ﬂ54' !Eﬂ?.‘ﬂﬂl
Net amaunt 13,644, 695 323,454 13,868,148
Personal Loans and advances As at 31 Decembor 2023
Stage 1 &
Stage | Stage
12 months ECL  Lifetime ECL Total
Cradit risk grade
Low 7,920,111 34,736 7,964,848
Medium - T4.458 T4.458
High = 63,204 69,204
Gross carrying amount T.930,111 168397 8,098 508
Allowanes Tor impairment losses {171,622) (63.269) (Z234,891)
Net amount 7,758,489 106,128 7,863,617
Corporate loans and advances At 31 Deormberaid
Stage 1l &
Stage 1 Stage 10
12 months ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Credit risk grade
Low 11,726,113 21,104 11,747,217
Medium - 211,587 211,587
ng_h. - 22 1_,9‘92 221,992
Gross carrying amaount 11,726,113 454,683 12,180,796
ANowrance for idpalent osies (377,699) 186,959} 1564658
Net amaunt 11,348 414 267,734 11,616,138
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued|

44.1 Credit risk (Continwed)

Maximum exposcure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral held or ather credit

enhancements (Continued)

[l Maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and advances disclosed in credit risk levels

[Continued)
Personal Loans and advances As gt 31 December2022
Stage Il &
Stage | Seage |l
12 months ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Credit risk grade
Lo 7431204 215,819 7.457,113
Medium = 76,848 76,848
High = 45,000 45,070
Gross carrying amount 7,431,294 151,737 7,583,031
Allewance fer impairment losses | 160,093) {58,103) 1218,195]
Het amourt 7,271,201 93,634 7,354 835

i} Maximurm expesene to credit risk for debl instrument investments at amartized cost disclosed in

eredit risk levels

As at 31 December 2023

Stage Il &
Stage | Stage I
R 12 menthe ECL  Lifetime ECL Total
Credit risk grade
Loy 5,476,120 - B.476,120
Medivim - 368 368
High - 1,309 1,308
Gross carrying amount 3,‘?5\,1 20 1,57? 3,47?,?!?
Allowance for impalrment losses (13,253) {1,289} [14,542)
Ner amount B, 462 86T B8 8 463 255

34 @raneny

453/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fu Ehe ymae wnded 31 Decomber 2033

{Amounty in millons ol Renminbi, unbes athansdsestated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Credit risk {Continued)

Maximum exposure to credil Fisk without taking account of any collateral held or other credit

enhancements (Continued)

i} Maximum exposure to credit risk for debt instrument Investmenis at amortized cost disclosed in

credit risk levels [Continued)

As at 31 December 20232

Stagell &

Stage 1 Stage 1
12 months ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal

Credit risk grade

Low 7,324,788 - F.324,788
Medium - Jar 347
High - 1,300 1,300
Gross Carrying amaount 7,324, THE 1,647 7,326,435
Allowanece for impairment losses (13,150) [1,285) (20,435)
Net amasunt 7,305,638 Elrd 7,306,000

{illy  Maximum exposure to eredit risk for other debt instrument investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income disclosed in credit risk levels

Az at 31 December 2023

Stage Il &
Stage | Stage I
; 12 months ECL  Lifetime ECL Total
Credit risk grade
Law 2,194,783 554 2,195,337
Medium - 331 kb
High - 17 17
Camrying amaunt 2,194,783 902 2,185,685
Asat 31 December 2023
Stage il &
Stage | Stage
12 months ECL Lifetirmie ECL Tatal
Credit risk grade
Low 1,696, 481 400 1,696,881
Medium - 507 S07
High = 17 17
Carrying amount 1,606,481 G924 1,697,405
Annuial Regart 315
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Credit risk (Continwed)

Maximum exposcure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral held or ather credit
enhancements (Continued)

(v}  Maximum exposure to credit risk for loan commitments and financlal guarantee contracts
iIs balance aftor estimated contingent liabilities. Majority of loan commitments and financial
Buarantes contracts i in Stage | with credit risk grade as “Low”,

[v} Asat 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, in its deposits with banks and other financial
Institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, and financial
assets held under resale agreements, the Group had insignificant balances with *Medium® and
“High” credit risk grade and classified as Stage |l and Stage 11 assets,

[wi] The Group has implemented specific policies and credit enhancement practices to mitigate credit
risk exposune to an acceptable level. The mast typecal practice is abtaining guarantee deposits,
collateral and guarantees. The amount and type of acceptable collateral are determined throwgh
the assessment of credit risk of borrowers or counterparties. The Group implements guidelines
on the accoptability of specific dassos of collateral and evaluation parameters,

Thir main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

_ Mortgage loams 1o retail customerns are generally collateraliced by mortgages ower
residential properties;

—  Oghar p-orpuna| lending and corparate loans and advances are primariby collateralized by
charges aver land and propertios or other atsets of the bormowers; and

—  Financial assets held under resals agreements Uransactions are primarily collateralized b'f
debt securities and bilis.

The Group monitars the market value of callateral periodically and requests for additional
eallateral in aceordance with the undedying agreement when neceaary.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)]
Loans and advances to customears
The below information does not include accrued interests of loans and advances to customers.

{1} The composition of laans and advances 1o customers by geographical areas is analyzed as
foliows:

As at 31 December
2023 2023
Amount % of total Amount % of total

Corporate loans and advances

Head Office 559,650 39 GO7.201 5.0
Yangtze River Delta 3.733,53-‘ 257 2,953 442 243
Peas] River Delta 2,038,857 141 1,645 878 135
Bohai Rim 1,983,918 13.7 1,663,666 136
Central China 2,161 883 14.9 1,784 698 14.7
Western China 3,165,050 218 2,686,130 221
Hortheastern China 468,391 3.2 407763 34
Overseas and Others 385,877 aT 410,068 34
Subtatal 14,43?.?4“ 1000 12,158 845 100.0
Personal loans and advances
Head Office 45 0.0 43 [+
Yangtze Rivor Defta 1,804,748 24 1,777,354 235
Pearl River Delta 1,643,228 20,2  1.584.312 20
Bohai Rim 1,158,539 143 1,083,299 143
Central Ching 1,458,634 181 1,308,100 173
Wieestern China 1,758,385 218 1,561,455 20,7
Northeastern China 235,634 2] 226,719 30
Overseas and Others 16,614 0.2 16,779 0.2
Subtotal B,076&,529 1000 7,562,061 100.0
Gross loans and advances
1o Eaurstomiers 22 564,269 19,720,907
Annusl Regar §17
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers [Continued)

(3} The compasition of loans and advances to custamers by industry is analyzed as follows:

As at 31 December

2023

Amount % of total

2022

Amount % of toral

_Earpgr.“n- lpans and advances
Transportatian, logistics and

posial services 2,736,603 18.9 2,386,103 19.8
Manulaciuring 2,499,350 1T.3 2107478 17.3
Leasing and commarcial services 2,148,952 148 1,763,094 14.5
Production and supply of power,

heat, gas and water 1,487,779 103 1,184,206 9.7
Real pstate 918,851 63 R91.470 73
Water, environmeant and

public utilithes managerment 1,145,331 79 B74,684 1.2
Retall and wholesale 1,131,128 T8 B27,723 68
Finance 968,329 &7 928,185 76
Construction 496,062 14 261,175 3.0
Pining 283,272 2.0 223,745 148
Others B72,083 4.8 605,583 5.0

Subtatal 14,487,740 100.0 12 158 B46 100.0
Personal loans and advances
Residentinl martgage 5.170,827 64.0 5,346,608 0.7
Personal busingss 746,818 22 577.522 76
Personal consumption A56,018 a4 209,036 28
Credit cards T00,031 BT 647,651 B.6
Others 1,102 834 13.7 781,244 10.3
Subtotal B,078,529 1000 7.562,061 100.0
Gross loans and advances
Loy ELSTEMErs 22 564,269 19,720,907
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
44 FINAHNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances ta customers [Continred)

(3} The composition of laans and advances to customers by contractual maturity and securily type is

analyzed as Tollows:
31 December 2023
Less than 1-5 Over &
I— _dyear  years = years = Total
Unsecured loans 4,082,548 1,908,519 2,597 474  B,588,541
Guaranteed loans 810,938 613,035 1,482,090 2916,064
Loans secured by mortgages 1.618,549 TiS402 E6,265124 8,619,075
Fledged loans 365,530 137,767 1,937,292 2,440,589
Tatal GBTT.566 3394721 12291980 22564269
31 December 2022
Less than 1=5 Ower 5§
1 yaar yaars years Tatal
Unsecured loans 3.530,142 1,210,988 2,121,511 6,862,641
Guaranteed leans 737,408 525,599 1,036,344 2,280,351
Loans secured by mongages 1,412,521 589,521 6,297,040 8,299,082
PFledged loans 280,826 132,282 1,855,725 2,268,833
Total 5,950,897 2,459,390 11,310,620 19,720,907
(#)  Owerdus loans (1)
31 December2023
Overdus Dwverdus Overdus
Overdus  Overdue 9 to 3E1days over
1-30 doys 31-30 days 360days to3Jyears  Jyears  Total
Unsecurad laans 11,473 8,363 21,778 8,247 4,158 E5.007
Guaranteed loans 4,029 1,201 8,065 11,702 1,295 26,292
Leans secured by
martgages 45,465 36,278 39,491 27138 5798 185171
Flodged loans 2,146 1,083 1,440 2,966 427 8,060
Tatal 64,112 46,91E 70,776 51,082 11,676 244,630
31 December 2022
Crverdue Cvordue Cverdue
Owerdue Owerdie a1 ta 361 days avef
1-30days 31-90days 360 days  to 3 years 3 years Taotal
Unsecured loans 11,058 6,758 14,117 6,548 3,695 42,176
Guaranteed loans 11,931 3978 6,073 9,263 1,141 32,386
Loans secured by
mortgages 38,066 30,456 31,125 24,364 B,450 130,521
Pledged loans 822 23 3.189 2,389 1,133 1756
Total 61,877 41,455 54,504 42,5684 12,419 212,839

i When either loon principal or inderest is post due by one doy (indlusive] in any period, the whaile loon
5 clrasdfied 68 overdue e
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
241 Credit risk {Continued)
Loans and advances to customers [Continued)
(5) Credit quality of loans and advances 1o cuslomers

Within the credit-impaired loans and advances, the rortions covered and not covered by
collaterals held are as follows:

— Az at 31 December
2023 022
Partion covercd 188,740 161,691
Portion not covered 112,020 109,371
Total 300,760 271,062

(6) Madification af contractual cash flaws

A modilication of re-negoliation of a contract between the Group and a counterparly may result
in @ change to the contractual cash flows without resulting in the derecognition of the financial
assets. Such restructuring activitles include extended payment term arfangements, repayment
schedule modifications and changes to the Interest settlement method. The risk of default of
such assets after modification & assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under
the original terms at Initial recognition, when the modification ts not substantial and so does
not result in derecognition of the orlginal asset. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset
is recalculated and the related gain or loss is recognized in profit and loss. The gross carrying
amount of the financial asset s determined based on the present value of the renegotiated orF
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The Group monitors the subsequent performance of modified assets, If the Group determines
that the credit risk has significantly Improved after modified, the iImpalrment allowance of these
assets will be measured on the basis of 12 months ECL instead of the lifetime ECL.

(7} Rescheduled Loans

According to the Rules on Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks |ssued by
the NFRA and the People’s Bank of China, which came into force on 1 July 2023, Rescheduled
loans refer to the loans provided by the Group in response to the financlal difficulties of the
borrower, aimed at fadlitating the borrower in repaying debis, imvolving favourable adjustments
to the loan contracts for the benefit the bormwers, or providing refinancing for the borrower's
existing loans, including rollover or additional debt financing. Rescheduled loans and advances of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB&4,525 million,

(8] Debt-for-aquity swaps of bankruptcy rearganization
During the year ended 31 December 3023, as a result of debt-for-equity swaps of bankruptocy
reafganization, the Group recognized ordinary shares with a fair value of RMB3,299 million (year

ended 31 December 2022: RMB544 million}. The loss associated with the debt-for-equity swaps
of bankruptcy reorganization was not significant,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments
Credit quality of debt instruments

(1) Analysis of the expected credit loss stages of debt instrument imvestments st amostived cost
and ather debt instrument investments af fair value through ather comprehensive income were
disclosed in Notes IV18.2 and 183, respectively.

{2} Debt instrurments analyzed by credit rating

The Group adepts a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt instruments
portfalio held. The Group clacsified the eredit risk levels of finoncial assets measured by ECL into
“Low® |eredit risk In good condithon), “Medium® (Increased credit risk), and “High® (credit risk
In severe condition), based an the quality of assets. The credit risk level is used for the purpose
of the Group's Internal credit risk management. “Low™ refers to assets with good credit quality.
There is no sufflicient reason to doubt that the assets are not expected to fullill its contractual
obdigation to repay or if there are any other behaviors breaching the debt eontracts that wauld
significantly impact the repayment of debt according to contract terme.  “Mediem®  refers (o
assets facing obvious negative factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-
repayment behaviors. “High® refers to non-repayment according to the debt contract terms, or
other behaviors breaching the debt contracts and having significant impact on the repayment of
debt according Lo contract berms.

The camrying amounts of debt Instruments investments at amortized cost and other debt
Instrument investments at fair value through other comprehensive income analyzed by their
credit rating as at the end of the reporting period are as follows i}

31 December 2023

Credit grade Neto Low Medium High Total
Debt securities issued by
— Governments 5,804 528 - - 6,504,528
= Public sactor and
qussi-gavarnments 2,240,058 - = 2,240,058
— Financial institutions B85 3590 - - 865,390
— Carporales (i) 184,608 i | 17 184,956
Special government band 94,106 - - 94,106
Receivable tram the MOF 340,595 - - 340,595
Others 24,919 I6E 20 256,307
Total 10,658,204 699 a7 10,658,940
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Credit risk {Continued)

Dekt instruments [Continped)

Credit quality of ¢ebt instrurments ([Continwed)

(2

Debt instrumints anabyced by credit rating [f,pntlnl:edl

31 December 2022
Credit grade Mot Low Medium High Tatal
Debt securities ssuad by
= EOvernments 5,664,931 - - 5,664,931
= Pubfic sector and
quask-governments 2,060,235 - - 060,235
- Fimanclal institutions &00.420 - = &00,420
— Corporates (i) 229,401 507 17 175,925
Special government bond 94,114 - - 4,114
Recolvable fromthe MOF 333,078 - - 333.078
Others 20,340 347 15 20,702
Total 9,002,519 254 32 9,003 405

(il The ratings above were internal ratings obtained from the Group, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss were not Included in the credit grade table as at 31 December

2023 and 31 December 2022,

{8 As at 31 December 2023, the ratings of super short-téerm commercial papers of the
Group amounted to RMB2.409 milion (31 December 2022: AMBES millien} included in
corporate bonds above wede bazed on issuer rating Tor this eredit rick anabysis.

44.2 Liquidity risk

Liguildity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations that are
settled by delivering cash or anather financial asset.

The Growp's Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its liquidsty risk through:

Optimizing asset and llabllity structure;

Maintaining stability of deposit base;

Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate liquid asset position;

Maintaining an efficsent internal funds transfer mechanism within the Group; and

Performing stress tosting on a regular basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAWNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the remoining contractual maturity of finercial assets and financial liabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financis assets and financial liabilities by remaining
contractual maturities based an the carrying amount at the end of each reporting period:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT [Continued)
442 Liguidity risk (Continued)]

Analysis of the remaining contractual moturity of financial assets and financial ligbilities
(Cantinued)

The tables below summarize the maturily analysis of finsncial asse1s and financial Habilities by
remaining contractual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of each reporting period:
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{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMERNT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Contineed)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets availabbe to meet obligations related to the Group's liabilities and outstanding  credit
commitmants primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and ather
financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements, In the
normal course of business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on demand or on matwrity are
expected to be retained. In addition, the Group s able to sell the other debt instrument and ather equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1o repay matured Habilithes, If necessary,

The lables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and financial
linbilithes by remadning contractual maturities at the end of each reparting period:
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Seedervamee ranzil sty
Caeih gt balamce with et basks - A - 1,188 1054 - = LENMDE  IMET
Depirits with banko. snd
LT T - WIRE e nm B 1] - - s
Flaenemss with ang ioars fo banks
red cthar Fninciel imitinusioes = - i} o e 1 B - == Bm
Fearail sneti el unded
teLi BrieTarI 1 - LAt [LE 1 14 - - = LA
A3 I, INIPOH 1) (TR e = A MM REiaN TAIA) M B = PN, e
Feznad pnes ot har s
through gt o kom - 1 2Bt o 134T TS AT H &7
Dot spanaman vt
1 inoriioed ool 142 - B’ Ay THE NI M - WAITIN
by et vsivmmest e onhe ety
Pty i S wakaf threag
other compreberioe ntore n - LU - e Ta s L] T L
Dt [l ey £ 124 L] an 1 & 1434 - wnam

Faatal roaemsaaw fraroal b L] MM IDRMEE DMGRER) RO TN MMM 1EOAEN  man

Wge-garyae trancyl Eatine
Borroesings from ceniral baeki . [ [T (SRET T . . PR T
Depenity e urks ind

uehar knangial Pnsen = RMETH)  [HEMR  (RIE [T RS [GRET] = [uEELMT)
Fapenaers fram barks e

peber fmanglal miimuters - = [LITN [RREMG(WEATH Ana [LE%) = [T
Fieancalablitins 3t b ke

thiough o o ks - [Hn [y - i) o = - |mEn
Tieardalansets 3ol undder

IepurCiae affeeest - - TR S ) . - - (MR
Duse e custiemens - IBAET  (TRMER  [LORMNT)  LERAM)  (TBODR L] - (A
et secunties e - = DETIEN [WORD (MRS AR L) = [T
et [l Rl = (NEHT LT L BT e o = (RS
Tota! ron dermativt Fruscal Eeodtie, - [RMATT  LBAINET)  [RMRTH)  TATTAMG RGN NE0AIS) - [IT I
W piton IO (MBI REMEET  TRATRH  DDEW J0EA AN LEEM  LOEM

Arniisl Report OIS

464/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yedr enied 31 Decembee 3023
[Ameunts in millions of Renminkd, unless cthersine staoed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk {Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows [Continued)

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative linancial assets and financial
liakilities by remaining eontractual maturities at the end of cach reporting peried: [Continued)

31 December 2032
On  LEwThae - ol ] =5 e

Pt e e 1 menth oty ot e L] rdmed Total
Mon-daitvatve francisl et
Carsk i B s st i - 136475 - LdE 141 - = LIl 1§90
Depost with Saiky b
oiver frasnal initon - M (¥ ] IS TLH Fik ] TAR r . R
P EeTobrrt il el S0 10 Bk
el it Truncil (egilutions - = eHE wATT 1§7552 L1 Lasl = 5kLETS
Firangial aarty hisc arder
ririald agresmensy 135 = Lisom an: (4 H - - = LIMHE
et ana] AEVaNOF B CIRiTITG Lk 1 - MLIN LML11 SMeEN SWINMA Cama R Ll
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et brrirumest imvesiments
ot amorized cont 1M - BT MEEE BOAE I8 R005E - o
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMERNT (Continued)
4.2 Liquidity risk {Continued)
Derivative cash flows
Devivatives settled on o net basis

The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's net dervative
positions based an their remaining contractual moturithes:

o WHDecemberdd2d
Lessthan i-3 312 1-6 Over
1 menth menths menths LE i 5 yaars Total
Dérivatives cettled an a net basi (26) (548) [1.443) (42) - {2,080}

31 December 2022

Lessthan 1-3 3-12 1-5 Cwver
1 manth munths minths years Syears Total
Dierivatives settled on a net basis (1,332} 4E9 1,558 G7 7= 722

Derivatives settled on a gross bosis

Tha tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross dernative
pasitions based on their remaining contractual maturities:

o O1December 2y
Lessthan 1=1 12 1=5 Chver
1 manth menths menths 'LE 3 B yaars Total

Derivatives settled on a gross basis

— Cash inflow 468,867 MA,TE1  TELTM 52,165 526 1,613,314
_—Cashoutfiow  C(WETSE [POUR RS esea e D
Total (3,678} {885) {185] 2,373 164 {2,011])

31 December 2032
Lessthan 1-3 -12 1-5 Over
1 manth muonths months years Syears Total
Darivatives settlod on a gross basis

— Cash inflaw 216,726 271,243 469,123 296,445 36,192 1,290,729

— Cash outflow [229,050] (272,191 (460,333} (294.755)  [(36,015) (1,201,343)
Total [2.224) 52 [209) 1,550 177 (614]
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk {Continued)
Off-balance sheet items
The off-balance sheet items primanly include loan commitments, bank acceptances, credit card
cammitments, lemners of puaramtes and guarantees nd lemers of eredit. The tables below summarize

the amounts of credit commitments by remaining maturity, Financlal gusrantees are  alio  included
below at notional amounts and based on the sarliest contractual matwrity date.

31 December 2023

Lessthan -6 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
Loan e ibments 100,012 108 100 fE;?;EE 365 84T
Bank acceptances 1,024,150 - - 1,024,150
Credit card commitments 873,029 = = 873,025
Letters of guarantes and guarantees 177,954 174,552 21,408 T3S
Letbers of eredit 196,217 22,267 260 218,824
Total 2,371,382 304,909 179,494 2,855,TES
31 Decombarr 2022
Less than 1-5 Over
1 year YEars 5 WEars Total
Loan commitments 129,074 125,563 161,004 15541
Bank acceptances 02,237 - - 702,237
Cradit card commitments 797,218 - - 797,219
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 155951 156,531 16,938 329,420
Letbers of credit 157,063 10,448 365 167,876
Total 1,941,544 292,542 178,307 2,412,393

44.3 Market risk

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from changes in market rates of Interest and
foreign exchange, as well as commodity and equity prices. Market risk arises from both the Group's
proprietary positions and oustomer driven transactions, in both cases related 1o on-and off-balance
sheet activities.

The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk through corporate, personal banking and treasury
operations. Interest rate risk ks Inherent in many of the Group's businesses and this  situation s

comman amang large banks. 1 fundamentably arises through mismatches between the maturity and re-
pricing dates of interest-earning assets and Interest-bearing abilities.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Maorket risk {Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk is the potential loss related to changes in fofreign exchange rates affecting
the translation of foreign currency denominated sssets and liabilities. The risk of loss results from
movements in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Group ks also esposed to commodity risk, primarily related 1o gold and other precious metals. The
risk of loss results from movements in commodity price. The Group manages the risk related to gold
price together with foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group has determined that the levels of market risk related o changes in equity prices and
commodity prices other than gold, with respect to the related exposures in (15 trading and Investment
portfolios, are immaterial,

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of determining the
levels of regulatory capital required related to market risk, the Group segregates assets and liabifities,
both on-and off-balance sheet, into elther the trading book or banking book. The trading book i
comprised of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or risk hedging. Any
other positions are incduded in the banking book.

Market Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group manages market risk In the trading book through methodologies that incude Value at
Risk [VaR), monitoring and management of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration analysls,
exposure analysks and stress testing.

Based on changes In the external market and  business operstions, the Group
formulates annual financial market business risk management strategy, and further darifies the
admission standards and specific management requirements o be followed for bond trading and
derivatives trading. The Group establishes market risk exposure limits, and uses the limit indicator
systemn with Wak as the core and the market risk management system to realize the measurement and
monitoring of market risk in the trading book.

The Bank has adopted an historical simulation method, with a confidence level of 99% based on
holding period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading book,
which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas branches, Based on the differences
hetween domestic and overseas markets, the Bank selected applicable parameters for model and risk
factors in grder to reflect the actual market risk levels. The Bank verified the accuracy and reliability
of market risk measurement models through data analysis, paraliel modeling, and back-testing af the
market risk measurement madels,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continued)

Market Risk Management for Trading Book [Continued)

VaR Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank
e 2023
At the end
Nate aof the yoar Bty Maximum Minimuirm
Interest rate risk w &3 102 8
Exchange rate sk [k 281 218 327 120
Commoddity risk 14 a2 42 14
Orverall Vail 249 246 M7 142
Bank
2023
AL the end
Nota  of theyear Average Maximum Minimum
Interast rate risk a3 43 0 9
Exchange rate risk ] 110 43 ik 11
Commaddity risk 23 34 62 22
Overall VaR 138 112 116 55

(1] VaR ralated to gald i recagnized a5 a eomponent af fareign exchange rate risk.

The Bank calculates VaR for its rading book (excluding AMB foreign currency settlement contracts
with customers under relevant regulations). The Bank conducts stress testing for its irading book
guarterly. The specific areas subject to this testing include the major areas of exposure, such as bonds,
interest rate derivatives, foreign exchange derivatives and precious metal, The stfess testing uies a
range of scenarios to assess the potential impact on praf and loss,

Market Risk Management for Banking Book

The Group manages market risk related to the banking book

analyuis,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Market Risk Marmagement for Banking Book [Continued)
Iterest Rate Risk Monagement

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the adverse changes In interest rate levels and matwrity
structures will cause the economic wilue of the banking book of overall income to suffer losses.
The Bank's book interest rote risk mainly comes from the mismateh of maturity er repricing periods
of interest-sensitive assets and liabdities in the Bank's book and the inconsistent changes in the
benchmark interest rate on which assets and liabilivies are based,

Since the People's Bank of China's RMB Loan Prime Rate [LPR) reform, the Bank has implemented
relevant policles bn accordance with regulatary requitements, promoted business system transformation,
modified system loan contracts, improved internal and external nterest rate pricing mechanisms,
strengthened stafl training for branches, comprehensively promoted LPR applications, and hasically
realized the entire system and the entire process of loan pricing application of LPR pricing. After the
People’s Bank of China reforms LPR, the connection between the benchmark interest rate on loans
and the market interest rate will be closer, and the frequency and amplitude of volatility will inerease
relatively. To this end, the Bank strengthened the monitaring and prejudgment of the external interest
rate ervironment, adjusted internal and external pricing strategles In a timely manner, optimized the asset
and liability product structure and maturity structure, and proactively adjusted the risk structure to reduce
the economic walue and overall impact of interest rate changes and the adverse impact of earnings.
Dwring the reporting period, the Bank's |nterest rate risk level was generally stable, and all quola
indicators were controlled within the scope of regulatory requirements and managemant objectives.

Forelgn Exchange Rate Risk Monogement

Forelgn exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of forelgn currency denominated assets and
liabilities, and the potential loss related to changes in forelgn exchange rates, which largely arises
through operational activities.

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange rate risk  expasure,
manages the mismatch of foreign currency derominated assets and liabilities to effectively manage
foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable lmits.

Market Risk Exposure Limit Management

Market risk exposure limits of the Group are classified as  either  directive  imits  or  indicative  lmits,
inchuding position limits, stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing limits,

The Group i committed to continuows improvement of its market risk cxposure limit management,
Tha Group establishes exposure limits reflocting its risk appetite and contineously refines the
categorization of market risk exposure limits. Further, it regularly monitors, reports, refines, and
mplements improvermants to the market risk exposure limit process.

Ferelgn exchange rate risk

The Group primarily eonducts its business activities in RMB, with eertain transactions denominated in
UsSD, HED and, to a lesser extent, other currenclies.

di2 Memeeny

470/524



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fise B ywar woded 31 Degormber 2003
dAmounLs in milkans ol Renminhi, urless athorwice soatod|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Contiued)

Thie compasition of all financial assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period analyzed by

currency |5 as follows:

31 Decomber 2023
Crthar
ush HED  cumencies
[RME [k [RNE
RME  eguivalent]  equivala iratent Todal
€ash and balances with central banks LHITEES 5481 ug ’ﬂ'if; I9EET
Depasits with banks and
ather finaneisl institutions B62.426 M6 3,904 EaEN 1,080,078
PMacements with and loans to banks
and other financial institutions 213,873 176,696 51847 13665 E1E,181
Derivative inarsial assets 16,718 2716 2,648 269 HAETY
Finandial asseqs hsld
under resale agreements 1,808,558 - - - 1,808,569
Loans and acvances to customers 1,180,8T1 BT, 196 &0,6ES 105130 11,731,766
Finangial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 528,966 16,633 1,453 1,388 B4T 407
Debil instrument invesLments sl
amortized cost 8,326 B08 117,301 14 666 6,70 8483265
Oaher debt instrument and other equity
Ireestments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income 181,112 267,247 11,189 65 603 2,203,061
Dther financial assets 129,292 10,424 2,470 1,677 143563
Total financa! assets 37816073 1,066 550 158,238 HOEIE M4 8TE
Bosroavings fram eentral banks (1,128,043) - - (1,020) 1,127 06%
Deposits iram banks and
other financial institutions (35TT418) (B0,430) [23,448) [2,20€) (3663437
Facoments from banks and
ather financial institutions {68,192) (204,450} {56,710} 2,80 (352,290
Finangial Rabilithes. at fair vaiug through
profit or loss {12278) - {321} - 112,587
Derivative finardial liakiftes {20, 395) {2,318} {1,507} (/608 {27,817
Financial assets sold
under repurchase ngreements (T.218) (B3,854) - 3,651 {100,521)
Due o customers [TE.200.270) [4873,586) [45,B42) {168ETE) (26, B5A 46E
Debl securities sued (1,336,361) [231,631) (34,00} [B487T] (1295821
Other financlal llabMties (199638  (17.644) LA {i4)  (vsneey)
Total financial kabilitios (36,186.804)  (1,073.300) [163,001) (254 B5%)  |36,RGR 174
Net on-balance sheet position 2,745,289 (16,320} 14, T16) 56070 2783704
Met notional amaunt of derivatives 132,838 10,198 28,916 [60,272) 119673
Loan commitments and financial
guarantes contracts 2,680,632 27262 11,818 44083  2B6ETES
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continued)]

Foreign exchange rate risk [Continuea)

The composition of all fnancial assets and kabilities at the end of cach reporting period analyzed by
currency is as follows: (Continued)

“31 December 2012
Other
uso HKD cureneies
|RiviB |RME {RME
EMB pqurialent| equivalant]  egusalent) Total
Cash and balances with central banks 2451138 61,050 1493 33348 2,545,130
Deposits with banks and
ather lirancial indtitutions 556,411 40 A%6 3514 054 G30,885
Placements with and loans to banks
and ather financlal Institutions 126,596 201,279 48,943 13512 500,330
Derivative financiad assets 2433 ERLY) 1,466 1574 TS
Financial assets held
under resale agreements 1172087 - - = 1,172,187
Lisand and advances to custesmers 18,512,313 110,569 58,962 89129 18,580,971
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 509,877 10,355 T3 1,032 522,067
Dedbt instrument investments at
amartized cost 7,165,085 120,139 4,216 12,558 7,306,000
Other debt instrument and other equity
Investments at fair value through
ather camprehensive income 1,393,133 126,114 6,924 65,635 1,702,106
Caher financial assets BO.450 3180 1,656 1130 §7.356
Total financial assets 32,093,585 477,354 140,967 263433 148178
Borrowings from central banks (=3 455} - - {1,EEL] {a01,115)
Deposits fram banks and
ather firancizl instiutsons (2390553} |30,549| |26, 589] {11,087] [2.459,178)
Placements from banks and
ather firancial institutions [T8.693) {190, 569) (a0, 088) {23,005) (333,755)
Financeald Eabilitas at fair value through
predit o lass [12,243) - |84 - {12,287)
Derivative financial leabilities [23.656) [2.083] 12,009) {3.248] (31.004)
Financiad ansets sobd
unider repurchase agreements |11,855) |23 571 - (B,253] (43, 779)
Due to customers [24.4615621) [581.718) (30,548 (46,754]  [15.120.040)
Debit securities issued [1.558.352) (153518} (20.772) (35.458)  [1.B69.308)
Crher Rinancial Rabiinies | 165,085) 115,017 12,044 (8,243 (183,393)
Tl financial lishilities [2o.602514) (1,099,235 {122,500 {130,705]  [30,954,956)
Nt an-balanes ihoel poadrtion 2,497 471 121, BEL) 1B 465 132728 152658321
Nt netinnal amaunt of deridathies 14E 406 119,764 £,035 1120,354] 150,802
Loan cammitments and financial
RBuaranies conjracts 2,149,201 213,236 13193 37653 2412303
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk {Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk (Contiaued)
The table below indicates the potental effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income
arding from a 5% appréciation or depreciation of RMB spot and forward foreign exchange rates

against o basket of all other currencies on the net positions of loreign currency monetary assets and
Labilities and derivative instruments in the consolidated statement of financial pasition af the Group.

M Decomber2023 31 December2022

Qther Other

Prefit  comprehonsive Prodit comprehense

before tax inseme befare tax incame

5% approciation (1,368) 341 [2,265) 639
5% depreciation 1.368 [{341) 2,265 (B2

The effect on profit befere tax and other comprehensive income is  cakulated bawed on  the
assumpton that the Group's forelgn currency sensitive exposures and foreign currency derivative
Instrumants net position at the end of cach reporting perlod remain unchanged. The Group mitigates
Its foreign exchange rate risk through active managemant of its foreign currency exposures and
the appropriate use of derivative instruments, based on management cxpectation of future foreign
currancy exchange rate movemaents. Such analysis does not take into account the correlation affect of
changes in different fareign currencies, nor any further actions that could be taken by management to
mitigate the effect of foreign exchange differences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ
from actual resulbts occurring through changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate Fisk

Ther Group's interest rate risk arises from the mismatehes between contractual maturities or re-pricing
dates af interest-generating assets and interest-bearing  Babilities, as  well a3 the inconsistent
varlations in the benchmark interest rate on which the assets and labilities are based, The Group's
interest-gonarating asscts and interest-bearing linbiities are  primarily  denominated in RMB. The
PBOC stipulated the benchmark interost rate for AMB deposits, The deposit Interest rate  floating
cailing was romoved by the PBOC with affect from 24 Docember 2015 for commarcial banks, Since 1&
August 2019, the PBOC established LPR to replace RMB benchmark interest rates for loan as a  pricing
benchmark of new loan whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on
commercial and market factors,

The Group manages its inforest rate risk by:

—  Syengthen the pre-judgment of the situation and analyze the macroeconamic factors that may
affect the LPR interest rate, the benchmark deposit interest rate and the market interest rate;

—  Strengthen strategy transmission and aplimize the repricing tedm structure of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing labilities;

—  Implement limit management to contred the impact of interest rate changes on the economic
value and overall income of banking books within the Emits.

202 | @esnemy
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Fise the ywar evdied 31 Decornbes 2003
{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk [Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-pricing date, whichever i3 earlier, of the
Graup's linancial assets and labilities a1 the end of each reparting period:

31 December 2023
Hon-
Less than 1=} kS 1-5 Over imteres!
1 montk moaths manfs years Lyears bearing Total

‘Cath and batances with central banks 16Tt - WEN - - UTAE  23n T
Depotits with hanls and

otber finangial imsiutions i1 6 70 690 16,847 - N 1A
Placermants with knd loars to hasks

el et finescial instibation 84,543 ELE0E 188 17,362 - 5% LAERLY
Derivative linancial axiety - - - - - um FLNTH]
Financial sty kerld

under resale agresments 792 408 10,303 1478 - - a2 110958
Loans and scvance B0 CUsLomErs SITROM JeE0200 11355582 vl o T ] bR L L
Financial stiets at fair walus thiough

prafit or ks EAF 56 LA wAT2 HAEM 118557 Hi a7
Debt instrument invesiments o1

amortired cos B0ATD  (iB4ie  BIATET  Z4BB 081 EOTT.O04  18OTET A3 S
Dther dobt instrumant and other equity

imiesteranis at fas walue through

ntker comprehesiive inoome 52,50 5N SREM3Y B14564 67,783 AW 2,203,051
Onher Enandal aasets - - - - - 1458 143 66N
Total financial avvets NABREIT  A3RISE  1METEM  RSSRY  EMOE0D  THOEN  39.441 T8
Borrgwangs from centrad banks (12034 T eI = - {12880)  §1,937.068)
Depasits from hanks and

wther Tirangial insiutions [LEB4EM (M2 (SOSMTT) [R2ATM) 7400 {18.208) {3A53.48T)
Placements from banks and other

financial institution 7183 (1308 (od5ed) 2673} (L] [A062)  [382.290)
Fnancisl labiities o fair value Rrough

profitor oss [B) - [521] 120%) = {11887 (12,57
Dernative firancial Lahtes - - - - - 2TETy [T AT
Firancial asiets sold

under repuIthaue agreements [H,680) 0 359] [#3,755) ¥ ¥ M8 j10a,51)
Due bo cusdomers (MATEAREN  (LTTLGED  (AASEAET)  TIRLEM) (RS0 QBT [MeRNE3
Dbt securitied Hied {ITEAAT) [BIAANT)  (T.5ER) #9051  MBITR (12904) [2I9580)
ke Eruncisl Easillies - - - - - [15EgN)  (153554)
Total financul labiities [ITAM58) (s (BM058)  [TMENT  (HILMY  (TIETER  pEASLITH
ILETESL Fate gin [TASTEIT) 1350036 65501300  (RESL3E0)  SAMAT am L
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeds endesd 31 December 3023

[Armcuns i millicns of Renminbd, unisws otheradse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

443 Market risk (Continued)

202 @ronmy

Interest rate risk [Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractusl maturity of re-pricing dme, whichever is earlier, of the

Graup's linancial assets and labilities a1 the end of each reporing perod: (Continued)

31 December }021
hoe-
L5 13 1 1-5 Dwer P
1 month manthd oy EarL §years B T

Canh and balances with central banks kit - L - - 256,54 1548 130
Bepesits with basks and

other firandial isbtutions 145,658 15507 s 6714 - 5573 (3118513
Placemants vath e loar to hamky

Bnd ether fnancial insillutions 15067 LT L 184,103 3,808 - 1781 500,330
" fi . M M - - - 0N W n
Firancial sets held

under resale agreemants 11885 E1 RE1 - - ar R
Laant and Jdvinded [0 SUTorsi. LIATEL] 1580489  ID3EE9N TH{, BB AR 03M IE%S0973
Firsncial aiets ot far ualus through

prafit o lass 4Tl s B 36,043 T paT 19318 krod 3
Dea instrument imvestments 2

armortired cou 54.22) 135,806 S0r0E8 23T A5 4110472 135,067 7306000
Other debt instrument and other ecuity

Impestrmants 3t far value threugh other

COMEreReniive noomse 67,143 115584 AT ITiETE SUEGET mAR 170106
Oeher fnanclal sty - - = - = 3% Lk
Total inancal assely EXo4 4] 15188 11233517 1,78, TeE SIMZ 5 TEE]  3ELTE
Bonrgwirgs from ceniral banks: [ T oA T 7 B - - BT {503,115}
Deposits from hanks. and

oike frandal imstutions. [LA00732) [206070)  POSTH)  (13A900) = (176580 (2.458,175}
Macements from banks and other

financial imditutions (N0 (W00254) (100007 ] (i3] [raim  fi3mE
Fnancial lubiities 38 fair valee throwgn

prefit o s - - [44] [204) * (13,035 (12,387
Derivabown fiazaral Ratuities - - - - - [31.004) 1,004
Hranoal wmis sokd

under repuichae agreements a8 {1540 [L3,154 =) - [0 43,77%)
Due b customers A 110AM) [LAIE2E0) (3BO3.BST)  [5.37E05E (3015)  PE3e0E]  [25,121,040)
Debt securities iued |S5538| (516873| {EL3, 508 ii10345) |IRE0EE) {10.614]  |1,E&5 308}
Ocher Rnancial Eabitie - - - - - (153 739) |1B!.ﬂi$l
Total financal Hablities (S0 [R3a0)  (BTILYS  [(REITOTS] [METIS) (AROLON) (3055455}
Interest rale 2@ [Ta16361 LIMTES  GITLTD  [LESSA)  4EIEEY b B 01
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fise the ywar evdied 31 Decornbes 2003
{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMERNT (Continued)
44.3 Maorket risk {Continued)
Interest rate risk [Continued)

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of a parallel upward or downward shift
of 100 basis polnts in relevant interest rale curves on the Group™s net interest income and other
comprehemsive ingome for the next twele months from the reporting date, based an the Grouwp's
poditions of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at the end of each reporting period,
This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not
reflect the potential impact of unparalieled yield curve movements.

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates
with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities held at the period end
remains unchanged, and doos not toke chonges in customer behovior, basls risk ar any prepayment
opthons on debt securithes into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in fair
value of those financial instruments dlassified as other debt instrument investments and other equity
Investments at falr wvalue through other comprehensive income held, whose falr value changes are
recorded as an element of ather comprehensive income.

31 Docamber2023 31 December 2032
L] Other [ Other
infores!  comprehensive Inkerest comiprehensive
Ingome ingema income ncome
+100 basis points (36,361) (69,135) [43.303) 159,146)
- 100 basis points 35,851 €3,135 43,303 59,146

The assumptions do not fefllect actions that might be taken wnder the Group®s capital and interest
rate risk management policy 1o mitigate changes to the Group's interest rate risk. Therelore the above
analysis may differ fram the actual situation.

In adeftion, the presentation af interest rate semitivity above B for illustration purposes anly, showing
the potential impact on net interes: income and other comprehensive income of the Group under
different parallel yield curve movements, relative to their position at peried-end, excluding  the
derivative positions.

44 4 Country Risk

Country fik regresents the risk due to changes and incidents accurred in the economy, politics and
society of 8 specific country or region, which results in the debtors in that country o region incapable
of er unwilling to pay thelr debis owed to the Bank or otherwise leads to business losses oar other
kosses to the Bank in that country orf reglon,

According to the regulatory requirements of MFRA, the Bank managed coumtry risk through tools

and approaches such as country risk rating limit approval, esposure analysis and stress testing.
bMeanwhile, we made adequate, reasaonable and prudent provision for country Fisk in accordance with

regulatory requirements,

Arniis Report HOIRIF
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr enied 31 Decembee 3023
[Ammcuns i millices of Renminkd, unlews ctheraae staced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.5 Insurance risk

The Group engages in i insurance business primarily in Chinese mainland. Insurance risk refers
to the financial impact resulting from the unespected occurrence of nsured events. These risks
are pctively managed by the Group through eflective sales management, underwriting contral,
reinsurance management and claim management. Through effective sales managemaent, the ik of mis-
selling could be reduced and the accuracy of information used for underwriting is improved. Through
underwriting contral, risk of adverse selection could be reduced and moreover differential pricing policy
based on the level of each kind of risk could be utilized, Through reinsurance, the Group's insurance
capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks could be mitigated. Effective claims management is
designed te ensure that insurance payments are contralled according te established eriteria.

Uncertainty in the estimatbon of future berefit payments and premium receipts for long-term life
Insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortolity.
The Group conducts experience analysis of mortality rate and surrender rate, in order 1o improve its
risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates.

45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Growp's capital management objectives are as follows:

maintain an adequate capital base to suppart the development of its business;
support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

allecate capital through an efficlent and risk based approach to optimize risk-adjusted retumn to
sharehalders; and

safeguard the long-term sustainability of the Group’s franchise so that it can continue to provide
sufficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakeholders.

The “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional]”™ tssued by the NFRA in 2012 includes, among other
things, requirements for minimum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for
systemically important banks, countercyclical buffer and Pillar Il capital as follows:

202 Mruneny

minimum regulatory requirements for Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio, Tier-one
Capital Adeguacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively;

capital conservation butter requires additional 2.5% of Common Equity Tier-ane Capital Adeguacy
Ratia;

additional capital surcharge for systemically important banks requires additional 1% of Common
Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio

should the megulators require countercycheal buffer wunder particular circumstances or  regulators

Impose additienal Pillar 1l capital requirements Tof specific banks, thesé requireménts shall be mat
within the specified time limits,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fise the ywar evdied 31 Decornbes 2003
{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

in Ageril 2014, the MFRA officilly approved the Group to adopt sdvanced capital munagement approach,
Within the scope of the approval, the Internal Ratings-Based spproach is adepted to Credit Risk-weighted
Agsets for both retail and non-retail risk exposures, and the Standardized approach for bath Operational Risk-
weighted Awets and Market Risk-weighted fssets, The NFRA will determine the parallel run period for the
Group, which should |xst for at least three years. During the paraliel run period, the Group should caleulate s
Capital Adeguacy Raties under the advanced apgroach and the non-advanced approach, and should confarm
to the capital Moor requirements as stipulated in the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks [Provisional]®,

In Janmuary 2017, the NFRA officially approved the Group to adopt the Internal Models approach to measure
its Market Risk-weighted Assets for qualified risk exposures.

Capital adeguacy and the wtilipation of regulatory capital are  closely monitored by the Group®s
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committes and relevant regulations
promulgated by the NFRA. Reguired information related to capital levels and utilization is fed quarterly
with the NFRA.

The Group's capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
(Prowiskonal)” issued by the NFRA as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 December 31 December

e e Hates 2023 __ 2022
Comman Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio 1) 10.72% 11.15%
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio 1) 12.87% 13.37%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11 17.14% 17.20%
Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital 2} 2,409,743 2,228.589
Deductible ltems from Common Equity

Tier-pne Capital {3} {14,803) {12,977)
Het Common Equity Tier-one Capital 2,394,940 2,215,612
additienzl Ties-one Capital 14) 480,009 440,009
Het Tier-one Capital 2,874,545 2,655,621
Tier-bwio Capital 15} 853,222 FE0,728
MNet Capltal 3,828,171 3,416,349
Risk-weighted Assets ] 22,338,076 19,862,505

Pursuant to the "Capital Rules for Commencial Banks {Provisional)”:

{11 The scope of consolidation related to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adequacy Ratios includes
Domestie Institutions, Owerseas Institutions and affiliated financlal subsidiaries specified in the
Regulation.

The Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is caleulated as Met Common Equity Tier-one
Capital divided by Risk-welghted Assets. The Tier-one Capltal Adequacy Ratio i ealculated as Net

Tiar- one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Capital adequacy Ratio is calculated as  Net
Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yede wndesd 38 Decombae: 3023
[Ameums in millions of Renminks, unless otheraime itated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {Continued)

{2}  The Group's Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital incledes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve (subject
to regulatory limitations), surplus reserve, general reserve, retained earnings, non-contralling intenests
(ko the extent permitted in the Comman Equity Tier-one Capital under the Regulation], and the
foreign currency translation reserve, ete.

{3}  The Group's Deductible ltems from Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: ather intangible aisets
{excluding land-use rights], and Common Equity Tier-one Capital Ewestments made in financial
institutions over which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory consolidation scope for
thar Capital Adequacy Ratios calculation,

{4}  The Group's Additional Tier-one Capital includes: other equity Instruments tssued and non-controlling
interests [to the extent permitted in the Additional Tier-one Capital definition uender the Regulation),

{5)  The Group's Tier-twa Capital includas: Tier-two eapital instruments and related premium (o the
extent allowed under the Regulation), excessive allowance for loan losses, and minority interests (to
the extent permitted in the Tler-two Capital definition under the Regulation),

{6)  Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-welghted Assets, Market Risk-weighted Azsets  and
Operational Risk-weighted Assets.

48 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The: majority of the Group™s assets and labilities in the consolidoted statement of financial position are
financlal assets and financial labilites. Falr value measurement of non-financial assets and non-financial
labilities does not have a material impact an the Group's finencial pesition and operations, taken as o whaole.

The Group does notl have any financial assels or linancial labilities subjecl o nod-recurring fair value
measurements for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 Decermmber 20232,

46.1 Valvation technigue, input ond process
The falr value of the Group®s financial assets and financiad labilities are determined as follows:

—  If raded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard
terr and conditions are determined with reference to guoted market bid prices and ask prices,
respectively;

— If mot traded in acthve markets, falr valves of finandal assets and financial  Habllities  are
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation technigues include the use of recent
transaction prices af the same or smilar instruments, diccounted cash flow analysis and generally
accepted pricing models.

The Group has established an independent valuation process for  financial assets  and  financial
liabilities. The Financial Accounting Department of head office establishes the valuation models fer
financial assets and financial Wahilities of head office and its branches In China and Independently
Implements the valuation on & regular basis; and the Risk Managemen) Depariment is responsitde for
validating the valuation model, the Operations Departments records the accounting for these tems,
Owverseas branches and sub-branches designate departments or personnel that are independent from
the front trading office to perform valuation in acoordance with the lecal regulatory requirements and
thedr own deparbiment settings.

The Board of Directors shall be respongible for establishing and improving the internal contral system
related to the valuation of financial instruments and approving valuation policies.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there were no significant changes in
the valuation technigues of inputs used to determinge fair value mesdurements.

202 Meaneny
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[Ammcums i milices of Renminbs, anisss otheraae stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.2 Fair volue hicrarchy

The level in which fair value measurement ts categorized is determéned by the level of the fair value
hierarchy of the lowest bevel input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement:

Level 10 fair value measurernents are those derived from quoted prices |unadjusted) in an active
market for identical assets or liabilities;

Leval 21 falr value measuraments are those derived from inguts other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabdlities, either directly or indirectly; and

Lewvel 3: fair value measurements are not based on observable morket data.

463 Financiol assets and financial labilities not measured ot fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Tha tablas below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of thoso financial assets and
fimancial liabilities not measured in the consolidated statement of financial positien at thair fair value,
Finanginl assets and fimancial liabilties for which the carrying amounts approximate fair walue, such as
balances with centrad banks, deposits with banks and other financial Institutions, placements with and
loams to banks and other financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers, receivable from the MOF, special government bond, borrowings from
central banks, deposits and placements lrom banks and other inancial nstitutions, due to cuslomers,
financial asicts fold wunder repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit issued, interbank
certificate of deposits issued and commercial papers ssued are not Included in the tables below,

31 Docomber 2023
Carrying
amount Fair value Lawel 1 Lol 2 Lowel 3
Finaneial assats
Dbl i $1ruiment invesbients ol
amartired tod1 (excheding recenable
from thie MOF and special
poverrment band) B,028,654 8,796,664 72433 B,161 482 B2ET8
Finaneial liabilites
Bands [ssued BT, 615 BZ24,341 45272 578,718 -
311 Degember 2032
Carrying
amaunt Fair vilue Laved 1 Lewel 2 Lovel 3
Fimancial azsats
Debt instrument investments at
amortited cost [eeciading receivable
Trom the MOF and special
jgovernment bond) B/A7E, 808 7,040,956 76,954 bA78.799 85,203
Finangial liabilites
Bands i vued ABT ATT 484 5R1 51,371 431,212 -

M2 @raneny
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial labiitics measured at foir value in the consolidated
statement of finoncial position

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial labilities measured in
the conselidated statement of financial position at their fair value,

31 Becember 302

LovlT— Loval2  Loweld Tahal
Derivative financinl assets . 3
— Exchange rate derivatives - 22151 - 22,151
— Interost rate dervatives - 2,602 - 2,602
— Pricious metal dervatives and othars - el - 20
Subotal - 24873 - 4873
Loans and advances to customers
— Discounted bills and forfeiting - 1,493 326 - 1.493 926
Subtatal = 1,453 925 - 1493925
Financlal imrestment
Fimancial assets at fair value through
prafit or loss
= Held for trading
Bonds 7.038 160,671 - 167 609
Precious metal contracts - 16,4487 - 16,447
Equity 7272 323 - 7,605
Fund and others BT B7T3 - 18,948
— DOther flinancial assets al lair value
through profit or loss
Rands 1,962 168,676 1,813 192,440
Equity T.403 B,563 99,340 116,206
Fund and others 418 18,458 21,332 44,200
— Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Bands m 40 - B2
Subtetal 33,022 381,800 122 485 547,407
Other debt instruments and other equity
inwestments at fair value through
ather camprehensive incame
— Dbt Instrurments
Bonds 127807 1,968 606 - 2186453
Others - 8,182 - 8192
— Equity instrumants 2,98 - 4,398 7386
Subtetal 130,776 1,967 AT8 4398 2,203,084
Tatal aisets 263,737 3878ETE 126,882 4,269,286

Annual Brgon 1023 341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets ond finoncial liobilitics measured ot fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial pesition {Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured in the
consolidated statement of financlal position at their fair value. {Continued)

31 Decomber 2023
Lewvel 1 Lovel2 Leveld Total

Financial Habkities at falr vahse through
profit or loss
Held for trading
— Financial liabilities related to precious
metals - [11,287) - (11,887)
Financial liabilities designated at fair
walise thraugh profit o lass
— Liabilitees of the controlled struttured

entities = - {530 [B30)
= Oithers - {80y - {80y
Sutatal - [12.067) {530 [12.597)
Derivative financial Habilities
— Exchange rate derivatives - (20,613) - [20,613)
— Interest rate derivatives - {1,420) - 14200
— Preciows metal detivatives and athers - {6, Ba4) - [6,884)
Subtotal = (27 B1T) - [27 81T}
DL 1o CuStamers
Due to customers measured at fair value
through profit or loss - (8,742} - {8,742}
Toitat liabdlities - (48,628) {530) [49,156)

Anniisl Repart BOIHE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
46.4 Financiol assets and financial liabilitics measured ot foir value in the conselidated

statement of financial position {Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial labilities measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, {Continuad)

31 December 2022
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Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Todad
Derivative financial assets
= Exchange rate derivatives - 26,850 = 26,850
— Interest rate dervatives - 1,512 - 1,511
= Precious metal desvatives and others - 1,353 - 1,353
Subtotal - 30,715 = 30,715
Leans ard advances Lo customens
— Discounted bills and forfeiting - 1,344,182 - 1,344,182
Subtotal . 1,344,182 - 1,344,182
Financinl investment
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Held for trading
Bonds 5,933 120,665 - 126,508
Precious metsl contracts - 17988 - 17988
Equity 5,345 445 - 5,790
Fund and others 5493 - = 5,493
= Dther financial assets atfairvalue through
prafit or loss
Baonds - 204,058 1,041 205,007
Equity 8120 12,475 91,307 111,502
Fund and athers 543 25,900 21,4496 41,935
— Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or boss
Bonds 1,210 a0 - 1.250
Subtotal 26644 381,568 113.B44 522,057
Other debr mdrumants and other eguity
invistments al fair value through other
comprehensive income
= Debt instruments
Bonds 213,030 1,473,753 - 1,6B6,832
Others - 10,583 = 10,583
= Equity instruments 1,230 - 3471 4,701
Subtoial 114,260 1,484,375 3471 1,702,106
Total assets 240,904 3,240,841 117,315 3,599,060

202 Mruneny
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets ond financial liobilitics measvred ot fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial pesition {Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair valees of the financial assets and financial liabllities measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at thelr fair value, [Continued)

31 December 2022
sSsssssss——— Ll T Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal llabilities at falr value through
profit or loss.
Hald for trading
= Financial llabilithes related to
precious metals - [12.039) - [12,0349)
Financial liabdities designated at falr value
through profit or loss
= LiabHities of the controlled
structured entities - - {248} {2a8)
Subtotal - (12,039) (248) (12,287)
Derhvative financial liabllities
= Exchange rate dervatives - (26,253) - (26,253)
= Interest rate derivatives - 1871) - 1871]
_—Dedonmisl ettt = RN < RN
Subtotal - {31,004] mi {31.004)
Due to customers
Due 1o customers measured at fair value
_through profit or loss S /. .| I N 1/t .'| B
Total liabilities - [0, 383) [248) 70,631}

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are debt
Ivestments, currency Torwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps, currency oplions, precious metal
contracts and structured depoait measured ot fair value, Fair value of debt investments denominated
in AMB is determined based wpon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing
Co,, Ltd. Fair valug of debt imvestments denominated in foreign currencies is dotormined based upon
the valuation results published by Bloambaerg, The fair value of currency forwards, currency swaps,
Interest rate swaps, currency options and structured deposit measured at fair value are caloulated by
applying discounted cash flow analysks or the Black Schales Pricing Model, The fair value of preciouws
metal contracts that are related to the Group's trading activities is determined with reference to the
relevant observable market parameters, All significant inputs are observable in the market,

Levisl 3 financial assets of the Group mainly represented unlisted equity investments. As not all of
the inputs needed (o estimate the fair value of these assets and kabilities are observable, the Group
clasdified these investrment products within Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy. The
significant unobservable inputs related to thewe assets and liabilities are thoie parameters relating to
credit risk, ligquidity and discount rate. Management has made assumptions on unobservable inputs
based an observed indicatars of impairment, significant changes in yield, external credit ratings
and comparable credit spreads, but the fair value of these underlying assets and liabalities could be
different from those disclosed.

Arniis Report HOIME
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[Amounts im millions of Renminbs, unless otheraine stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilitics measured ot fair velue in the conselidated
statement of finoncial pasition (Continued)

The recondliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and finandal Kabilities presented at fair value in
the consolidated staternent of financial position is as Tollows:

] P ]
Other debtinstrument Finaneial
Finamzial assats and alhareguity liabiltias
stiairvalug imvestmants atfair atfairvalue
through ﬂmuuumhl other through
orloss rahengiveingoma orlass
“ilanuany 2033 Wﬁ:’ﬂ,m LU B preft 24
Purcharses 443 0 (362)
Setthernents/disposals/transfer out of Level 3 [16.621) - -
Total {loss)pain recognized in
— Profit or loss [Z38) {244} 80
= (ther comprehensive Income - ma &
31 Decernber 2023 122 486 4,358 (530)
Change in wnrealized profit
or lows Tar the year
Inciuded In profit or loss
for ausety Rabilites held af
thi end ol the yeur {34) - =
2022
{ther debt irstrumant Firancial
Finantial kists and otk equity Tiabrilities
at fiinvalue Ewvestments at fair at fairvalue
through walue through ather through
R _prfitorices_ eomarehinsiv income _profit or sz
1 January 2033 SEEa1 EIFL) [T ]
Purchases 3970 k) =
Setthements/disposals/transfer out of Level 3 [19 401} 11 -
Toaal gain[loss) recognized in
— Profit or loss 434 43 134
— Dther comprehensive income - {233] -
31 Decernber 2027 113,844 347 {248}

Change in wnrealived profit or
fass for the year inthaded in
profit o¢ less for assets/llabilities held at
the end of the year 523 - -

In Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses included in profit ar loss for the year are
presented In net gain/[loss) on financial investments (Note IV 4} of the consolidoted statement of
profit or loss.

202 | @esnemy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fise the ywar evdied 31 Decornbes 2003
{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

47.1 Prafit appropriation

{1} A cash dividend at the dividend rate of 4.84% per annum related to the second tranche of
preference shares amounting to RMB1,936 milllon (tax included) in toral was approved at the
Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 31 Janvary 2024 and will be distributed on 11 March 2024,

{2} An interest at the interest rate of 3.49% per annum  related to the 2022-first tranche of
perpetual bonds of AMBS0 bilion amounting 1o RMALTA5 million in total was declared on
20 February 2024 and distributed on 22 February 2024,

{3} Pursuant to the Board of Directors” meeting on 28 March 2024, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set forth as follows:

il  An appropriation of AMB26,240 million te the statutory surplus reserve [Note IV 36);
(i an appropriation of RMBTS,629 million to the general resemve [Note IV 37}

(M} A cash dividend of AMBO0.2309 [tax Included) per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2023 based on the number of ordinary shares ssued as o
31 December 2023 totaling AMBA0.811 million (tax included) (Note v 10).

Az at 31 December 2023, the statutory surplus resenrve had been recognized as appropriation,
The ather two items will be recopgnized in the Group's financial statements after approval by
ordinary equity holders in the forthcoming Annual General Mecting.

47.2 Tier 2 capital notes issued
On & February 2024, the Bank completed the public issuance of the “Agricultural Bank of China
Limited 2024 Tier 2 Capital Motes (Series 1)° [the "Motes™) in the National interbank Bond Market.

The total armount of the Notes is RMBTO billion. The proceeds from this lssuance of the Notes will be
used to boost the Tier ¥ capital of the Bank.

47.3 Undated capital bonds issued
In March 2024, the Bank issued Agricultural Bank of China Limited 2024 Undated Additional Tier 1
Capdtal Bonds {Series 1) with the total amount of RMB40 billlon. The proceeds from the issuance of
the bonds will be wed to replenish the Bank's additional Tier 1 capital.

48 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
In aeeardance with the requirements of IFRS 17 (the “New Standasds for Insurance Contracts™), the Group
hat implemented the above standards with the transition date of 1 lanuary 2023, adjusted the presentation

af related operations, and adjusted certain comparative figures accordingly, to meat the reporting
requirements during this reparting period.

Arnis Repord HOIMP
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For the yedr enied 31 Decembee 3023
[Ammcuns i millices of Renminkd, unlews ctheraae staced)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

— Asal 31 Decombor
2023 2022
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 2,921,494 2,548,564
Deposits with banks and other financlal insttutions 1,064,822 609,195
Precious metals 54,3166 83,389
Placements with and loans to banks and othar financial
institutions 600,239 583,079
Derivative financl# assets 24,873 30,715
Financial assets held undar resale agreemaents 1,807,717 1,169,113
Loans and advances to customars 21,637,777 18,850,856
Financial investrents
Finangial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss 375,809 347,744
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 8,432,030 7267567
Other debst instrument and other eguity invesiments
at fair value threugh ether comprehensive income 2106474 1,650,807
Imwpstment in subsidiaries 61,621 51,521
Inwestrmient in associated and joint ventures 2,151 2,105
Property and equipment 142,045 141,159
Deferred tax assels 159,899 14E,699
Other assets 188,308 131,534
Total assoets 39,568,616 33,665,047
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 1,127.068 901,077
Depasits from banks and ather financial institutions 3,859,398 2A75 046
Placements from banks and other linancial institutiens 293,716 263,009
Financial liabllitles at falr value through profit or loss 12,067 12,009
Derivativa financlal liabilities 27817 31,004
Financial assets sold under ropurchase agroements 96,346 15,484
Due 1o customers 28,897,264 25,120,347
Dividends payable - 1,536
Debt securities issued 2,261,587 1,828,305
Other liabdities 323,634 350,094
Total liabilities 36 697 906 31,018,341

202 Mruneny
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fise the ywar evdied 31 Decornbes 2003
{AmgunLs in mileans of Ronminbi, unless othersioestated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK (Continued)

As at 31 December

2023 022

Equity
Ordinary shares 345 583 340,983
Other equity instruments A4B0. 000 440,000
Preference shares 80,000 ED, 000
Perpetusl bonds 400000 360,000
Capital reserve 173,226 173,227
Other comprehensive income 42,846 37,409
Surplus resense 271,475 245,235
General reserde 448,479 381,222
Retained earnings 1,004,700 1,019,630
Total equity 2,860,709 2,646,706
Total equity and liabilities 39,558,615 33,665,047

Approved and authoriped for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024,

Chaérman Executive Directar

Arnus Repord HOIHD
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

Oiber
Oetimary  (fbar eguity Captal ompirhernoe Surpin Gerenl Retaingd
e itweess oo lcome v s g T
At 31 Deember 2927 Ham LT g bIE ] 5 o LEAER  1EMLTTE
Prodfit o thee yae - - - - - - I am
Dthet comprebeniig income - - - B - - - §437
Teral eormpeehenthe acome for |he year - - - Ly - - iE ] L
Caital coatribgtion from ety sodery - an ] - - - - nm
Agprogriaion B surples reserve - - - - B - (26,288 -
Agproprinsion b genecaiensroe - - - - - [T 2) [§7,25%) -
Dividerah paid to ordirary equity halders - o = o . = (LA
Diiderch paie 10 ottty iirumesty
haidery - - - - . = IS5 sl
A5 31 Devember 2623 a8 0 TN ("] Mt LY LIMTM DTS
Dt
Dt requy Opd v Sorshn [ Utared
_____ . b L e e e g i I
Bt 31 Deoemier 3021 5558 ol I¥ el 55 FL 13,750
Frofit for e e . - - - - nin 1086
Dther compretemive income - - - ary - - im
Tocal cormpeehenive income for the year - - - 4T - - il ] pLTh i
Catal contrbation from eguty soidens. = L] [L1] - - = = 1L
Agpraprisiion b wiples ieseren - - - - -t - 150 -
Mppropriaion ko penecal ressree: - - - - ki ik =
Dividends pad 10 ordirary equity halder: - ] = - = Primg RN
Tinberah pae I Sibeet gty i brirmesty
Boigers - N - - - - 1715 {5735
Dthen - - I - - = L1} [{L1]
As 2 31 December 2030 3534 e [LE k] 148 15,138 rm LISEN 2SR
202 [ Demwewy
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2023 12 31
3,974
42
2023 12 31
1
3
2023 2023 2023 2023
3 A 6 30 9 30 12 31
124.5% 126.5% 126.9% 123.9%
3
2022 2022 2022 2022
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
125.6% 135.5% 132.0% 132.1%
NFRA

GAAP
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1,130,419 160,483 316,031 1,606,933
(1,161,549) (161,577) (253171)  (L.576,297)
1,117,602 71,148 212,257 1,401,007
(1,029,953) (45,004) (275451)  (1,350,408)
(82,231) ! 2,922 (78,538)
(25,712) 25,821 2,588 2,697
(3.884) 2,022 (3,586) (5.448)
1,045,044 141,948 263,427 1,450,419
(1,143,263) (120,483) (127,830)  (1,391,576)
956,920 31,985 76,449 1,065,354
(827,280) (27,049) (196,765)  (1,051,094)
(9,876) (78) (9,954)
21,545 26,401 15,203 63,149
4,162 3,725 4,138 12,025

12 31

2023 2022

111,027 103,332
30,518 29,203
40,257 25,301
62,728 55,003
244,530 212,839
0.48% 0.52%
0.14% 0.15%
0.18% 0.13%
0.28% 0.28%
1.08% 1.08%
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2023 2022
44,525 19,625
5,845 1,147
0.03% 0.01%
2023 7 1 NFRA
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
16.75 16.06 18.06 21.01 21.01
14.86 13.66 15.78 17.93 18.84
15.79 15.46 17.03 19.45 19.86
15.60 15.81 18.05 19.10 19.92
100
2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
12 1 2 3 4 5
20.78 20.78 21.10 21.23 22.10 21.99
19.92 19.89 20.56 20.59 21.21 21.48
20.25 20.47 20.92 20.98 21.51 21.81
100
21.92 2024 5 31
100
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20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
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2009
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2009
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Unaudited supplementary financial information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 1 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code”), together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Unaudited supplementary financial information
For the year ended 31 December 2023
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note IIl 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note |V 44.1 Credit risk” to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group uses an expected credit loss
(“ECL") model to measure the loss allowance

Our audit procedures to assess ECL for
loans and advances to customers included

for loans and advances to customers in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard 9, Financial instruments.

the following:

with the assistance of KPMG’s IT
specialists, understanding and assessing
the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of
loans and advances to customers, the
credit risk staging process and the
measurement of ECL for loans and
advances to customers.

The determination of loss allowance for loans
and advances to customers using the
expected credit loss model is subject to the
application of a number of key parameters
and assumptions, including the credit risk
staging, probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors.
Extensive management judgement is
involved in the selection of those parameters
and the application of the assumptions.

with the assistance of KPMG's financial
risk specialists, assessing the
appropriateness of the ECL model in
determining loss allowances and the
appropriateness of the key parameters
and assumptions in the model, which
included credit risk staging, probability of
default, loss given default, exposure at
default, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustments, and
assessing the appropriateness of related
key management judgement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note IIl 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In particular, the determination of the loss
allowance is heavily dependent on the
external macro environment and the Group’s
internal credit risk management strategy. The
ECL for corporate loans and advances are
derived from estimates including the
historical losses, internal and external credit
grading and other adjustment factors. The
ECL for personal loans and advances are
derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration
historical overdue data, the historical loss
experience for personal loans and other
adjustment factors.

for key parameters involving judgement,
critically assessing input parameters by
seeking evidence from external sources
and comparing to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part
of these procedures, we assessed
management’s revisions to estimates
and input parameters by comparing with
prior period and considered the
consistency of judgement.

comparing the macroeconomic forward-
looking information used in the model
with market information to assess
whether they were aligned with market
and economic development.

assessing the completeness and
accuracy of data used in the ECL model.
For key internal data, we compared the
total balance of the loans and advances’
list used by management to assess the
ECL with the general ledger to check the
completeness of the data. We also
selected samples to compare individual
loan and advance information with the
underlying agreements and other related
documentation, to check the accuracy of
the data and samples, to check the
accuracy of external data by comparing
them with public resources.
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Unaudited supplementary financial information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

consolidated financial statements.

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note 1l 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note IIl 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note 1V 44.1 Credit risk” to the

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management also exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss given default
based on a range of factors. These include
the financial situation of the borrower, the
security type, the seniority of the claim, the
recoverable amount of collateral, and other
repayment sources of the borrower.
Management refers to valuation reports of
collateral issued by qualified third party
valuers and considers the influence of
various factors including the market price,
status and use when assessing the value of
collaterals. The enforceability, timing and
means of realisation of collateral can also
have an impact on the recoverable amount of
collateral.

for key parameters used in the ECL
model which were derived from system-
generated internal data, assessing the
accuracy of input data by comparing the
input data with original documents on a
sample basis. In addition, we involved
KPMG's IT specialists to assess the
logics and compilation of the loans and
advances’ overdue information on a
sample basis.

evaluating the reasonableness of
management’s assessment on whether
the credit risk of the loan and advance
has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether the
loan and advance is credit-impaired by
selecting risk-based samples. We
analyzed the portfolio by industry sector
to select samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic
situation with reference to other
borrowers with potential credit risk. For
selected samples, we checked loan
overdue information, making enquiries of
the credit managers about the borrowers
" business operations, checking
borrowers’ financial information and
researching market information about
borrowers’ businesses, to check the
credit risk status of the borrower, and the
reasonableness of the loans’ credit risk
stage.
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(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)
Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note IIl 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note |V 44.1 Credit risk” to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
We identified the measurement of ECL of evaluating the reasonableness of loss
loans and advances to customers as a key given default for selected samples of
audit matter because of the inherent corporate loans and advances to
uncertainty and management judgement customers that are credit-impaired, by
involved and because of its significance to checking the financial situation of the
the financial results and capital of the Group. borrower, the security type, the seniority

of the claim, the recoverable amount of
collateral, and other repayment sources
of the borrower. Evaluating management
's assessment of the value of any
collateral, by comparison with evaluation
result based on the category, status, use
of the collateral and market prices. For
valuation reports of collateral issued by
qualified third party, we evaluated the
competence, professional quality and
objectivity of the external appraiser. We
also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, assessed the
viability of the Group’s recovery plans;
based on the above work, we selected
samples and assessed the accuracy of
calculation for loans and advances’
credit losses by using the ECL model.
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(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note IIl 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note |V 44.1 Credit risk” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

performing retrospective review of
expected credit loss model components
and significant assumptions, to back-test
past estimates element against actual
outcomes, and assess whether the
results indicate possible management
bias on loss estimation.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to expected credit losses for
loans and advances against prevailing
accounting standards.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note 1l 2 Consolidation, Note 11l 5 Consolidation of
structured entities”, and “Note IV 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter

Structured entities are generally created to
achieve a narrow and well defined objective
with restrictions around their ongoing
activities.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures to assess the
measurement of interests in and
consolidation of structured entities included
the following:

The Group may acquire an ownership
interest in a structured entity, through
initiating, investing or retaining shares in a
Wealth Management Products (“WMPs"),

assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key

internal controls of financial reporting
over measurement of interests in and

securitization products, funds, trust consolidation of structured entities.
investment plans, debt investment plans and
asset management plans. The Group may
also retain partial interests in derecognized
assets due to guarantees or securitization

structures.

selecting significant structured entities of
each key product type and performing
the following procedures:

inspecting the related contracts,
internal establishment documents and
information disclosed to the investors
to understand the purpose of the
establishment of the structured entity
and the involvement the Group has
with the structured entity and to
assess management’s judgement
over whether the Group has the
ability to exercise power over the
structured entity;

inspecting the risk and reward
structure of the structured entity,
including any capital or return
guarantee, provision of liquidity
support, commission paid and
distribution of the returns, to assess
management’s judgement as to the
exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the Group’s involvement in such
an entity;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 2 Consolidation, Note Il 5 Consolidation of
structured entities”, and “Note 1V 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In determining whether the Group retains any
partial interests in a structured entity or
should consolidate a structured entity,
management is required to consider the
power it possesses, its exposure to variable
returns, and its ability to use its power to
affect returns. These factors are not purely
guantitative and need to be considered
collectively in the overall substance of the
transactions.

We identified the recognition of interests in
and consolidation of structured entities as a
key audit matter because of the complex
nature of certain of these structured entities
and because of the judgement exercised by
management in the qualitative assessment of
the terms and the nature of each entity.

inspecting management’s analysis of
the structured entity, including
gualitative analysis and the
calculation of the magnitude and
variability associated with the Group’s
economic interests in the structured
entity, to assess management’s
judgement over the Group’s ability to
affect its own returns from the
structured entity;

assessing management’s judgement
over whether the structured entity
should be consolidated or not.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to the measurement of interests
in and consolidation of structured entities
against prevailing accounting standards.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note Il 3 Fair value
of financial instruments”, and “Note 1V 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

Financial instruments carried at fair value
account for a significant part of the Group’s
assets and liabilities. The fair value
adjustments of financial instruments may
impact either the profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures to assess
measurement of financial instruments’ fair
value included the following:

assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting

The valuation of the Group’s financial over the model building, model

instruments, held at fair value, is based on a
combination of market data and valuation
models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are
obtained from readily available data, in
particular for level 1 and level 2 financial
instruments in the fair value hierarchy, the
valuation models for which use quoted
market prices and observable inputs,
respectively. Where one or more significant
unobservable inputs, such as credit risk,
liquidity and discount rate, are involved in the
valuation techniques, as in the case of level 3
financial instruments, then estimates need to
be developed which can involve extensive
management judgements.

validation, independent valuation and
front office and back office
reconciliations for financial instruments.

assessing the level 1 fair value of
financial instruments, on a sample basis,
by comparing the fair value applied by
the Group with publicly available market
data.
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(continued)
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Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note Il 3 Fair value
of financial instruments”, and “Note 1V 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified measurement of financial
instruments’ fair value as a key audit matter
because of the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value are material to the
Group and the degree of complexity involved
in the valuation techniques and the degree of
judgement exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation
models.

for level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments, on a sample basis,
involving KPMG's valuation specialists
to assess whether the valuation method
selected is appropriate with reference to
the prevailing accounting standards. Our
procedures included: developing parallel
models, obtaining inputs independently
and verifying the inputs; assessing the
appropriate application of fair value
adjustment that form an integral part of
fair value, by inquiring of management
about any changes in the fair value
adjustment methodologies and
assessing the appropriateness of the
inputs applied; and comparing our
valuation results with that of the Group.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to fair value of financial
instruments against prevailing
accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’
s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Wong Yuen Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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